
 

 

 
 
 
 

Communities, Parks 
and Leisure Policy 
Committee 
 
Monday 26 September 2022 at 1.30 pm 
 
To be held in the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Richard Williams  
Councillor Paul Wood  
Councillor Marieanne Elliot  
Councillor Sue Alston  
Councillor Tony Downing  
Councillor Alan Hooper  
Councillor Bernard Little  
Councillor Karen McGowan  
Councillor Peter Price  
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 
 
The Community, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee discusses and takes decisions 
on: 
 
Communities 

• Community Development 
• Cohesion and Migration 
• Community Safety 
• Youth Services 

 
Parks, Leisure and Libraries 

• Sport, physical activity and leisure facilities 
• Parks and Woodlands (including non-highway trees) 
• Allotments 
• Ecology 
• Bereavement Services 
• Libraries 

 
Meetings are chaired by Councillor Richard Williams.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk . You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda. 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Policy 
Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair. 
Please see the Council’s webpages or contact Democratic Services for further 
information regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s 
protocol on audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings.  
 
Policy Committee meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the 
Committee may have to discuss an item in private. If this happens, you will be asked 
to leave. Any private items are normally left until last on the agenda.  
 
Meetings of the Policy Committee have to be held as physical meetings. If you would 
like to attend the meeting, please report to an Attendant in the Foyer at the Town 
Hall where you will be directed to the meeting room.  However, it would be 
appreciated if you could register to attend, in advance of the meeting, by 
emailing committee@sheffield.gov.uk, as this will assist with the management of 
attendance at the meeting. The meeting rooms in the Town Hall have a limited 
capacity. We are unable to guarantee entrance to the meeting room for observers, 
as priority will be given to registered speakers and those that have registered to 
attend.  
 
Alternatively, you can observe the meeting remotely by clicking on the ‘view the 
webcast’ link provided on the meeting page of the website. 
 
If you wish to attend a meeting and ask a question or present a petition, you must 
submit the question/petition in writing by 9.00 a.m. at least 2 clear working days in 

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=648
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

advance of the date of the meeting, by email to the following address: 
committee@sheffield.gov.uk.  
 
In order to ensure safe access and to protect all attendees, you will be 
recommended to wear a face covering (unless you have an exemption) at all times 
within the venue. Please do not attend the meeting if you have COVID-19 symptoms. 
It is also recommended that you undertake a Covid-19 Rapid Lateral Flow Test 
within two days of the meeting.   
 
If you require any further information please email committee@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 

FACILITIES 
 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. Access for people 
with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the side to the main 
Town Hall entrance. 
 

mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

 
COMMUNITIES, PARKS AND LEISURE POLICY COMMITTEE AGENDA 

26 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

Order of Business 
  
1.   Welcome and Housekeeping  
 The Chair to welcome attendees to the meeting and outline 

basic housekeeping and fire safety arrangements. 
 

 

 
2.   Apologies for Absence  
  
3.   Exclusion of Press and Public  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to 

exclude the press and public 
 

 

 
4.   Declarations of Interest (Pages 7 - 10) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting 
 

 

 
5.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 11 - 16) 
 To approve the minutes of the last meeting of the 

Committee held on 
 

 

 
6.   Public Questions and Petitions  
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 

public 
 

 

 
7.   Work Programme (Pages 17 - 32) 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance 

 
 

 
8.   Update on the Public Facing Sport and Leisure Strategy (Pages 33 - 40) 
 
Formal Decisions 
  
9.   Playing Pitch Strategy (Pages 41 - 132) 
 Report of Executive Director, Operational Services 

 
 

 
10.   Budget Monitoring - Month 4 (Pages 133 - 

140) 
 Report of Director of Finance and Commercial Services 

 
 

 
11.   Budget Proposals for year 2023/2024  
 
Other Items 
  
 NOTE: The next meeting of Communities, Parks and 

Leisure Policy Committee will be held on Monday 14 
November 2022 at 2.00 pm 
 

 



 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 
• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 

which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 

a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 
• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 

have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 
 
• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 

partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 
• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 

securities of a body where -  
 

(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b)  either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 8



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 9

mailto:gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

 

Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee 
 

Meeting held 13 June 2022 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Richard Williams (Chair), Paul Wood (Deputy Chair), 

Sue Alston, Tony Downing, Marieanne Elliot, Alan Hooper, 
Bernard Little, Karen McGowan and Peter Price 
 

 
  
1.   
 

WELCOME AND HOUSEKEEPING 
 

1.1 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and explained the housekeeping. 
   
2.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

2.1 An apology for absence was received from Dawn Shaw, Director of Libraries, 
Learning, Skills and Communities.  

   
3.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

3.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 
and public. 

   
4.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

4.1 There were no formal declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
   
5.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

5.1 The following petitions and questions were received and responses were 
provided.  
  

5.2  A question was received from Janine Lawson: 
  
“We have only just become aware that the first meeting of the Communities, 
Parks and Leisure Committee is tomorrow (2pm).  This means our public 
question is late.  However, we would be extremely grateful if, as an exception, 
the committee could consider our urgent public question.  We realise it will be 
the only opportunity we have to raise it before Tramlines this summer.  We 
thank you in advance for this.  (We are writing to you as Chair and have copied 
the Deputy Chair, Green group spokesperson, Cllr Bernard Little from the 
Central LAC, plus our own councillors) 
  
Our question is about Tramlines and securing the best arrangements with local 
residents and businesses for the most successful possible event.  You may be 
aware that improving understanding and practical arrangements between 
festival organisers and the local Hillsborough community is a long-standing 
concern.  A number of different local people and groups have made 
considerable efforts to secure better relationships and improvements in 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



Meeting of the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee 13.06.2022 

Page 2 of 6 
 

arrangements for tramlines this year.  We have been making little headway 
overall - for example, being given blanket general reasons why things can’t 
happen.  We feel sure that improved arrangements can be put in place to 
ensure tramlines is successful for all, and based on the learning from previous 
years. 
  
So, and as a matter of urgency, how can this committee help Hillsborough 
residents and local businesses secure improved arrangements for this 
summer’s Tramlines festival - in particular, over the issues of festival re-entry for 
local residents and helping ensure the local community and  businesses are 
better considered over the festival period? We are looking to make sure there 
are specific and practical improvements on last year that can be agreed and 
implemented.  
  
We would suggest that re-entry be allowed until 4pm which would negate any 
concerns that the Safety Advisory Committee have surrounding anti-social 
behaviour whilst allowing businesses to benefit from the festival and families to 
enjoy the event.  
  
We would further like to request that an urgent meeting be convened to discuss 
the matter given the limited time scales available.  
  
I look forward to hearing from you”. 
  
The Chair noted the question and explained that a written response would be 
given as soon as possible.  
  

   
6.   
 

COMMUNITIES, PARKS AND LEISURE COMMITTEE OVERVIEW 
 

6.1 The Executive Director of People Services Portfolio introduced this item to give 
a brief introduction. The Head of Communities and Head of Parks and 
Countryside gave a presentation which included information on: 
  

·       Purpose 
·       Service Structure 
·       Key Achievements 
·       Community Services 
·       Family Hub  
·       Community Cohesion 
·       Asylum Migration 
·       Page Hall 
·       Voluntary Sector Liaison Team  
·       Community Safety 
·       Local Area Committee Support 
·       Youth Services 
·       Parks and Countryside 
·       Coronial & Bereavement Services 
·       Sports, Leisure and Health 
·       Libraries 

Page 12



Meeting of the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee 13.06.2022 

Page 3 of 6 
 

·       Business Improvement 
  
Members of the Committee asked questions and responses were provided by 
Lorraine Wood and Ruth Bell surrounding youth service recruitment, grant aid, 
LAC teams of staff, funding, nature emergency, marble memorial, club 
structures, pavilion conditions, off road vehicles in park areas and disabled 
access.  
  
The Committee noted the presentation.  

   
7.   
 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 

7.1 The Executive Director of People Services porfolio presented the Work 
Programme and informed Committee that it would develop firther over the 
summer. It was explained that it would be a standing item on the Policy 
Committee agendas and could therefore be shaped through conversations. It 
was highlighted that there were proposed items for the September meeting.   

  Members raised points and asked questions. The following responses were 
given: 
  

·       Each Policy Committee meeting would have a forward plan as a 
standing item to discuss existing and proposed items.  

·       Ruth Bell agreed to find out if there was a proposal to bid for Sport 
England money.  

·       It was clarified that the pre-agenda meetings are a good forum for 
discussion around adding items onto future work programmes.  

·       In relation to the Induction Programme detailed in 2.2 of the report, 
John Macilwraith agreed to find out about the start date and report back 
to the Chair.  

  
  

   
8.   
 

FEE INCREASES FOR BEREAVEMENT SERVICES 
 

8.1 The Service Manager for Coronial and Bereavement Services presented the 
report which provided the Committee with an overview of the bereavement 
services fee increase. 
  
The report sought approval for the proposed fee increase for Bereavement 
Services in 2022-23, outlining that Bereavement services proposes to increase 
fees by 4% for burials, cremations, and memorials (rounded up to the nearest 
£5), with some exceptions as outlined in the report. Fees are rounded to keep 
prices straight forward and a cap of 5% has been applied to ensure no item is 
disproportionately affected. 

    
8.2 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy 

Committee agrees a general 4% increase (rounded up to the nearest £5 and 
capped at 5%) to Bereavement Services fees and charges, alongside the 
specific changes listed in the report. 
  

Page 13



Meeting of the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee 13.06.2022 

Page 4 of 6 
 

8.3 Reasons for Decision 
    
8.3.1 Raising fees as outlined is recommended to offset additional costs caused by 

significant rises in inflation and the cost of living, notably on items such as gas, 
fuel, machinery and supplies. 

    
8.4 
  
8.4.1 

Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
Increasing fees by 2% would not generate the additional income required to 
respond to budget challenges and would require a reduction in the quality of 
services provided. 
  

  
9.   
 

PARKWOOD SPRINGS LEASE UPDATE 
 

9.1 The Chair clarified to the Committee that the purpose of the report was to 
provide an update only.  

9.2 The Head of Parks and Countryside presented the report which provided the 
Committee with an update and overview on the Parkwood Springs project. 
Details and features of the park were explained, as was the intended use. The 
places to ride project was explained and the link with mountain bike trails. The 
intended improvement for facilities was also explained. It was pointed out that 
Sport England were being worked closely, particularly around funding and 
legalities. Current and future plans were outlined.  

9.3 Members raised points and questions and responses were provided around: 
  

·       The arrangement of site visits and an active and productive friends 
group.  

·       The ongoing work with the ski slope.  
·       Wetland and its attraction for different species.  
·       Mountain bike provision and car parking access. 

  
9.4 The Committee noted the report. 
   
10.   
 

APPLICATION FOR TRAILBLAZER STATUS FOR NEW PROGRAMME 
FUNDING 
 

10.1 The head of communities presented the report which provided the Committee 
with an overview of the Council’s desire to apply for trailblazer status. The report 
outlined that the status would boost the programme and development of Family 
Hubs and Start for Life Services in Sheffield, once again.  
  
The report was to gain the approval for Sheffield to apply for TRAILBLAZER 
status in the upcoming new government funded programme. Details were 
provided regarding Family Hub & Start for Life programme. It was explained that 
at the autumn budget, the government committed £300 million for 75 upper-tier 
local authorities to deliver Family Hubs / Start for Life services over the next 3 
financial years. 

    
10.2 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy 

Page 14



Meeting of the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee 13.06.2022 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Committee gain approval for Sheffield to progress to the application stage for 
Trailblazer status. Key contacts from the Local Authority have been part of the 
focus group for information about trailblazers and Sheffield is seen as having 
positive outcomes with regards to family centres development, infant feeding 
support and parenting programmes across the city. 
  

10.3 Reasons for Decision 
    
10.3.1 Some additional funding in year one to enable rapid delivery on the menu of 

options for the funded services. 
    
10.3.2 Join a network of England wide trailblazers where they can share learning and 

troubleshoot. 
    
10.3.3 Be identified by central government as a national leader in the implementation of 

the programme. 
    
10.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 

 
  

10.4.1 If the decision is not approved then Sheffield will receive allocated funding for 
the programme with no enhanced opportunities for the communities and the city 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

 

    
  
   
11.   
 

MONTH 1 MONITORING, FINANCIAL POSITION AND BUDGET TIMETABLE 
 

11.1 The Director of Finance and Commercial Services presented the report which 
brought the Committee up to date with the Council’s financial position as at 
Month 1, 2022/23. The report also sought the Committee’s agreement to a 
proposed budget timetable for the development of the 2023/24 budget. 

    
11.2 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy 

Committee:- 
  
1. Note the Council’s challenging financial position and the Month 1 position. 
 

Page 15



Meeting of the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee 13.06.2022 

Page 6 of 6 
 

2. Note the budget timetable set out in this report including the requirement for 
the Committee to plan to develop budget proposals over the course of the 
summer. 
  
3. Note that the Strategy and Resources Committee was recommended at its 31 
May 2022 meeting to “require any Policy Committee that is forecasting an 
overspend on their budget to develop an action plan to address the overspend 
in-year and ask the Finance Sub-Committee to monitor both the development of 
any required action plans and delivery against them”. 
  
4. Continue closely to manage and monitor expenditure in line with budget 
expectations and ensure forecasts represent current financial conditions. 
  
5. Ensure that the spend in the community response team that is unfunded for 
23/24 is managed with this in mind. 
  
6. Reaffirms the approach approved by the FC on 1st June 2022, that to act as a 
balance to the Corporate Risk Register, there should be a Corporate 
Opportunities Register, detailing new funding opportunities, partnership 
opportunities and initiatives that will help deliver the Council's objectives, such 
as supporting those affected by the cost of living crisis. 
  

11.3 Reasons for Decision 
    
11.3.1 By the law the Council must set and deliver a balanced budget, which is a 

financial plan based on sound assumptions which shows how income will equal 
spend over the short- and medium-term. This can take into account deliverable 
cost savings and/or local income growth strategies Page 54 Page 11 of 11 as 
well as useable reserves. 
  

11.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
 
 

11.4.1 The Council is required to both set a balance budget and to ensure that in-year 
income and expenditure are balanced. No other alternatives were considered. 

  
   

Page 16



 

 

 

 

 

Report of: Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and Governance 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Subject: Draft Committee Work Programme - Communities Parks and 
Leisure 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Author of Report: Rachel Marshall, Principal Democratic Services Officer 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Summary:  

The Committee’s Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for the Committee’s 
consideration and discussion. This aims to show all known, substantive agenda items 
for forthcoming meetings of the Committee, to enable this committee, other 
committees, officers, partners and the public to plan their work with and for the 
Committee. 
 
Any changes since the Committee’s last meeting, including any new items, have been 
made in consultation with the Chair, and the document is always considered at the 
regular pre-meetings to which all Group Spokespersons are invited. 
 
The following potential sources of new items are included in this report, where 
applicable: 

• Questions and petitions from the public, including those referred from Council  
• References from Council or other committees (statements formally sent for this 

committee’s attention) 
• A list of issues, each with a short summary, which have been identified by the 

Committee or officers as potential items but which have not yet been scheduled 
(See Appendix 1) 

 
The Work Programme will remain a live document and will be brought to each 
Committee meeting. 
__________________________________________________________ 
Recommendations:  

Report to Communities, Parks and 
Leisure Committee

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

 

1. That the Committee’s work programme, as set out in Appendix 1 be agreed, 
including any additions and amendments identified in Part 1; 

2. That consideration be given to the further additions or adjustments to the work 
programme presented at Part 2 of Appendix 1; 

3. That Members give consideration to any further issues to be explored by 
officers for inclusion in Part 2 of Appendix 1 of the next work programme report, 
for potential addition to the work programme; and 

4. (Add specific recommended actions for issues requiring a steer from the 
Committee eg in respect of items identified in Section 2 - referrals from other 
committees and petitions/questions etc) 

Background Papers:  None 

Category of Report: Open  

 

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

1.0 Prioritisation 

1.1 For practical reasons this committee has a limited amount of time each year in 
which to conduct its formal business. The Committee will need to prioritise firmly in 
order that formal meetings are used primarily for business requiring formal decisions, 
or which for other reasons it is felt must be conducted in a formal setting. 
 
1.2 In order to ensure that prioritisation is effectively done, on the basis of evidence 
and informed advice, Members should usually avoid adding items to the work 
programme which do not already appear: 

• In the draft work programme in Appendix 1 due to the discretion of the chair; or 
• within the body of this report accompanied by a suitable amount of information. 

 
2.0 References from Council or other Committees 
 
2.1 Any references sent to this Committee by Council, including any public questions, 
petitions and motions, or other committees since the last meeting are listed here, with 
commentary and a proposed course of action, as appropriate: 

Issue  Details to be added by PDSO  
Referred from  
  

  Central LAC 

Details   The Central LAC received the following questions 
from members of the public, in attendance at the 
meeting: 
 
Andy Chaplin (on behalf of Hillsborough 
businesses and local residents) 
 

1. Why have our local councillors appeared to 
have been so powerless in securing better 
arrangements for the local community?   

Page 18



 

 

  
2. Why have council officers appeared to 

issue a statement in support of Tramlines 
showing no awareness of the issues?   

  
3. Why are Hillsborough residents and 

businesses not considered a vital voice in 
the arrangements that apply to Tramlines 
(and for other potential events)?  

  
4. Will the Central LAC help the campaign to 

reinstate the previous leave and re-enter 
options? 

 
5. Will the Central LAC help local traders who 

lose out during the event weekend? 
 
Andrea Flutter 
 
Asked the LACs to clarity the Council’s ability to 
enforce a re-entry policy for the Tramlines event. 
 
Dean crouch 
 
How was Hillsborough Park benefitting from 
hosting the Tramlines event if they were not 
receiving any funding for it. 
 
 
* A link to the minutes for response on these 
questions can be found here Sheffield City 
Council - Agenda for Central Local Area 
Committee on Wednesday 13 July 2022, 6.00 pm 

Commentary/ Action Proposed  
  

Chair liaising with officers to obtain a response.  
  
Issue  Environmental Report for Owlthorpe Fields 

Referred from  
  

South East LAC on 29th June 2022 

Details  A representative from the Friends of Owlthorpe 
Fields came to the stand and issued the South 
East LAC with an independent environmental 
report they 

had commissioned for the fields and their 
environmental importance and value. 
 

Commentary/ Action Proposed  
  

This has since been resolved and has now been 
referred to the Sheffield Local Wildlife Sites 
Group. No action proposed. 

Page 19

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=604&MId=8425&Ver=4
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=604&MId=8425&Ver=4
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=604&MId=8425&Ver=4


 

 

 

 

 

 

3.0 Member engagement, learning and policy development outside of 
Committee  

3.1 Subject to the capacity and availability of councillors and officers, there are a 
range of ways in which Members can explore subjects, monitor information and 
develop their ideas about forthcoming decisions outside of formal meetings. Appendix 
2 is an example ‘menu’ of some of the ways this could be done. It is entirely 
appropriate that member development, exploration and policy development should in 
many cases take place in a private setting, to allow members to learn and formulate a 
position in a neutral space before bringing the issue into the public domain at a formal 
meeting.   
  
2.2 Training & Skills Development - Induction programme for this committee.  
Title  Description & Format  Date  
Site Visits A programme of site visits gas been scheduled to 

key Sport and Leisure sites 
27/10/22 
16/11/22 

 

Page 20



 

 

Appendix 1 – Work Programme  

Part 1: Proposed additions and amendments to the work programme since the last meeting: 

Item Proposed Date Note 
Budget Proposals 2023/24 November 2022 The Strategy and Resources Committee will meet on 12 October to consider the 

budget proposals made by each Policy Committee and presented to the 
September meeting of the Policy Committee. 
  
The Strategy and Resources Committee may ask for further work from Policy 
Committees which may result in changes to the proposals originally made. 
  
This report will seek the Policy Committee’s final agreement to any changes to 
the proposals presented to the Policy Committee’s September meeting. 
  
Notwithstanding to any late changes in government funding, this report will 
represent the Policy Committee’s final budget position for 2023/24. 
 
The November report will amend the September report based on asks from the 
S&R Committee. 

Food Access Plan REMOVED This item has been removed as the issue was picked up as part of cost-of-living 
response via Strategy & Resources 
 

Procurement Strategy to support commission 
of a new Sport & Leisure Operator. 
 

REMOVED This item has been removed because there is a financial ask that will picked up via 
Finance Sub Cttee 
 

Food Strategy Refresh 
 

REMOVED Discussion planned at Strategy Leadership Board to advise on the scope of the 
strategy and which committee is best placed to approve the report 

There are a number of high-profile 
Sport/Leisure Investment Capital Projects that 
will be developed over the next 6 months that 
will be seeking capital and political approval.  
Including Springs, Concord and Hillsborough 

REMOVED Capital investment proposals will be approved as part of the Councils capital 
approval process via Capital Programme Group (GPG) and Finance Sub Policy 
Committee. 
 

P
age 21



 

 

rebuilds and redevelopment of Woodbourn 
Road 
 
Cruyff funded football courts at Burngreave 
and Parson Cross 
 

REMOVED Capital investment proposals will be approved as part of the Councils capital 
approval process via Capital Programme Group (GPG) and Finance Sub Policy 
Committee. 
 

Parson Cross Park - Pavilion modernisation & 
pitch improvements (RLWC funding, S106, 
Football foundation) 
 

REMOVED Capital investment proposals will be approved as part of the Councils capital 
approval process via Capital Programme Group (GPG) and Finance Sub Policy 
Committee. 
 

Strategic Review of Libraries and Archives 
Services Scope 
 

REPLACED Replaced with ‘Service Re-design for Libraries and Archives Service’ 
 

Libraries and Archives Fees and Charges 
 

REMOVED This item can be removed – it will form part of the service re-design 
 

Mather Road playground 
 

REMOVED Capital investment proposals will be approved as part of the Councils capital 
approval process via Capital Programme Group (GPG) and Finance Sub Policy 
Committee 

Ecclesfield / Hollinsend tennis and wider 
improvements 
 

REFERRED Finance Sub-Committee 

Skye Edge environmental improvements & 
access controls 
 

REFERRED Finance & Resources 

Richmond Park drainage scheme   
 

REFERRED Finance Sub-Committee 
 

Forge Dam phase 3 works (access works) 
 

REFERRED Finance Sub-Committee 
 
 

P
age 22



 

 

Parkwood Springs Work package 2 (catering & 
toilet units) 
 

REFERRED Finance Sub-Committee 
 
 

STF projects (including Oxley Park skatepark, 
access improvements and 3G pitch) 
 

REFERRED Finance Sub-Committee 
 
 

Ellesmere Park – site improvements (play and 
basketball) 
 

REFERRED Finance Sub-Committee 
 
 

High Hazels Park – youth facilities/shelter area 
remediation    
 

REFERRED Finance Sub-Committee 
 
 

Upper Hanover St and Ponderosa MUGA 
renewals   
 

REFERRED Finance Sub-Committee 
 
 

Play Improvements Project Phase 6 (PIP6)   
 

REFERRED Finance Sub-Committee 
 
 

Nottingham Cliff and Burngreave Rec 
charitable status report 

REMOVE Currently on hold 

   
   

 

 

Part 2: List of other potential items not yet included in the work programme 

Issues that have recently been identified by the Committee, its Chair or officers as potential items but have not yet been added to the proposed work 
programme. If a Councillor raises an idea in a meeting and the committee agrees under recommendation 3 that this should be explored, it will appear 
either in the work programme or in this section of the report at the committee’s next meeting, at the discretion of the Chair. 

P
age 23



 

 

Topic   

Description  

Lead Officer/s  

Item suggested by Officer, Member, Committee, partners, public question, petition etc 

Type of item Referral to decision-maker/Pre-decision (policy development/Post-decision (service performance/ monitoring) 

Prior member engagement/ 
development required  (with reference to 
options in Appendix 2) 

  

Public Participation/ Engagement 
approach(with reference to toolkit in Appendix 3) 

 

Lead Officer Commentary/Proposed 
Action(s) 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 3 – Agenda Items for Forthcoming Meetings 

Meeting 2 September 2022      
Topic Description Lead Officer/s Type of item 

• Decision 
• Referral to 

decision-maker 
• Pre-decision 

(policy 
development) 

• Post-decision 
(service 

(re: decisions)  
Prior member 
engagement/ 
development 
required   
(with reference to options in 
Appendix 1) 

(re: decisions) 
Public 
Participation/ 
Engagement 
approach 
(with reference to toolkit in 
Appendix 2)  

Final decision-
maker (& date) 
• This Cttee 
• Another Cttee (eg 

S&R) 
• Full Council 
• Officer 

P
age 24



 

 

performance/ 
monitoring) 

Item 1 
 

Update on the Public Facing 
Sport and Leisure Strategy  

Tammy 
Barrass/Kate 
Clark 

Post Decision Committee Briefing 
prior to Committee 
Meeting 

City wide 
consultation 
undertaken 
December 2021 

Officer has 
delegation – for 
information 

Item 2 
 

Playing Pitch Strategy Kate Clark Decision Committee Briefing 
prior to decision 

Engagement with 
key partners, 
Planning and 
Governing Bodies 

This Committee 
 

Item 3 
 

 

Budget Proposals for year 
2023/2024 

Ryan Keyworth 
 

Decision   This Committee 

Standing items 
 

• Public Questions/ 
Petitions 

• Work Programme 
• [any other committee-

specific standing items 
eg finance or service 
monitoring] 

     

Item 4 
 

Budget Monitoring Report - 
Month 4 - Finance Report 
for Housing General Fund 
and, Housing Revenue 
Account  
 
 

Ryan Keyworth / 
Jane Wilby 
 

Referral to 
decision-maker 
 

N/A  N/A 

 

Meeting 3 November 2022 Time     
Topic Description Lead 

Officer/s 
Type of item 
• Decision 
• Referral to decision-

maker 

(re: decisions)  
Prior member 
engagement/ 

(re: decisions) 
Public 
Participation/ 

Final decision-
maker (& date) 
• This Cttee 

P
age 25



 

 

• Pre-decision (policy 
development) 

• Post-decision (service 
performance/ 
monitoring) 

development 
required   
(with reference to options in 
Appendix 1) 

Engagement 
approach 
(with reference to toolkit in 
Appendix 2)  

• Another Cttee (eg 
S&R) 

• Full Council 
• Officer 

Item 1 Budget Position for year 
2023/2024 

Ryan 
Keyworth 

Decision   This Committee 
 

Item 2 Playzones Report 
 

Kate Clark Decision  Committee briefing 
prior to decision  

Engagement with 
key partners and 
governing bodies 

This Committee 

Item 3 Update on Sport/Leisure & 
Entertainment 
Commissiioning 

Tammy 
Barrass/ 
Joanne 
Holland 

Decision Committee briefing 
prior to decision 
 

Engagement with 
key partners and 
informed by city 
wide consultation 
results 
 

This Committee 
 

Standing items 
 

• Public Questions/ 
Petitions 

• Work Programme 
• [any other committee-

specific standing items 
eg finance or service 
monitoring] 

     

 

Meeting 4 TBC Time     
Topic Description Lead 

Officer/s 
Type of item 
• Decision 
• Referral to decision-

maker 
• Pre-decision (policy 

development) 
• Post-decision (service 

performance/ 
monitoring) 

(re: decisions)  
Prior member 
engagement/ 
development 
required   
(with reference to options in 
Appendix 1) 

(re: decisions) 
Public 
Participation/ 
Engagement 
approach 
(with reference to toolkit in 
Appendix 2)  

Final decision-
maker (& date) 
• This Cttee 
• Another Cttee (eg 

S&R) 
• Full Council 
• Officer 

Item 1       

P
age 26



 

 

Item 2       
Standing items 
 

• Public Questions/ 
Petitions 

• Work Programme 
• [any other committee-

specific standing items 
eg finance or service 
monitoring] 

     

 

Meeting 5 TBC Time     
Topic Description Lead 

Officer/s 
Type of item 
• Decision 
• Referral to decision-

maker 
• Pre-decision (policy 

development) 
• Post-decision (service 

performance/ 
monitoring) 

(re: decisions)  
Prior member 
engagement/ 
development 
required   
(with reference to options in 
Appendix 1) 

(re: decisions) 
Public 
Participation/ 
Engagement 
approach 
(with reference to toolkit in 
Appendix 2)  

Final decision-
maker (& date) 
• This Cttee 
• Another Cttee (eg 

S&R) 
• Full Council 
• Officer 

Item 1       
Item 2       
Standing items 
 

• Public Questions/ 
Petitions 

• Work Programme 
• [any other committee-

specific standing items 
eg finance or service 
monitoring] 

     

 

Meeting 6 TBC Time     
Topic Description Lead 

Officer/s 
Type of item 
• Decision 
• Referral to decision-

maker 

(re: decisions)  
Prior member 
engagement/ 

(re: decisions) 
Public 
Participation/ 

Final decision-
maker (& date) 
• This Cttee 

P
age 27



 

 

• Pre-decision (policy 
development) 

• Post-decision (service 
performance/ 
monitoring) 

development 
required   
(with reference to options in 
Appendix 1) 

Engagement 
approach 
(with reference to toolkit in 
Appendix 2)  

• Another Cttee (eg 
S&R) 

• Full Council 
• Officer 

Item 1       
Item 2       
Standing items 
 

• Public Questions/ 
Petitions 

• Work Programme 
• [any other committee-

specific standing items 
eg finance or service 
monitoring] 

     

 

 

Items which the committee have agreed to add to an agenda, but for which no date is yet set. 
 
Topic Description Lead 

Officer/s 
Type of item 
• Decision 
• Referral to decision-

maker 
• Pre-decision (policy 

development) 
• Post-decision (service 

performance/ 
monitoring) 

(re: decisions)  
Prior member 
engagement/ 
development 
required   
(with reference to options in 
Appendix 1) 

(re: decisions) 
Public 
Participation/ 
Engagement 
approach 
(with reference to toolkit in 
Appendix 2)  

Final decision-
maker (& date) 
• This Cttee 
• Another Cttee (eg 

S&R) 
• Full Council 
• Officer 

Item 4 Local Football Facility Plan James 
Barnes 

Decision Committee Briefing 
and Briefing Paper 
prior to decision 

City Wide 
Consultation and 
consultation with 
key partners has 
been used to help 
inform the 
approach. 

Clarification 
needed if this is 
the correct 
Committee to 
take this decision. 

P
age 28



 

 

Item 5 Service Re-design for 
Libraries and Archives 
Service 

Nick 
Partridge 

Pre-Decision Overview of Libraries 
as a statutory service 

Staff engagement as 
part of Achieving 
Change process 

This Committee 

Item 7 Parks Capital Programme 
(There are a number of 
Parks Capital Projects over 
the next 6 months that will 
be seeking capital and 
political approval (see list 
below). There is currently a 
monthly Capital Programme 
Group.) 

Ruth 
Bell/Stuart 
Turner Decision 

Committee Briefing 
and Briefing Paper 
prior to decision 

Specific community 
consultation has 
been used to help 
inform the approach 

This committee 
 

Item 19 Enter into a lease with 
operator at Botanical 
Gardens Jo Pearce 

Referral to Decision 
Maker 

Committee Briefing 
and Briefing Paper 
prior to decision 

Specific community 
consultation has 
been used to help 
inform the approach 

Another 
Committee 
(Charities 
Committee) 

Item 20 Enter into a lease with 
operator at Parkwood 
Springs   

Referral to Decision 
Maker 

Committee Briefing 
and Briefing Paper 
prior to decision 

Specific community 
consultation has 
been used to help 
inform the approach 

Another 
Committee 
(Charities 
Committee) 

Item 21 Enter into a lease with 
operator at Hillsborough 
Activity Hub (following 
tender exercise – subject to 
decision and procurement)   

Referral to Decision 
Maker 

Committee Briefing 
and Briefing Paper 
prior to decision 

Specific community 
consultation has 
been used to help 
inform the approach 

Another 
Committee 
(Charities 
Committee) 

Item 22 

SUDs policy and approach   

Jo Pearce 

Decision Committee Briefing 
and Briefing Paper 
prior to decision 

Specific community 
consultation has 
been used to help 
inform the approach 

This committee 
 

Item 24 
Food and Healthy Weight 
Commissioning Model Jessica 

Wilson 

Decision Committee Briefing 
and Briefing Paper 
and consultation 
prior to decision 

Key stakeholder and 
Service User 
consultation 

This Committee 

P
age 29



 

 

Item Public Health parks 
investment 22/23, and 
future years investment 
plan. 

Stuart 
Turner 

Decision Committee briefing 
and paper prior to 
decision 

Public Health 
investment criteria  

This Committee 
 

 

P
age 30



 

 

Appendix 2 – Menu of options for member engagement, learning and 
development prior to formal Committee consideration 

Members should give early consideration to the degree of pre-work needed before an 
item appears on a formal agenda. 

All agenda items will anyway be supported by the following: 

• Discussion well in advance as part of the work programme item at Pre-agenda 
meetings. These take place in advance of each formal meeting, before the 
agenda is published and they consider the full work programme, not just the 
immediate forthcoming meeting. They include the Chair, Vice Chair and all 
Group Spokespersons from the committee, with officers 

• Discussion and, where required, briefing by officers at pre-committee meetings 
in advance of each formal meeting, after the agenda is published. These 
include the Chair, Vice Chair and all Group Spokespersons from the committee, 
with officers. 

• Work Programming items on each formal agenda, as part of an annual and 
ongoing work programming exercise 

• Full officer report on a public agenda, with time for a public discussion in 
committee 

• Officer meetings with Chair & VC as representatives of the committee, to 
consider addition to the draft work programme, and later to inform the overall 
development of the issue and report, for the committee’s consideration. 

The following are examples of some of the optional ways in which the committee may 
wish to ensure that they are sufficiently engaged and informed prior to taking a public 
decision on a matter. In all cases the presumption is that these will take place in 
private, however some meetings could happen in public or eg be reported to the public 
committee at a later date. 

These options are presented in approximately ascending order of the amount of 
resources needed to deliver them. Members must prioritise carefully, in consultation 
with officers, which items require what degree of involvement and information in 
advance of committee meetings, in order that this can be delivered within the officer 
capacity available. 

The majority of items cannot be subject to the more involved options on this list, for 
reasons of officer capacity. 

• Written briefing for the committee or all members (email) 
• All-member newsletter (email) 
• Requests for information from specific outside bodies etc. 
• All-committee briefings (private or, in exceptional cases, in-committee) 
• All-member briefing (virtual meeting) 
• Facilitated policy development workshop (potential to invite external experts / 

public, see appendix 2) 
• Site visits (including to services of the council) 
• Task and Finish group (one at a time, one per cttee) 

Furthermore, a range of public participation and engagement options are available to 
inform Councillors, see appendix 3. 

 Page 31



 

 

Appendix 3 – Public engagement and participation toolkit 

Public Engagement Toolkit 

On 23 March 2022 Full Council agreed the following: 

A toolkit to be developed for each committee to use when considering its ‘menu of 
options’ for ensuring the voice of the public has been central to their policy 
development work. Building on the developing advice from communities and Involve, 
committees should make sure they have a clear purpose for engagement; actively 
support diverse communities to engage; match methods to the audience and use a 
range of methods; build on what’s worked and existing intelligence (SCC and 
elsewhere); and be very clear to participants on the impact that engagement will have. 

The list below builds on the experiences of Scrutiny Committees and latterly the 
Transitional Committees and will continue to develop. The toolkit includes (but is not 
be limited to): 

a. Public calls for evidence 
b. Issue-focused workshops with attendees from multiple backgrounds 

(sometimes known as ‘hackathons’) led by committees 
c. Creative use of online engagement channels 
d. Working with VCF networks (eg including the Sheffield Equality 

Partnership) to seek views of communities 
e. Co-design events on specific challenges or to support policy 

development 
f. Citizens assembly style activities 
g. Stakeholder reference groups (standing or one-off) 
h. Committee / small group visits to services 
i. Formal and informal discussion groups 
j. Facilitated communities of interest around each committee (eg a mailing 

list of self-identified stakeholders and interested parties with regular 
information about forthcoming decisions and requests for contributions 
or volunteers for temporary co-option) 

k. Facility for medium-term or issue-by-issue co-option from outside the 
Council onto Committees or Task and Finish Groups. Co-optees of this 
sort at Policy Committees would be non-voting. 

This public engagement toolkit is intended to be a quick ‘how-to’ guide for Members 
and officers to use when undertaking participatory activity through committees. 

It will provide an overview of the options available, including the above list, and cover: 

• How to focus on purpose and who we are trying to reach 
• When to use and when not to use different methods 
• How to plan well and be clear to citizens what impact their voice will have 
• How to manage costs, timescales, scale. 

There is an expectation that Members and Officers will be giving strong 
consideration to the public participation and engagement options for each item 
on a committee’s work programme, with reference to the above list a-k. 

Page 32



Kate Clark
Sport, Leisure & Health Team
kate.clark@sheffield.gov.uk

Sheffield City Council

Sport and Leisure StrategyP
age 33

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:kate.calrk@sheffield.gov.uk


1788 
responses

48 

residents

Survey of Sheffield 

residents

Focus groups in 7 local areas

328 

responses
30 groups & 

300 individuals

Survey of priority 

audiences

Target group consultations 

with priority audiences

Survey of Clubs & NGBs

38 responses

TOTALS

SURVEY REPONSES – 2116

SESSION ATTENDEES - 348

P
age 34



Consultation – Key Findings

➢ Swimming  - Indoor, outdoor, lessons 

and attainment

➢ Outdoors - Paths, parks, playgrounds

➢ Active Travel – infrastructure, storage, 

showers

➢ Multi-Purpose Destinations co-

located services, active parks

P
age 35



60%

41%

Activity levels by postcode – percentage doing at least 2.5 hours of physical activity a week and meeting 

national physical activity guidelines

P
age 36



Consultation – Key Findings

➢ Low Cost and Local 

➢ VCF Sector and Community champions 

➢ Marketing – less elitist and more inclusive

➢ Talent should be supported irrespective of background or 
circumstances. 

➢ Support for investing resource where there is most need

➢ Valuable insight to help us shape investment

P
age 37



Sport & Leisure Strategy - Underpinning Principles

• Community engagement and involvement

• Carbon Net Zero

• Covid Recovery

• Tackling Inequalities

• Collaboration

• Inclusivity

• Building on what is strong

P
age 38



P
age 39



Next Steps

• Sport & Leisure Strategy 

Launch – Autumn 2022

• 5 Year Implementation

Plan Development

P
age 40



Policy Committee Report                                                        April 2022 

 

 
 

Report to Policy Committee 
 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:  Lisa Firth 
Director or Parks, Leisure & Libraries  
 
Tel:  07867 758407 

 
Report of: 
 

Lisa Firth 

Report to: 
 

Communities Parks and Leisure  

Date of Decision: 
 

19 September 2022 

Subject: Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy 
 
 

 
Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes X No   
 
If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   1242 

Has appropriate consultation taken place? Yes X No   
 
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes  No X  
 
 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No X  
 
If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the 
report and/or appendices and complete below:- 
 
“The (report/appendix) is not for publication because it contains exempt information 
under Paragraph (insert relevant paragraph number) of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended).” 
 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 
To seek approval for the adoption of the Sheffield City Council Playing Pitch 
Strategy 2022. This Strategy focusses on the supply and demand for playing 
pitches within the city and provides general and sport specific recommendations 
and actions The Strategy was undertaken by independent consultants and uses 
the methodology prescribed by Sport England. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



Page 2 of 15 

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Approve the adoption of the Playing Pitch Strategy for Sheffield as set out in 
this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers: 
(Insert details of any background papers used in the compilation of the report.) 
 
 
Appendix 1 – Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy and Action Plan  
 
 
Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

Finance: Chris Nicholson  

Legal:  Henry Watmough-Cownie  

Equalities & Consultation:  Louise Nunn  

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Climate:  Victoria Penman 
 

 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

Ajman Ali 

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Richard Williams 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2.  In addition, any additional 
forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1.  

 Lead Officer Name: 
Lisa Firth 

Job Title:  
Director – Parks, Leisure & Libraries 
 

 Date:  19th September 2022 

 
 

Page 42



Page 3 of 15 

 
  
1. Proposal 

 
This report seeks approval for the adoption of the Sheffield City Council Playing 
Pitch Strategy 2022 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The provision of high quality and accessible community outdoor sports facilities at a 
local level is a key requirement for achieving targets set out by central Government 
and Sport England.  
 
The Playing Pitch Strategy for Sheffield provides a clear framework for all outdoor 
sports facility providers, including the public, private and third sectors and provides a 
clear, strategic framework for the maintenance and improvement of existing playing 
pitches and ancillary facilities within the city, and includes the sports of football, 
rugby league and rugby union, cricket, hockey and artificial grass pitches. It 
considers the needs of all these identified sports, picking up on demand/supply 
issues locally. The report will undergo annual monitoring to ensure the data included 
and the delivery that results from it remain accurate and up to date.  
 
A Project Steering Group comprising representation from the council, Sport England 
and National Governing Bodies of Sport (NGBs) has guided the study from its 
commencement. At critical milestones, the Steering Group members have reviewed 
and verified the data and information collected to allow the work to proceed 
efficiently through each stage. 

 
The approach to developing a Playing Pitch Strategy consists of 10 steps which are 
outlined in the Strategy document and grouped into the following five stages as 
outlined in Sport England’s Playing Pitch Strategy Guidance to developing and 
delivering a playing pitch strategy: 
   
➢ Stage A: Prepare and tailor the approach.   
➢ Stage B: Gather information and views on the supply of and demand for 

provision  
➢ Stage C: Assess the supply and demand information and views  
➢ Stage D: Develop the strategy   
➢ Stage E: Deliver the strategy and keep it robust and up to date 

 
It is important that as part of the Stage E there is need for regular annual 
monitoring and review against the actions identified in the Strategy.  
 
The Strategy provides an evidence base that will allow the city to plan, prioritise and 
schedule future playing pitch improvement projects. The Strategy is primarily to aid 
the Local Plan process to enable SCC to advise and direct potential developers to 
ensure they deliver new playing pitches or improve current playing pitches within the 
district.  
 
In line with National Planning Policy Framework, it is important that there are robust 

Page 43



Page 4 of 15 

and up to date assessments of the need for sport and recreation facilities, including 
quantitative and qualitative deficits or surpluses of facilities. Information gained from 
the assessments can then be used to determine what provision is required to meet 
both current and future demand.  
 
Sheffield City Council are working on a new Sheffield Local Plan, which will guide 
the future of the city, by setting out, how and where development will take place up 
to 2039. Once it has been adopted, it will replace the Sheffield Core Strategy (2009) 
and ‘saved’ policies in the Sheffield Unitary Development Plan (1998). Policies in the 
Draft Sheffield Local Plan, when it is adopted, will help shape the kind of place that 
Sheffield will be in the future (to 2039). The Sheffield Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment 2013 is currently being updated. The evidence contained within this 
Playing Pitch Strategy will help inform relevant sport and housing policies. 
 
Sport England is a statutory consultee on all planning applications that affect sports 
facilities and has provided published guidance that specifies the methodology and 
approach to developing and delivering a playing pitch strategy. This Strategy is 
compliant with Sport England requirements and supports Sport England principles: 
 

1. To protect the existing supply of outdoor sports facilities where it is needed to 
meet current and future needs. 
 

2. To enhance outdoor sports facilities and ancillary facilities through improving 
quality and management of sites. 

 
3. To provide new outdoor sports facilities where there is current or future 

demand to do so. 
 
Given these factors, it is important that the Council has a clear and effective strategy 
to ensure it can deliver the outdoor sporting provision and infrastructure the 
community needs.  
 
Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy Overview 
 
 
The vision for the Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy is to Create a network of high-
quality community and specialist sustainable facilities used for outdoor sports 
in Sheffield that will be provided and funded in a variety of ways and enhance 
the quality of life for the people of Sheffield. 
 
 
Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy is a strategic assessment that provides an up-to-
date analysis of supply and demand for playing pitches (grass and artificial) and 
outdoor sports facilities in the local authority.  
 
The assessment has focused on facilities used by the following sports: 
 

• Football 

Page 44



Page 5 of 15 

• Rugby Union 

• Cricket  

• Hockey 

• Rugby League 

All identified outdoor sports facilities were assessed and a quality rating recorded 
within the audit. These quality ratings were used to help estimate the capacity of 
each facility to accommodate competitive and other play, within the supply and 
demand assessment. Future demand was estimated from population projections and 
housing growth by applying national standard formula for participation rates. 
 
The Playing Pitch Strategy provides a robust and up-to-date evidence base to inform 
policy direction, specifically the development of planning policies concerned with the 
protection of existing playing pitches and new provision required to meet future 
demand. The findings and recommendations will also be used as a basis upon 
which to consider planning applications and development proposals. 
 
The Strategy also provides a robust evidence base that will allow the city to plan, 
prioritise and schedule future outdoor sport pitch improvement projects and provides 
guidance for maintenance and management decisions and investment made across 
Sheffield which Sheffield City Council is committed to developing and implementing 
this Strategy alongside the Steering Group.  
 
The Steering Group is a collaborative consortium made up from relevant sporting 
National Governing Bodies (NGBs) as outlined below, representatives from Sheffield 
City Council and Sport England.  
 
The Strategy will have a life of three years, extended to five, provided that 
annual monitoring takes place.  It is important to monitor delivery of the 
Strategy and Action Plan; and the data that informs it. 
 
The Playing Pitch Strategy Action Plan makes general and sport specific 
recommendations which Sheffield will deliver and implement, subject to further 
consultation where necessary to demonstrate there is still need and demand for 
certain projects.  Further information is available in section 5 of the background 
paper Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy Action Plan. 
 
By addressing issues identified in the Assessment Report and using the strategic 
framework presented in this Strategy, where resources can be identified, the current 
and future sporting and recreational needs of Sheffield can be met.  
 
The consultant team has worked with the council and the Playing Pitch Strategy 
steering group to provide a strategy that is fit-for-purpose and addresses the specific 
issues and risks for the area. It is key that this Strategy reflects the local context and 
enables the council to maximise the amount of high-quality sporting provision for its 
residents, while understanding the need to meet planning and housing requirements.  
 
The Strategy will therefore aim to deliver against the following drivers: 

Page 45



Page 6 of 15 

 
• To ensure that the city has an up-to-date framework for the prioritisation, 

provision, and development of sports facilities across the public, private and 
independent sectors. 

• Support the implementation of the Council’s adopted Local Plan policies 
relating to the protection, enhancement and provision of community sport and 
physical activity facilities and provide an evidence-based framework to 
support negotiations with developers who may provide funding or other 
assistance to improve local provision. 

• The identification of deficiencies and opportunities for improvement will set 
the context for decisions about the priority and delivery of local 
sports/physical activity facilities in the district. 

• Provide a robust evidence base to support funding bids from National Sports 
bodies like Sport England and National Governing Bodies (NGB’s) of sport.   

• Ensure that a planned approach to sport and physical activity facilities takes 
place in Sheffield now and up to 2039 (the timeframe for the forthcoming 
Local Plan), ensuring that the city has access to high quality facilities, helping 
communities to increase their levels of physical activity and improve their 
health  

 
Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy Recommendations 
 
To facilitate the of the Playing Pitch Strategy it is advised that the Steering Group, 
set up as part of the Playing Pitch Strategy project continues to work together to 
deliver the recommendations defined as part of this strategy. 
 
The Steering Group will: 

• Provide a clear indication of development and investment priorities for 
planning and funding purposes across Sheffield and illustrates clearly where 
investment should be targeted and why. This strategy will feed into the 
Sheffield Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), reflecting the city-wider 
priorities for pitch investment.  

 
• Provide innovative ways to link existing community assets/groups into the 

development of new identified projects ensuring that new projects are 
sustainable and embedded within communities. 

 
 

• Provide ways in which the development of new pitches link in to sport and 
wider health and social and community development agendas, in addition to 
sport agendas, including parks and open spaces strategies and education 
capital programmes. 

 
At a strategic level, the following key general recommendations have been 
identified for each of the sport typologies, as well as for general sports provision.  
 
General Playing Pitch Strategy Recommendations 
For further details and sport specific recommendations please see section 5 of the 

Page 46



Page 7 of 15 

background paper ‘Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy and Action Plan’ 
 
Recommendation G1: It is recommended that Sheffield City Council local planning 
policy continues to protect the provision of playing field sites under its jurisdiction, in 
order to reduce the risk of loss and subsequent impact on sport and physical activity 
provision. This includes any lapsed sites, currently disused sites or any school 
playing fields that were not marked out as formal pitches at the time the research for 
this study was undertaken (2019) and are therefore omitted from the report. This 
study does not support the disposing of any dormant or currently disused playing 
field sites (unless otherwise stated) without a full investigation into the possibility of 
the site being provided as additional supply for sporting activity. 

Where a site is to be lost, the future development plan for the site should meet one 
of the five policy exceptions identified in Sport England’s March 2018 issue of the 
Playing Fields Policy and Guidance, in that it should either be replaced or there 
should be strategic evidence to demonstrate that it is no longer needed. In addition, 
it is key that local authority planning policy supports the development of new, high-
quality sports provision required to meet the needs generated by major housing 
development and population growth. This policy and associated strategic planning 
are particularly key when existing provision cannot meet the growing need 
generated by an influx of new residents living in a single area. Therefore, it is 
recommended that the tools and guidance identified in this strategy are used to 
identify the typology and quantity of provision, as well as the overall strategic 
direction of sport facility development in the study area 

Recommendation G2: Work with local sports clubs to utilise the existing volunteer 
network across Sheffield and providing more autonomy for clubs, allowing those 
organisations that have adequate governance and financial stability to develop 
facilities and participation. 

 

Recommendation G3: Address the issue of poor ancillary and changing pavilion 
quality through the refurbishment and replacement of existing ancillary facilities, 
prioritising those on multi-pitch sites that are currently well used. Utilise the action 
plan to identify specific sites for enhancement 

 

Recommendation G4: Enhance the drainage and maintenance of both natural turf 
and artificial pitches at priority sites, to increase the pitch capacity to accommodate 
demand of current user clubs, especially on council-maintained pitches. Utilise the 
action plan to identify specific sites for enhancement. 

Page 47



Page 8 of 15 

Recommendation G5: Work with educational establishments that provide playing 
pitches for use by community teams, through artificial provision, to secure formal 
community use of pitches and ancillary facilities through a Community Use 
Agreement. Where these community use agreements currently exist, work with 
education establishments and users to ensure that requirements for community use 
are being enforced. 

 

Recommendation G6: Work with clubs based at Local Authority owned sites, to 
establish long-term security use agreements, ensuring that clubs and participants 
have security of use and are able to grow and develop through grant funding wider 
investment. 

Recommendation G7: Address site specific needs as identified in the action plan. 

Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy Action Plan 
Through a detailed supply and demand analysis of the sports included in the scope 
of the strategy, as well as stakeholder consultations across the study area, an action 
plan has been created, which will guide the steering group in their delivery of sports 
provision and facility decisions over the next 10 years. The action plan is broken 
down by site with clear owners, timescales and expected resources. For further 
detail see section 5.2 and table 5 in the background paper. 

The Playing Pitch Strategy Action Plan makes sport specific recommendations which 
Sheffield will work to deliver and implement, subject to further consultation (where 
necessary) to demonstrate there is still need and demand for certain projects.  
 
The Action Plan identifies potential sources of external funding which includes CIL 
monies, S106 funding and Community Grant Schemes. This is not an exhaustive list 
and could be extended to other sources, depending on availability. 
 
The Action Plan does not identify all those clubs that may be partners or provide 
resources in relation to its delivery.  It is assumed that where clubs have a long-
standing interest in a specific site that they will be a partner in delivering the actions 
and contribute financially or in-kind where appropriate. 
The Action Plan does not identify Sheffield City Council as a key resource either in 
terms of officer time or finance, except for those sites owned and/or managed by the 
Council.  However, the Council has an interest in all those projects delivered within 
the local authority area and may contribute towards them either financially or in-kind, 
as appropriate, and subject to available resources. It should be noted that not all 
sites have actions allocated to them, as it is unrealistic to expect funding partners to 
contribute to improvements at all facilities across a local authority.  
 
The Playing Pitch Strategy Steering Group should regularly review and refresh the 
Action Plan, taking account of any changes in pitch quality (and hence changes in 

Page 48



Page 9 of 15 

pitch capacity) and demand as well as new provision that has been created or any 
new negotiations for community use of education sites in the future. This should take 
place at least annually, although more frequent regular liaison with the steering 
group is recommended. 
 
All sport specific sections have been signed off by the relevant National Governing 
Body’s in discussions with sports clubs, Sport England, and Sheffield City Council.  

  
  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE? 
 (Explain how this proposal will contribute to the ambitions within the Corporate Plan 

and what it will mean for people who live, work, learn in or visit the city. For example, 
does it increase or reduce inequalities and is the decision inclusive?; does it have an 
impact on climate change?; does it improve the customer experience?; is there an 
economic impact?) 
 

2.1 This decision contributes to Our Sheffield priorities including 
• Strong and connected neighbourhoods which people are happy to call home 

– through improvements to the quality of green spaces 
• Healthy lives and wellbeing for al–through providing facilities that enable 

people to take part in sport and physical activity 
 
 
The Council is currently refining and resetting its strategic approach to leisure, 
physical activity, sport, and wellbeing. This is particularly important following the 
impact of the global pandemic and its impact on the leisure industry and behaviour in 
relation to sport and physical activity. 
 
The Council are committed to placing Sheffield at the forefront of sport, physical 
activity, leisure, and wellbeing in the UK. We want our facilities, activities, and 
services to be modern, welcoming, and inclusive to meet the needs of everybody in 
Sheffield. We have carried out a citywide consultation. The Council’s new Sport and 
Leisure Strategy will be a public facing document which summarises the public 
consultation findings and sets out a clear position and ambition for the future of 
Sport, Leisure and Physical Activity in the City which will guide redevelopment and 
investment over the next 10 years.   
 
Our Sport and Leisure Strategy will be underpinned by several themes and 
principles which will be considered in designing, planning, and delivering all the work 
that we do.  
 
 
➢ THEME 1 - INVESTING IN AN ACTIVE SHEFFIELD 

The Council will invest its available resources in high quality indoor and 
outdoor sport and leisure facilities, prioritising access for those with the least 
resources and reflecting the desire to minimise any impact on the 
environment. 

 
➢ THEME 2 - INSPIRING SPORTING ACHIEVEMENT 

The Council will ensure that major sporting events attract investment and 

Page 49



Page 10 of 15 

deliver social and economic benefits to Sheffield. Local sporting talent should 
reach their full potential through a network of support, coaching and quality 
facilities. 

 
➢ THEME 3 – ACTIVE COMMUNITIES 

The Council will focus on enabling local, enjoyable, and accessible 
opportunities for everyone be active in their own neighbourhood. We will 
particularly support those groups who are least likely to take part, such as 
older people, disabled people, and people with long term health conditions. 

 
➢ THEME 4 – ACTIVE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

The Council will work in partnership to enable positive experiences of physical 
activity for children and young people. This will support their physical health, 
mental wellbeing, personal and educational development. 

  
➢ THEME 5 – ACTIVE ENVIRONMENTS 

The Council will prioritise the design of safe, attractive, and environmentally 
sustainable places and routes across all neighbourhoods and communities. 
We will support active travel options and make it easier for people to be active 
in their everyday lives. 

 
➢ THEME 6 – CONNECTING HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

The Council will prioritise partnership working with local sport and physical 
activity organisations and health providers, promoting joined up thinking to 
support residents in moving more and feeling great.  

 
 
The Playing Pitch Strategy will sit alongside both the Sport and Leisure Strategy and 
the Leisure Investment Strategy to provide an evidence base for use in planning, 
investment, and sports development decisions.  
 
 

  
  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 The objectives contained within the Playing Pitch Strategy have been developed via 

a variety of consultation methods were used to collate information about leagues, 
clubs, county associations and national/regional governing bodies of sport. 
 
Local sports development officers, county associations and governing body officers 
advised which of the clubs to include in the face-to-face consultation. Sport England 
was also included within the consultation process prior to the project commencing. 
Issues identified by clubs returning surveys were followed up by telephone or face to 
face interviews.  
 
Consultation with Sports Clubs, National Governing Bodies of Sport, Schools, and 
Colleges have been involved in ongoing consultation throughout the development of 
the strategy.  
 

Page 50



Page 11 of 15 

Sheffield City Council also carried out a city wide consultation exercise in early 2022 
to help inform a new Sport and Leisure Strategy which will be launched later this 
year. The consultation focused on people’s current views about sport, leisure and 
physical activity, the impact of the pandemic, what would help them be more active, 
priorities in their local areas and where they would like to see investment. Feedback 
from this consultation included strong support for the protection of pitches, in 
particular cricket, the need to improve maintenance of football pitches and the need 
to identify hockey pitch provision, which link to recommendations within the Playing 
Pitch Strategy.  
 

  
  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality Implications 
  
4.1.1 The proposals identified within this report are expected to have positive equality of 

opportunity impacts as our consultation and subsequent investment in facilities will 
help to reduce barriers to participation and encourage more people to be more 
active, more often, especially those who do not currently use the facilities.  
An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for the project which identifies 
the Strategy as contributing to a number of our Equality Objectives including: 
 

• Understanding Communities – we will use the data and insight we collected 
as part of the Playing Pitch Strategy, Sport and Leisure Strategy consultation 
and future consultations to inform our decision making 

• Break the cycle of inequality and improve life chances - The Strategy will 
contribute to improving health and wellbeing and supports the development 
of additional facilities in line with community need and in areas that require 
new/additional facilities. This includes but is not limited to, pavilions, pitches, 
changing facilities etc. These new facilities will be designed with marginalised 
groups in mind e.g., women and girls, disabled people and children which 
improves access to sporting activity. 

 
  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 Implementation must be considered in the context of its financial implications and 

the need for some proposals to also meet planning considerations, within the context 
of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
The proposals within this strategy cannot be met within the existing budgets 
allocated to Leisure Services alone. The service will work with partners and 
stakeholders to identify appropriate additional sources of funding to deliver projects 
within the Strategy without the need for additional council funding. Delivery of this 
strategy is highly dependent on relationships and future collaboration between 
partners. Funding for new and improved sports pitches will be met by the respective 
site owners or through developer contributions (CIL and or Section 106 funding) and 
potentially external support from Sport England and sport’s National Governing 
Bodies (NGB’s). The Playing Pitch Strategy enables the council and clubs within the 

Page 51



Page 12 of 15 

city to seek funding from the NGBs.  
 

  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  
4.3.1 There is no legal requirement for the council to produce a playing pitch strategy. 

Under LGA 1972, s 111,  local authorities have a general power to do anything ‘which is 
calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to the discharge of any of their 
functions’. 
 
There are no legal implications at this stage other than the impact on Local Plan 
production should be noted. (See Planning implications section 4.5) 
 
 

  
4.4 Climate Implications 
  
4.4.1 This proposal will have positive climate implications and will support Sheffield City 

Council’s ambition to be a Net Zero City by 2030 through the protection of grass 
playing pitches which ensures good quality green and open space is retained 
benefitting nature and providing opportunity for flood alleviation. Any new facilities 
developed under the recommendations of the Playing Pitch Strategy will consider 
the following principles: 
 

• Ensure the use of sustainable construction methods 
• Identify opportunities to improve energy efficiency of facilities  
• Identify opportunities to promote and increase active travel and sustainable 

transport access to facilities 
• Consider opportunities for improving biodiversity where appropriate 

 
Artificial Grass Pitches – Sheffield City Council is currently progressing a project with 
the Football Foundation at Woodbourn Road Football Hub as part of research into 
which will test new more sustainable infill/ design solutions for artificial grass pitches. 
Learning from this pilot project will inform future artificial pitch installation. 

 
A full scored Climate Impact Assessment has not been completed at this strategy 
stage but will be completed for any projects delivered under the recommendations of 
this strategy. 

  
4.5 Other Implications 
  
4.5.1 
 
 

Planning Implications 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the reformed planning 
policies for England. It details how these changes are expected to be applied to the 
planning system.  It also provides a framework for local people and their councils to 
produce distinct local and neighbourhood plans, reflecting the needs and priorities of 
local communities. 

Page 52



Page 13 of 15 

 
As a prerequisite the NPPF states existing open space, sports, and recreation 
sites, including playing fields, should not be built on unless: 

 
• An assessment has been undertaken, which has clearly shown the site to be 

surplus to requirements. 
 

• The loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by 
equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable 
location. 

 
• The development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the 

needs for which clearly outweigh the loss. 
 
 
The Playing Pitch Strategy seeks to provide guidance for planning decisions made 
across Sheffield. By addressing the issues identified in the Assessment Report and 
using the strategic framework presented in this Strategy, the current and future 
sporting and recreational needs of Sheffield can be satisfied. The Strategy identifies 
where there is a deficiency in provision and identifies how best to resolve this in the 
future. 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework requires planning polices to be based on 
robust and up to date assessments of the need for open space, sport, and recreation 
facilities (including quantitative or qualitative deficits or surpluses) and opportunities 
for new provision. Information gained from the assessments should be used to 
determine what open space, sport and recreational provision is needed, what 
resources are needed, and which plans should then seek to accommodate. 

  
The Sheffield Playing Pitch Strategy fulfils this requirement and forms part of the 
evidence base for the Local Plan. There is both a reputational risk (through having 
commissioned an up-to-date assessment and then not taken its recommendations 
on board) and a risk of non-compliance with national planning policy, should the 
Playing Pitch Strategy not be adopted by the Council.  
 
Personnel Implications  
 
The council is required to ensure that the strategy is implemented and is kept up to 
date. Sport England and the sports’ governing bodies expect the Council to 
undertake an annual review, and this is essential to keep the Playing Pitch Strategy 
up to date. Resources to ensure this work takes place will be identified across the 
Sport, Leisure & Health and Parks and Countryside Service. 
 

  
  
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 The alternative option is to not adopt the Playing Pitch Strategy. This option is not 

recommended due to the following risks: 
 

Page 53



Page 14 of 15 

There is a risk that without an adopted strategy the council would be unable to 
negotiate effectively with developers where proposals have an impact on the 
provision of open space, sport and recreation facilities  
 
There is a risk that without an adopted strategy Sport England and the Sport’s 
Governing Bodies will not consider applications for external funding from the council 
or from any sports club within the city, and additionally if not kept up to date it would 
not be considered an up-to-date robust assessment needed to inform planning 
decisions.  
 

  
  
  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 The Playing Pitch Strategy for Sheffield provides a framework for 

improvement and, although resources may not currently be in place to 
implement it, partners and possible sources of external funding have been 
identified. Collaborative working, strong partnerships, and good local 
governance will be critical towards achieving strategic potential and future 
successes ahead.   
 

The Playing Pitch Strategy needs to be formally adopted by Sheffield City 
Council to provide the framework and inform the City’s future priorities in 
conjunction with Sport England and the sports NGB’s. By adopting this 
strategy, we can start to engage with a range of stakeholders to consider 
delivering key projects across Sheffield. These projects will align with 
local need and demand, therefore supporting effective and efficient use of 
resources.  

 
In moving forward, we need to be realistic about what is achievable, and 
who is best placed to deliver on the key aspects of the Strategy. The 
council will remain accountable for the delivery of the Playing Pitch 
Strategy and the Action Plan and providing expertise to seek resources to 
support that delivery.  

 
The Council will engage with partners to discuss the Playing Pitch 
Strategy action plan and how projects can be developed. The Strategy will 
be used to provide a robust evidence base to aid decision making in 
respect of future provision and management of grass pitches and built 
sports provision. The Steering Group will continue to meet, to ensure the 
delivery and implementation of the Playing Pitch Strategy 
recommendations and actions, as well as ensuring the evidence and data 
remain up to date. 
 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 54



Page 15 of 15 

 
 
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



 

 
  

Sheffield City Council Playing Pitch Strategy 
Strategy and Action Plan 

 

April 2022 

Page 57



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 2 of 75 

 
 
 

  

4global Consulting Terms of Reference 
 
Estimates and forecasts contained within this report are based on the data and information obtained at that 
time and the accuracy of resultant findings and recommendations is dependent on the quality of that data. 

 
The author(s) will not be held liable for any data provided by third party organisations as part of the Playing 
Pitch Strategy (PPS) delivery process. The data and recommendations have been conscientiously reviewed 
through the PPS governance process, with all data and information subject to a thorough check and 
challenge process via the Project Steering Group. Notwithstanding this, it has not been possible for the 
author to independently review every element of data provided by third parties.  
 Page 58



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 3 of 75 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 INTRODUCTION AND METHODOLOGY 5 

 STRATEGIC CONTEXT 11 

 KEY SUPPLY AND DEMAND FINDINGS 22 

 SCENARIO TESTING AND OPTIONS APPRAISAL 29 

 STRATEGIC RECOMMENDATIONS AND ACTION PLAN 39 

 DELIVERING THE PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY 66 

 GLOSSARY OF TERMS 72 

 

Page 59



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 4 of 75 

  

 

Section 1: Introduction and methodology 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 60



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 5 of 75 

 Introduction and methodology 

 Project scope and objectives 

 Sheffield City Council, hereby referred to as SCC, has commissioned 4global Consulting to 

prepare a Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS), to provide the council with a clear evidence base and 

guide future provision and management of new sports pitches and outdoor sports facilities in the 

Sheffield area in the context of national policy and local sports development criteria.  

 A PPS is a strategic assessment that provides an up to date analysis of supply and demand for 

playing pitches (grass and artificial) and outdoor sports facilities in the local authority. The 

strategy and the evidence base upon which it is based is delivered using national guidance and 

facility insight from specific Governing Bodies of Sport and the council. The assessment has 

focused on facilities used by the following sports: 

• Football 

• Rugby Union 

• Cricket  

• Hockey 

• Rugby League 

 Within these sports, the strategy will seek as far as is practical to include consideration of all 

forms of play, whether; 

• Club and league based (formal) play and training 

• Less formal programmed forms of the respective sports (e.g. turn up and play 

‘products’ such as Rush Hockey, Mash-up Football, Last Man Stands Cricket, and 

Touch Rugby) 

• Informal and un-programmed play by groups of residents, workers, students, school 

friends (out of school) 

 The PPS will provide a holistic analysis of sports facilities across the Study Area, leading to a 

comprehensive set of recommendations for the future development of facilities, in line with the 

needs of local residents. 

 The consultant team has worked with the council and PPS steering group to provide a strategy 

that is fit-for-purpose and addresses the specific issues and risks for the area. It is key that this 

PPS reflects the local context and enables the council to maximise the amount of high quality 

sporting provision for its residents, while understanding the need to meet planning and housing 

requirements. The Strategy will therefore aim to deliver against the following drivers: 

• To ensure that the district has an up-to-date framework for the prioritisation, 

provision and development of sports facilities across the public, private and 

independent sectors. 

• Support the implementation of the Council’s adopted local plan policies relating to 

the protection, enhancement and provision of community sport and physical activity 

facilities and provide an evidence based framework to support negotiations with 

developers who may provide funding or other assistance to improve local provision 

Page 61



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 6 of 75 

• The identification of deficiencies and opportunities for improvement will set the 

context for decisions about the priority and delivery of local sports/physical activity 

facilities in the district. 

• Provide a robust evidence base to support funding bids from National Sports bodies 

like Sport England and National Governing Bodies (NGB’s) of sport.   

• Ensure that a planned approach to sport and physical activity facilities takes place 

in Sheffield now and up to 2039 (the timeframe for the forthcoming Local Plan), 

ensuring that the district community has access to high quality facilities, helping 

communities to increase their levels of physical activity, improve their health and 

remain cohesive.  

 

 Methodology 

 The assessment methodology adopted for the PPS follows the published guidance from Sport 

England. The guidance used is the 2013 version, Playing Pitch Strategy Guidance – An 

Approach to Developing and Delivering a Playing Pitch Strategy1. Figure 1 summarises the 

approach proposed in this guidance and is broken down into 10 steps. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

1 https://www.sportengland.org/media/3522/pps-guidance-october-2013-updated.pdf 

Page 62



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 7 of 75 

 

Figure 1.1: Developing and Delivering a Playing Pitch Strategy – The 10 Step Approach (Sport 
England, 2013) 

 

 The findings in this report are based on data collected from several credible sources, including 

but not limited to; 

• Local authority and public policy strategic documentation; 

• Sport England tools, including Active Places Power, the Active Lives Survey and 

the Playing Pitch Calculator; 

• Stakeholder consultation, including WHBC Officers and Members, Sport England, 

relevant National Governing Bodies of Sport, key user clubs; and 

• Site visits, undertaken at all sites across the Study Area.  

 To facilitate information gathering and help ensure PPS reports are based on a robust evidence 

base, 4global has developed an online data entry and assessment platform (see example 

below), which contains all site and club information. This will enable the council and PPS 

Steering Group to keep supply and demand information and the strategy up to date throughout 

the delivery of the strategy. 

 

 

 

1. Prepare and tailor the 
approach

2. Gather supply 
information and views

3. Gather demand 
information and views

4. Understand the 
situation at individual 

sites

5. Develop the future 
and current pictures of 

provision

6. Identify the key 
findings

7. Develop the 
recommendations & 

action plan

8. Write and adopt the 
strategy

9. Apply & deliver the 
strategy

10. Keep the strategy 
robust

Page 63



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 8 of 75 

 

 

 

Figure 1.2 - 4global’s Online Playing Pitch Platform  

 

 

 A Project Steering Group comprising representation from the council, Sport England and 

National Governing Bodies of Sport (NGBs) has guided the study from its commencement. At 

critical milestones, the Steering Group members have reviewed and verified the data and 

information collected to allow the work to proceed efficiently through each stage. 

 The PPS Steering Group will continue to help guide preparation of the PPS through to its 

adoption and subsequent delivery and implementation. 

 

 
  

Page 64



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 9 of 75 

 Report structure 

 The structure of the PPS report is as follows  

• Section 1 – Introduction and Methodology 

• Section 2 – Strategic Context 

• Section 3 – Sport-Specific Supply and Demand Assessment 

 Supporting information is included in the appendices and referenced throughout. 

 In addition to this needs assessment, a strategy document has also been produced, which 

provides scenario testing which helps inform future recommendations, and a site by site action 

plan for key sites across the local authority.  

=  

Page 65



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 10 of 75 

  

 

Section 2: Strategic context 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 66



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 11 of 75 

 Strategic Context 

 The Study Area 

 The Study Area (Sheffield City) has 28 wards that are grouped into 7 Local Area Committees 

each made up of 4 wards. The 7 Local Area Committees form the sub areas for the PPS, 

providing more local analysis areas for the purposes of reporting. 

 Each Local Area Committees co-ordinates a number of neighbourhood projects that tackle 

agreed ‘strategies’ priorities which contribute to the ward priorities, improve or integrate service 

delivery and increase community resilience.  

 The Local Area Committees are based on the following areas: 

• Central: covers Hillsborough, Broomhill and Sharrow Vale, Walkley and City wards. 

• East: covers Darnall, Park and Arbourthorne, Manor Castle and Richmond wards. 

• North East: covers Southey, Shiregreen and Brightside, Firth Park and Burngreave 

wards.   

• Northern: covers Stannington, Stocksbridge and Upper Don, West Ecclesfield and 

East Ecclesfield wards.  

• South: covers Nether Edge and Sharrow Vale, Beauchief and Greenhill, Gleadless 

and Graves wards.  

• South East: covers Woodhouse, Beighton, Mosborough and Birley wards. 

• South West: covers Dore and Totley, Fulwood, Crookes and Ecclesall wards.  

Figure 2.1 - Sheffield Sub Areas 

 

Page 67



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 12 of 75 

 City of Sheffield 

 Sheffield is a city and metropolitan borough in South Yorkshire, England. It covers an area of 

367.94 square kilometres.  

 Sheffield lies directly beside Rotherham, from which it is separated largely by the M1 motorway. 

Although Barnsley Metropolitan Borough also borders Sheffield to the north, the town itself is a 

few miles further away. The southern and western borders of the city are shared with 

Derbyshire. Directly to the west of the city are the Peak District National Park and the Pennine 

upland range, while the lowlands of the South Yorkshire Coalfield lie to the east.  The city 

nestles in a natural amphitheatre created by several hills and the confluence of five rivers: Don, 

Sheaf, Rivelin, Loxley and Porter. As such, much of the city is built on hillsides with views into 

the city centre or out to the countryside. 

 The population of the City of Sheffield is around 584,853 and it is one of the eight largest 

regional English cities that make up the Core Cities Group. Sheffield is the third-largest English 

district by population. The metropolitan population of Sheffield is 1,569,000. 

 
Table 2.1: City of Sheffield Mid-Year Population Estimates 2 

Total Population Aged 0-15 
Working age 
population 

Aged 65+ Dependency ratio 

577,780 104,640 380,205 92,935 0.52 

49.7% male; 
50.3% female 

18.1% (England 
average = 19.1%) 

65.8% (England 
average = 62.8%) 

16.1% (England 
average = 18.0%) 

England average 
= 0.59 

 
 

 The "UK Cities Monitor 2008" placed Sheffield among the top ten "best cities to locate a 

business today", the city occupying third and fourth places respectively for best office location 

and best new call centre location. The same report places Sheffield in third place regarding 

"greenest reputation" and second in terms of the availability of financial incentives. 

 Sheffield has an international reputation for metallurgy and steel-making. Playing a crucial role 

in the Industrial Revolution, the city became an industrial powerhouse in the 18th century, and 

was dubbed "Steel City. Further innovations continue, with new advanced manufacturing 

technologies and techniques being developed on the Advanced Manufacturing Park by 

Sheffield's universities and other independent research organisations. Organisations located on 

the AMP include the Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre (AMRC, a research partnership 

between the Boeing Company and the University of Sheffield), Castings Technology 

International (CTI), The Welding Institute (TWI), Rolls-Royce plc and McLaren Automotive.  

 Forgemasters, founded in 1805, is the sole remaining independent steel works in the world and 

dominates the north east of Sheffield around the Lower Don Valley. The firm has a global 

reputation for producing the largest and most complex steel forgings and castings and is 

certified to produce critical nuclear components, with recent projects including the Royal Navy's 

Astute-class submarines. The firm also has the capacity for pouring the largest single ingot (570 

tonnes) in Europe and is currently in the process of expanding its capabilities.  

 
 
2 Source: Mid-Year Estimates (ONS) 2017 

Page 68

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/City_status_in_the_United_Kingdom
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Metropolitan_borough
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/South_Yorkshire
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rotherham
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/M1_motorway
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Metropolitan_Borough_of_Barnsley
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Derbyshire
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Peak_District
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pennines
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/South_Yorkshire_Coalfield
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/River_Don,_South_Yorkshire
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/River_Sheaf
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/River_Rivelin
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/River_Loxley
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Porter_Brook
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Core_Cities_Group
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_English_districts_by_population
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Call_centre
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Industrial_Revolution
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Steel_City
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Advanced_Manufacturing_Park
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Boeing_Company
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/University_of_Sheffield
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/The_Welding_Institute
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rolls-Royce_plc
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/McLaren_Automotive
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sheffield_Forgemasters
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Steel_works
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lower_Don_Valley
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Royal_Navy
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Astute_class_submarine


   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 13 of 75 

 While iron and steel have long been the main industries of Sheffield, coal mining has also been 

a major industry, particularly in the outlying areas, and the Palace of Westminster in London 

was built using limestone from quarries in the nearby village of Anston. Other areas of 

employment include call centres, the City Council, universities and hospitals.  

 A number of current strategic polices, strategies and factors influence current and future supply 

and demand for sport and recreation facilities in the City. As well as providing the context for 

future facility provision, e.g. health improvement, improving accessibility and increasing 

participation, these strategies also provide opportunities to link priority areas and needs, and 

ensure that outcomes are aligned with identified local objectives. The relevant strategies and 

policies include: 

 

 

  

 Draft Sheffield Local Plan 

 Sheffield City Council are working on a new draft Sheffield Local Plan, which will guide the 

future of the city, by setting out, how and where development will take place up to 2039. The 

council are calling it the ‘Sheffield Plan’ and, once it has been adopted, it will replace the 

Sheffield Core Strategy (2009) and ‘saved’ policies in the Sheffield Unitary Development Plan 

(1998). 

 Policies in the Draft Sheffield Local Plan, when it is adopted, will help shape the kind of place 

that Sheffield will be in the future (to 2039). The Sheffield Strategic Housing Market Assessment 

2013 is currently being updated. The evidence contained within this PPS will help inform 

relevant sport and housing policies. 

 Evidence in the PPS will support the implementation of key existing Local Plan Policies such as 

those in the current Core Strategy Policy CS15 Locations for Large Leisure and Cultural 

Developments, Policy CS21 The Boulevard of Sport, Policy CS45 Quality and Accessibility of 

Open Space, Policy CS46 Quantity of Open Space, Policy CS47 Safeguarding of Open Space, 

Policy CS48 Open Space and Riversides in the City Centre, Policy CS49 Education and Leisure 

in the Upper Don Valley, Policy CS50 Parkwood Springs and the Parkwood Landfill Site, Policy 

Sheffield Local Plan Adopted 
March 2009.

Draft Sheffield Plan issues 
and options to be Published 

2020. This will set out 
options for how Sheffield 
could meet its housing 

needs.

Sheffield Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 2019 –

2024.

Sheffield Great Outdoors 
Green and Open space 
Strategy 2010 – 2030.

Creating a culture of physical 
activity in Sheffield “Move More” is 

a Sheffield-wide strategy that 
aims to make Sheffield the most 

active city in the UK by 2020.

Sheffield Playing Pitch 
Strategy 2013.

Sheffield City Partnership 
Board “State of Sheffield 

2018”.

Sheffield City Region 
Transport Strategy 2018 –

2040.

Sheffield the Outdoor City 
Economic Strategy.

Yorkshire Sport Foundation 
Strategy and Business Plan

Page 69

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Coal_mining
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Palace_of_Westminster
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Limestone
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Quarry
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Anston
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Call_centre
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/City_Council


   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 14 of 75 

CS64 Climate Change Resources and Sustainable Design of Developments and Policy CS65 

Renewable Energy and Carbon Reduction. 

 Population Profiles and Projections 

 The current and future population profile of Sheffield City and the locations of growth are 

important to understand in relation to planning for the future provision of sport and physical 

activity. 

 The 2017 ONS mid-year estimate population is 577,778 with continued growth projected 

through to 2038.  

Table 2.2: Population Projections 2017-2038 

Sheffield City - Population Projections 2017-2038 

Population 2017 577,778 

Increase in population 2017 to 2038 59,312 

Projected population in 2038 
637,090 (Figure supplied by Sheffield City 
Council). 

% Population Change 2017 to 2038 10.3% 

Change in Households 2017 to 2038 Information Required 

% Change in Households 2017 to 
2038 

Information Required 

 

Map 2.1: Population 2017 by LSOA’s 

  

Page 70



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 15 of 75 

 According to the population projections, there will be more males than females in Sheffield from 

2023 onwards. Longer life expectancy has meant that there are currently over 3,000 more 

females than males living in the city. Increases in life expectancy for men coupled with higher 

male in-migration will result in this change and by 2023 the number females and males are 

projected to be similar. By 2038 males will make up a larger percentage of the population at 

50.1%.  

 There is a clear bulge in the population in the 20 to 24 age group. This is caused by Sheffield’s 

significant student population at its two universities. 

 Figures also suggest that the number of people aged over 65 will grow by 42% in the next 25 

years, whilst the number of those aged 85 and over will more than double. 

 Sheffield is an ethnically diverse city, with around 19% of its population from black or minority 

ethnic groups. The largest of those groups is the Pakistani community, but Sheffield also has 

large Caribbean, Indian, Bangladeshi, Somali, Yemeni and Chinese communities. 

 More recently, Sheffield has seen an increase in the number of overseas students coming to the 

city and in the number economic migrants from European Union ascension states (countries 

which joined the European Union in or after 2004). 

 

Map 2.2: Sheffield City population density, 2017 

 

 

Page 71



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 16 of 75 

 Population Profile - Deprivation 

 Sheffield City is ranked as the 57th most deprived local authority in England (2019 Indices of 

Multiple Deprivation) out of a total of 317 local authorities (in 2015 Sheffield ranked 60th). 

Sheffield was the 2nd least deprived when compared with other core cities in England.  

 23.8% nearly a quarter of Sheffield’s LSOAs are in the most deprived 10% nationally. Sheffield 

ranks 30th compared to all other local authorities in England on this measure (Sheffield ranked 

26th in 2015). 

 As well as a slight increase in the proportion of LSOAs falling into the most deprived decile, 

there was a slight reduction in the LSOAs in the least deprived 10% in 2019 compared with 

2015. In 2019 5 of Sheffield’s LSOAs (1.4%) are in the bottom 1% nationally. This compares to 

3 in 2015 (0.8%). 

 33% of households have no access to a car or a van, 42.5% have access to at least one car or 

van3. 

 Map 2.4 shows the areas of deprivation in the City; the darker colours are the areas of highest 

deprivation. 

 
Map 2.4: Index of multiple deprivation by LSOA 2019, Sheffield City

 

 

 

 
 
3 ONS Census 2011 

Page 72



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 17 of 75 

 Health Profile (2019) 

 The health of people in Sheffield is varied compared with the England average. Sheffield is one 

of the 20% most deprived districts/unitary authorities in England and 23.2% (23,095) of children 

live in low income families. Life expectancy for both men and women is lower than the England 

average. 

 Key factors from the Public Health England (PHE) Health profile 2017 are: 

• Life expectancy is 9.3 years lower for men and 8.3 years lower for women in the most 
deprived areas of Sheffield than in the least deprived areas. 

• In Year 6, 21.1% (1,270) of children are classified as obese.  
• The rate for alcohol-specific hospital admissions among those under 18 is 17, better 

than the average for England. This represents 20 admissions per year 
• Levels of GCSE attainment (average attainment 8 score) and smoking in pregnancy 

are worse than the England average.  
• Levels of breastfeeding are better than the England average. 
• The rate for alcohol-related harm hospital admissions is 700, worse than the average 

for England. This represents 3,603 admissions per year.  
• The rate for self-harm hospital admissions is 125, better than the average for England. 

This represents 765 admissions per year.  
• Estimated levels of physically active adults (aged 19+) are better than the England 

average.  
• The rates of hip fractures in older people (aged 65+) and new sexually transmitted 

infections are better than the England average.  
• The rates of statutory homelessness, violent crime (hospital admissions for violence), 

under 75 mortality rate from cardiovascular diseases, under 75 mortality rate from 
cancer and employment (aged 16-64) are worse than the England average 

 

SUMMARY OF KEY DEMOGRAPHIC FACTORS AND THEIR IMPLICATIONS 

 Table 2.2 summarises the demographic profile of Sheffield City, reflecting the overall 

demographic analysis and factors for the City as discussed above. 

Table 2.2: Summary of Sheffield City – Demographic Profile 

Summary of Sheffield’s localities – Demographic profile 

 

Local 
Description 

• Sheffield City consists of twenty-seven wards. 

• Sheffield City has 577,778 residents.  

 

Population 
Profile 

• 2017 population of 577.778 (ONS Mid-Year 

estimates 2017) with 

• 18.1% aged 0 – 15 years 

• 65.8% of the population aged 16-64 years and  

• 16.1% classed as 65+ 

• The 2038 projected population is expected to be 

637,090. 

• Population will grow by 10.3% by 2038 

• The City has a significant number of older people 

and this trend will continue to rise.  

Page 73



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 18 of 75 

Summary of Sheffield’s localities – Demographic profile 

 

 
 

Ethnicity • 80.8% White British, 19.2% BAME 

 

Housing • Information Required 

 

Deprivation 

 

• Index of Multiple Deprivation: 201,109 – 34.8% 

(England average = 20.0%) 

• Income Domain: 196,310 – 34.0% (England 

average = 20.1%) 

• Employment domain: 203,019 – 35.1% (England 

average = 19.6%)  

• Education domain: 215,294 – 37.3% (England 

average = 19.9%) 

• Health domain: 213,821 – 37.0% (England 

average = 19.6%) 

• Barriers to Housing and Services domain: 34,267 

– 5.9% (England average = 21.4%) 

• Living environment domain: 95,927 – 16.6% 

(England average = 21.0%) 

• Crime domain: 206,282 – 35.7% (England 

average = 20.5%) 

 
 
 
 
  

 

 
 

Car Ownership 
• 42.5% of the population has access to at least 

one car; 33% has no access to a car.  

 

Health 

• Overall health better than the national average 

 

• Sheffield Physical Activity and Health statistics are 

higher than the regional and national averages.  

 

• 23.7% of adults are categorised as overweight 

this is lower than the regional average (24.1%) 

and the national (24.1%) average.  

 

• 21.1% of children are classed as obese (Year 6), 

lower than the regional (20%) and the national 

(20%) average   

 

 

 Physical activity and participation: the intrinsic value of participation 

 The value of participation in sport and physical activity is significant, and its contribution to 

individual and community quality of life should not be underestimated. This is true for both 

younger and older people; participation in sport and physical activity delivers: 

Page 74



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 19 of 75 

• Opportunities for physical activity, and therefore more ‘active living’; 
• Health benefits – cardiovascular, stronger bones, mobility; 
• Health improvement; 
• Social benefits – socialisation, communication, inter-action, regular contact, 

stimulation. 
 

 In addition, participation in sport and physical activity can facilitate the learning of new skills, 

development of individual and team ability / performance, and provide a ‘disciplined’ 

environment in which participants can ‘grow’ and develop. 

 The benefits of regular and active participation in sport and physical activity will be important to 

promote in relation to future sport, leisure and physical activity in Sheffield. 

 There is an existing audience in the City, which already recognises the advantages of 

participation, and a latent community who are ready to take part. The sport, physical activity and 

leisure offer in the City can support the delivery of the desired outcomes across a number of 

City Strategic priorities and objectives. 

 

 Current participation rates 

 In terms of the Public Health England definition for physical activity (150 minutes or equivalent 

of at least moderate intensity activity per week) 65.7% of adults aged 16+ years are classed as 

being active. 

 

Table 2.3: Physically active and inactive adults 4 

Rate Sheffield Yorkshire England 

% Active 65.7% 60.6% 62.6% 

 

 The Sport England Active Lives Survey shows that participation levels in Sheffield are higher 

those at national level: 

 

 
 

 
4 Active Lives survey 2017 - 2018 

65.7% of adults (16+) report 
undertaking 150 minutes of 
moderate intensity physical 

activity compared to the 
national average of 62.6%

77.8 % of Sheffield 
residents aged 16+ took part 
in sport and physical activity 
at least twice in the 28 days 

prior to the survey being 
undertaken;

6.2% of Sheffield’s  
population is inactive – i.e. 
they had undertaken less 
than 30 minutes physical 

activity or sport in the last 28 
days

This data further highlights 
that whilst many in the City 
are physically active, the 

regularity of this could still 
increase, and there is just 

under a fifth of the 

Page 75



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 20 of 75 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

Section 3: Key Supply and Demand Findings 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 76



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 21 of 75 

  

 

Section 3: Key Supply and Demand Findings 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 77



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 22 of 75 

 Key supply and demand findings 

 This section summarises the key findings identified within the needs assessment, which 

should be used as the evidence base for this strategy. A comprehensive supply and demand 

analysis has been undertaken for all sports across the study area, with the project steering 

group engaged at all stages of the process. 

 The following section provides a summary of the key findings for each of the sports analysed 

within the main report. The format of these tables follows the five key questions that are 

asked as part of the PPS Guidance Document for Stages A – C of the process.  

 Football key findings 

Table 3.1 – Key PPS findings for football in Sheffield 

Key Question Analysis 

What are the main 
characteristics of 
the current supply 
and demand for 
provision? 

The quality of football provision across the Study Area is high, with 95% of the total 
pitches scoring as Standard or good as part of the assessment. However, there is a 
significant decrease in the number of good quality pitches compared to 2013, 
indicating maintenance regimes could be an issue. 
 
The ownership and management of the 156 football sites in the area is clearly 
dominated by the Local Authority, followed by Education sites. The level of demand 
has stayed at a relatively consistent level, with major clubs continuing to grow, offset 
by the contraction of demand for smaller affiliated adult’s teams. The majority of 
demand for football facilities is concentrated within the East and Northern sub-areas 
with 45% of the total demand (356 of the 794 total teams in Sheffield) taking place 
within these sub-areas. The sub-area with the least amount of demand identified (59 
teams) is North East.  The club to team ratio in Sheffield is 1:4.13 (around 4 teams per 
club), which is higher than the national average of 1:3.3. 
 

Is there enough 
accessible 
community use 
provision to meet 
current demand? 

The current supply and demand analysis for available pitch provision shows a large 
amount of spare capacity across the Study Area for Adult and Mini 7v7 football, with a 
small amount of spare capacity for Youth 9v9 and large deficits for Youth 11v11 and 
Mini 5v5 football.  
 
Given the significant level of spare capacity for Adult and Mini 7v7 and the deficit for 
Youth 11v11 and Mini 5v5 identified as part of the assessment, the provision of mobile 
goals and the potential reconfiguration of sites and pitches is recommended in order 
to better address the demand for Youth Football and Mini Soccer in the district. 
Through consultation with local clubs, a need for better and additional 3G training 
facilities was also identified. 
 

Is the provision that 
is accessible of 
sufficient quality 
and appropriately 
maintained? 

While some of the key clubs have identified issues with drainage and maintenance, as 
well as ancillary facilities that require upgrading, the overall quality of facilities and the 
robustness of maintenance regimes is good. There is a low number of poor quality 
pitches within Sheffield, only 5% of the total. 
 

What are the main 
characteristics of 
the future supply 
and demand for 
provision? 

With a significant projected growth in population during the lifetime of the study and 
some level of latent demand identified, the requirement for football pitches is likely to 
increase, with 81 additional teams projected as part of the future demand analysis, 
which equates to 41 MES to be accommodated.   
 
This demand is projected to be particularly significant in the East and Northern sub-
areas, for both grass and artificial provision, given the projected growth of 19 (18.26) 
teams respectively. 
 
The largest growth across the study area is projected to be realised in the Adult and 
Youth 11v11 categories, with an expected increase of 25 and 20 teams respectively. 
The supply of provision is also likely to change, with the development of new 3G 
provision being a priority for the area (new full-sized 3G AGP recently developed and 

Page 78



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 23 of 75 

Key Question Analysis 

Handsworth Junior Sporting Club and a high possibility of an additional one developed 
at High Storrs within the next year), as well as the potential development of hub sites. 

Is there enough 
accessible 
community use 
provision to meet 
future demand? 

The future supply and demand analysis for available pitch provision shows that the 
current deficits for Youth 11v11 and Mini 5v5 are expected to increase by the end of 
the strategy, while the spare capacity for Adult and Mini 7v7 is projected to be slightly 
reduced. The current small surplus of 9v9 football provision is expected to be 
converted into a deficit by the end of this strategy. 
 
Spatially, the sub-areas with the highest future projected deficit are the Central and 
East sub-areas. 
 

 

 Cricket key findings 

 This section summarises the findings from the cricket analysis, which will form the basis of 

the recommendation and action plan section for Sheffield. 

Table 3.2 – Key PPS findings for cricket in Sheffield 

Key Question Analysis 

What are the 
main 
characteristics 
of the current 
supply and 
demand for 
provision? 

The quality of cricket provision across the study area is adequate, with the majority 
of facilities scoring as Standard or Good as part of the assessment. There is a total 
of 40 cricket pitches across Sheffield, with a higher concentration of supply in the 
South West and Northern sub-areas, with 13 and 9 pitches respectively. There is no 
cricket provision within the Central sub-area. 
 
The level of demand for cricket across Sheffield is high, with 42 clubs in the area 
comprising a total of 178 teams. The largest clubs in the study area are Hallam CC 
(24 teams), Sheffield Collegiate CC (18 teams) and Hollinsend Methodist CC (13 
teams). The vast majority of cricket demand is also concentrated within the South 
West and Northern sub-areas.  
  

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured 
community use 
provision to 
meet current 
demand? 

There are two sites that were identified as unsecured as part of the assessment, 
Castle Dyke Playing Fields and HSBC Sports Club, and these are not used by 
cricket clubs for formal fixtures. 
 
Over the time of preparing this PPS two sites have been lost to Cricket. 
 
The supply and demand analysis for secured provision shows, there is a deficit of 
grass wicket provision of 813 match equivalents per season.  
Peak time analysis demonstrates that 69% of cricket sites in Sheffield have no spare 
capacity in the peak period for adult cricket (Sat PM), and 41% of sites have no 
spare capacity for Junior Cricket (Sun AM).  
  

Is the provision 
that is 
accessible of 
sufficient quality 
& appropriately 
maintained? 

The quality of cricket provision across the study area is adequate, with the majority 
of facilities scoring as Standard or Good as part of the assessment. The lowest 
scoring pitches were the ones located at Fox Lane Playing Fields, Graves Park, 
Sheffield Transport Sports Club and Sheffield Works Department Sports & Social 
Club. 

What are the 
main 
characteristics 
of the future 
supply and 
demand for 
provision? 

The future demand for cricket is projected to increase in the East, Northern, South, 
South East and South West sub-areas, given the concentration of demand that 
occurs in these areas. The low current level of demand and the very small change in 
population projected in the North East sub-area is not sufficient to generate any new 
teams, and due to the lack of supply and demand in the Central sub-area, there is 
no future demand projected for this area.  
 
A total of 18 additional teams are expected to be generated through population 
change in Sheffield by 2038, in addition to the 12 projected teams identified as part 

Page 79



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 24 of 75 

Key Question Analysis 

of the latent demand analysis. Although it is known that this has already been 
exceeded. 
Women and girl’s cricket is a priority area for the ECB and the number of female 
teams in Sheffield (9 women’s and 3 girls in 2016) is expected to increase 
significantly over the lifetime of the Strategy, some of which has already been 
realised. In turn, this will increase the future requirement for playing, practice and 
associated changing facilities for women and girls. 
  

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured 
community use 
provision to 
meet future 
demand? 

With the projected increase in demand from both population growth, women and 
girls’ and conversion of latent demand, as well as the expected growth that will be 
realised following the success of All Stars Cricket, Dynamo’s Cricket, Softball Cricket 
and South Asian initiatives, the increase in demand is likely to have a significant 
impact on the level of demand for cricket across Sheffield. For example, in 2016 
there were three women’s clubs playing hardball cricket, and by 2022 36 women’s 
clubs playing hardball and softball cricket.  Due to the increase of teams in club 
cricket the impact has shown less availability for South-Asian development who 
would usually play from a Nomadic base.   There are difficulties across the city with 
protecting non-turf pitches from vandalism and there is a clear shortfall of fine turf.  
While the PPS was being drafted the sub-area analysis demonstrated that, the 
overall provision in the city was sufficient, however, this position has moved on 
rapidly. There are now shortfalls across the City. 
 
Given that the current analysis identifies that 65% of the sites are currently at 
capacity during peak times of demand (based on 2016 data), it is now known that 
peak-time capacity will be further significantly reduced over the lifespan of the 
strategy. This could be addressed by either bringing lapsed or disused sites back 
into use; bringing private sites that landowners have closed back into use; providing 
new sites for cricket, or displacing some demand from sites at capacity to nearby 
sites with spare peak-time capacity if practicable. 
 
It is recognised that new development close to playing fields could prejudice their 
use and no development should be allowed within an area of risk of ball strike 
unless ball strike risk is considered and, if appropriate, mitigation is provided. 
 

 Rugby Union key findings 

 This section summarises the findings from the rugby analysis, which will form the basis of 

the recommendation and action plan section for Sheffield. 

Table 3.3 – Key PPS findings for rugby in Sheffield 

Key Question Analysis 

What are the 
main 
characteristics 
of the current 
supply and 
demand for 
provision? 

The quality of grass pitch provision across the Study Area for rugby is high, with only 
four out of the total 34 pitches in the area scoring Poor for maintenance (junior pitches 
at Dore Moor Ground, Sheffield Park Academy and Tapton Academy, and the Senior 
Pitch at Niagara Conference and Leisure Centre) and the vast majority (25) having 
either pipe drained or pipe and slit drained drainage and Good maintenance. The only 
pitch that is utilised for rugby and was identified with inadequate natural drainage as 
part of the assessment is the Senior pitch at Dore Moor Ground, which affects the site’s 
carrying capacity.  
 
It should also be highlighted that 16 out of 34 rugby pitches are located at educational 
establishments, and 3 of these are not available for community use (Sheffield Park 
Academy, Tapton Academy and Yewlands Technology College). 
There are 13 rugby clubs based in Sheffield, with Sheffield RFC and Mosborough RFC 
being the key clubs in the area with 20 and 14 teams respectively, including adult and 
junior rugby.  
 

Page 80



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 25 of 75 

Key Question Analysis 

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured 
community use 
provision to 
meet current 
demand 

There is a currently a large deficit for secured and accessible rugby provision in 
Sheffield, which is primarily caused by the significant deficits at Mosborough Miners 
Welfare and Norton Playing Fields, with Abbeydale Sports Ground currently operating 
at capacity as well. 
 
There is a very limited amount of spare capacity for adult rugby during the peak period 
at club sites, given that all of club demand is currently on these sites, and this is likely to 
remain an issue as generally rugby clubs prefer to focus meeting their needs on club 
sites even if capacity is available on school sites to avoid club fragmentation. A need for 
additional match and training provision has been identified as part of this study, as well 
as the implementation of formal community use agreements in order to increase the 
level of capacity for secured provision. 
 

Is the provision 
that is 
accessible of 
sufficient quality 
and 
appropriately 
maintained? 

With the exception of Niagara Conference and Leisure Centre, the remaining sites that 
are used for rugby have standard or good rated maintenance procedures, which 
ensures grass pitches are maintained to a good quality. Given the level of demand at 
club sites, this is sometimes not enough to ensure pitches are of a high quality all year 
round, with wet weather and high demand causing waterlogging at some points during 
the year. 
 
The Junior pitch at Dore Moor Ground, which is home to Sheffield Tigers, was identified 
as Poor and needs improved maintenance in order to increase carrying capacity and 
address the current issue of overplay. 
 

What are the 
main 
characteristics 
of the future 
supply and 
demand for 
provision 

Future analysis indicates that rugby demand is likely to increase slightly as a 
consequence of population change in the area, as well as the conversion of latent 
demand into actual demand over the life of the strategy. A total of 8 (7.6) new teams 
was identified as part of the analysis.  
 
Women and girl’s rugby demand is projected to increase, in line with the RFU’s national 
strategic priorities. Referencing the significant amount of overplay already present, it is 
of paramount importance that this is addressed when considering the increased 
demand expected. 
 
The level of supply is potentially likely to change, with Sheffield RFC expressing their 
intentions to develop additional provision at Abbeydale Sports Ground, as well as 
potential for development of an additional grass pitch at Norton Playing Fields.  
 

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured 
community use 
provision to 
meet future 
demand 

The future demand for rugby is projected to increase slightly across the Study Area, 
with the current deficit for secured provision likely to increase further over the lifetime of 
the strategy. Further capacity is required to meet the current and future needs of local 
residents.  
 
The strategy document to be delivered alongside this needs assessment will contain 
detailed scenario testing, in order to establish whether the current pitch stock could 
better meet the needs of local clubs and participants, if maintenance, drainage or 
ancillary facilities were to be improved. 
 

 

  

Page 81



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 26 of 75 

 Hockey key findings 

 This section summarises the findings from the hockey analysis, which will form the basis of 

the recommendation and action plan section for Sheffield. 

Table 3.4 – Key PPS findings for hockey in Sheffield 

Key Question Analysis 

What are the 
main 
characteristics 
of the current 
supply and 
demand for 
provision? 

 There are six hockey sites in Sheffield, all of which are available for community 

use, five of which are full-sized, and three sites have been identified as 

unsecured for long-term use. These are Meadowhead School, Newfield School 

(not full sized) and Westfield Sports Centre/College. 

 

There are eight hockey clubs using hockey facilities in Sheffield. The largest club in the 
area is Sheffield HC, with a total of 28 teams, followed by Chapeltown HC with 13 and 
Sheffield University Bankers HC with 10. 
 

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured 
community use 
provision to 
meet current 
demand 

Three of the six hockey pitches in Sheffield lack security of long term community access 
and therefore the analysis shows that there is insufficient secured hockey provision 
across the area to meet current levels of demand. 
 
Abbeydale Sports Club and Norton Playing Fields – the most heavily used sites in the 
area - are currently overplayed or at capacity during peak times of demand. 
  

Is the provision 
that is 
accessible of 
sufficient quality 
and 
appropriately 
maintained? 

The quality of hockey facilities in Sheffield is high, with all AGPs in the area scoring as 
Good or Standard and no poor facilities identified as part of the study (based on 2016 
data). All hockey facilities in Sheffield are floodlit. 
 
The lowest scoring pitch in the area was the one located at Ecclesfield Secondary 
School, which has now been converted to 3G, and the highest scoring facility is the 
recently installed AGP at Norton Playing Fields.   
 

What are the 
main 
characteristics 
of the future 
supply and 
demand for 
provision 

Future demand for hockey in Sheffield is projected to increase significantly through 
population growth (8 teams – rounded up), and 5 teams of latent demand were identified 
as part of the study. It is important to recognize that the sport has also enjoyed significant 
growth since the Women’s gold medal at the Rio Olympics, which it is hoped will 
stimulate further growth at both junior and adult age groups across the country.  
 
The supply of hockey provision is also likely to change, with consultation revealing the 
resurfacing of the facility at Ecclesfield Secondary School to a 3G surface. (The AGP at 
Ecclesfield has been converted to 3G during the drafting of this PPS and Chapeltown 
Hockey Club has been displaced and exported to Barnsley local authority area.) 
 

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured 
community use 
provision to 
meet future 
demand 

Future capacity analysis indicates that over the lifetime of the Strategy, the current 
amount of spare capacity for available and secured provision will be reduced, and there 
is unlikely to be sufficient capacity across the area to meet projected levels of demand. 
The future Local Plan should ensure that sufficient suitable sites/pitches are secured for 
hockey. It is considered that works to change an artificial grass pitch from sand 
dressed/based to 3G requires significant engineering works to take place given that a 3G 
pitch has a different composition to a sand dressed/based pitch and require works 
beyond simply removing the existing covering/carpet  and laying a new one, therefore 
planning permission is required. Sport England should be consulted on any change in 
surface. 
  

 

 Artificial Grass Pitches key findings 

 This section summarises the findings from the artificial grass pitch analysis, which will form 

the basis of the recommendation and action plan section for Sheffield. 

Page 82



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 27 of 75 

Table 3.5 – Key PPS findings for AGP’s in Sheffield 

Key Question Analysis 

What are the main 
characteristics of 
the current supply 
and demand for 
provision? 

The quality of AGP provision across the Study Area is standard and appears to have 
stayed at a consistent level over the past years. The level of demand has increased 
recently, due to the requirements of central venue leagues and the aspirations of clubs 
to utilise artificial rather than grass surfaces. 
 
There are currently 20 full sized and 24 small sided 3G facilities, as well as 6 full sized 
and 14 small sided sand based facilities in Sheffield (only 6 of which are not available 
for community use, all located at educational establishments) (based on 2016 data). 
Consultation with local clubs also revealed that there is a need for additional 3G training 
facilities across Sheffield. 

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured community 
use provision to 
meet current 
demand 

The current supply and demand analysis for secured and accessible 3G pitch 
provision shows there is a theoretical deficit across the Study Area, currently 
equating to 1 full sized pitch.  
 
As identified in the Hockey section of this report, there is currently insufficient sand-
based provision across the area to meet current levels of demand. 
 Abbeydale Sports Club and Norton Playing Fields – the most heavily used sites in the 
area - are currently overplayed or at capacity during peak times of demand.  
There is also some Rugby Union demand for AGP facilities, and although the current 
supply appears to be sufficient, there is only one AGP in Sheffield that is WR22 
compliant (at Norton Playing Fields) 

Is the provision that 
is accessible of 
sufficient quality 
and appropriately 
maintained? 

While a number of clubs and sites have identified issues regarding cost and availability 
of AGP provision, the quality of facilities and the robustness of maintenance regimes is 
high. There are only 2 AGPs within Sheffield that were identified as Poor during site 
inspections, with the lowest scoring pitches in the city located at Caribbean Sports Club 
and Firth Park Academy, both sand-based and small sided. 
 
The highest scoring pitches are located at HSBC Sports Club, Norton Playing Fields and 
Olympic Legacy Park.  

What are the main 
characteristics of 
the future supply 
and demand for 
provision 

There is expected to be a need for three further full sized 3G AGPs within Sheffield, in 
addition to the current deficit of one AGP, by the end of the strategy. In line with the 
strategic objectives of the Football Foundation, FA, Sport England and the RFU, it is 
expected that the demand for 3G AGP provision will increase over the period of the local 
plan, as there is an ambition to improve the overall playing experience of participants by 
moving more grass-roots participation onto artificial surfaces. (Based on 2016 data.) 
 

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured community 
use provision to 
meet future 
demand 

There is insufficient AGP provision for hockey to meet current match play and 
training demand.  It is likely that the demand will be exported to neighbouring 
authorities if enough provision within Sheffield in not secured putting strain on 
Clubs to fulfil fixture and training demand, stifling the retention and development 
of players and teams due to excessive travel. 
 
The future supply and demand analysis for secured and accessible 3G pitch 
provision shows there is a theoretical total deficit for secured provision, equating 
to 4 full sized 3G AGPs (1 for meeting existing demand and 3 for future demand, as 
explained in previous sections of the report). 
 
The areas of specific concern are the East and Northern sub areas, where the largest 
team growth has been identified.  
 
With the recent development of a full sized 3G pitch a Handsworth Junior 
Sporting Club and the potential development of an additional full sized 3G 
elsewhere in the City the future deficit of 3G provision across Sheffield could be 
reduced to 2 full-sized 3G AGPs. 
 

 

  

Page 83



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 28 of 75 

 Rugby League key findings 

 This section summarises the findings from the Rugby League analysis, which will form the 

basis of the recommendation and action plan section for Sheffield. 

Table 3.6 – Key PPS findings for athletics in Sheffield  

Key Question Analysis 

What are the 
main 
characteristics 
of the current 
supply and 
demand for 
provision? 

The quality of provision across is substantial within the study area, with good quality 
pitches being present in the majority. Currently there are six clubs that play rugby league in 
Sheffield. Sheffield Forgers RLC, Sheffield Hawks ARLC and Sheffield Eagles RLFC have 
all expressed issues regarding the security of use at their sites, it is crucial that these 
issues are resolved. 

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured 
community use 
provision to 
meet current 
demand 

There are only two sites within Sheffield that are offering secured provision for Rugby 
League: Sheffield Hallam University Sports Park and Westfield Sports Centre. This, 
therefore, is not suitable to meet demand. 

Is the provision 
that is 
accessible of 
sufficient quality 
and 
appropriately 
maintained? 

The current supply of available Rugby League provision consists of 12 senior and 2 junior 
pitches. Of the adult pitches, 6 are deemed to be of good quality, 4 of standard quality and 
2 of poor quality. The junior pitches are both of good quality.  
In addition to this, there are three pitches that are not available for community use: a 
standard adult pitch and two poor junior pitches, all at educational establishments.  

What are the 
main 
characteristics 
of the future 
supply and 
demand for 
provision 

There is ever increasing teams in Sheffield, and key clubs in the area have expressed a 
desire to expand. Having secured provision will allow for this growth to occur. Future 
demand analysis demonstrates that a total of 2.36 additional teams are projected to be 
generated in Sheffield by the end of the strategy driven by population change in the area. 

Is there enough 
accessible and 
secured 
community use 
provision to 
meet future 
demand 

Due to increases in population figures, there is projected to be an increase in demand for 
rugby league in Sheffield. This will put additional pressures on the current capacity of rugby 
league pitches. The future position is expected to worsen. Although there is sufficient 
surplus for rugby league provision, there is a lack of secured provision (only two sites 
identified as secured), which should be addressed 

 
  

Page 84



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 29 of 75 

 Scenario testing and options appraisal 

 The supply and demand analysis undertaken in each of the previous sections provides a 

clear view of the capacity for sports facilities across Sheffield, based on the existing supply 

of facilities and the demand for these facilities from residents, both now and in the future. 

 This data provides an accurate evidence base, on which future planning and investment 

decisions can be made, using the guidelines outlines in the ‘Delivering the Strategy’ chapter 

of the strategy.  

 To complement the analysis that has been undertaken in each of the sport-specific sections, 

this chapter contains detailed further analysis on a small number of key scenarios, which 

have been identified by the project steering group throughout the development of the PPS.  

 For each of the scenarios identified below, a short summary is provided to explain why the 

scenario needs to be tested. Following this, a needs assessment for each of the relevant 

facility types is undertaken and explained. 

 Scenario 1: Loss of unsecured sites from supply 

 As identified through stakeholder consultation, ensuring all available sites also have security 

of use for current and future provision is vital for the sustainability and growth of pitch sports 

within Sheffield. 

FOOTBALL 

 Table 4.1 below shows the current and future positions for football carrying capacity if only 

secured sites were to be included in the analysis. It should be noted that all local authority 

owned and maintained pitches have been retained as part of the supply. This is because 

although the individual teams or clubs playing on the site may not have security of use, the 

sites are considered to have some security in terms of remaining available for hire and use. 

  

Table 4.1: Current position with only secured football supply 

Sub area 

Current Position (ALL Available) Current Position (Secured Sites Only) 

A
d

u
lt
 1

1
v
1

1
 

Y
o

u
th

 1
1

v
1

1
 

Y
o

u
th

 9
v
9
 

M
in

i 
7

v
7
 

M
in

i 
5

v
5
 

A
d

u
lt
 1

1
v
1

1
 

Y
o

u
th

 1
1

v
1

1
 

Y
o

u
th

 9
v
9
 

M
in

i 
7

v
7
 

M
in

i 
5

v
5
 

Central -3 -6.5 -3.5 -3.5 -3.5 -3 -7.5 -3.5 -3.5 -3.5 

East  3.5 -15 -7.5 4 -1.5 1.5 -16 -9.5 2 -3.5 

North East  7.5 -5.5 5 4.5 1 7 -5.5 5 4 1 

Northern 14.5 -3.5 8.5 2 -4.5 12.5 -4.5 3 1 -4.5 

South 3.5 2.5 4 1.5 -0.5 1.5 2 2 -1.5 -3.5 

South East  17.5 -3 -4.5 4.5 -2.5 15 -6 -4.5 3.5 -4.5 

South West 5.5 -8 0.5 7 -2.5 1 -8 0.5 6 -5.5 

Sheffield 
City (total 
LA) 

49 -39 2.5 20 -14 35.5 -45.5 -7 11.5 -24 

 

 

Page 85



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 30 of 75 

 

Table 4.1b: Future position with only secured football supply 

Sub area 

Future Position (ALL Available) Future Position (Secured Sites Only) 

A
d

u
lt
 1

1
v
1

1
 

Y
o

u
th

 1
1

v
1

1
 

Y
o

u
th

 9
v
9
 

M
in

i 
7

v
7
 

M
in

i 
5

v
5
 

A
d

u
lt
 1

1
v
1

1
 

Y
o

u
th

 1
1

v
1

1
 

Y
o

u
th

 9
v
9
 

M
in

i 
7

v
7
 

M
in

i 
5

v
5
 

Central -7 -8.5 -4.5 -4.5 -4 -7 -9.5 -4.5 -4.5 -4 

East  1 -18.5 -9.5 2 -2.5 -1 -19.5 -11.5 0 -4.5 

North East  6 -6.5 4.5 4 1 5.5 -6.5 4.5 3.5 1 

Northern 12 -7 6.5 0.5 -6 10 -8 1 -0.5 -6 

South 1 2 3.5 1 -1 -1 1.5 1.5 -2 -4 

South East  16.5 -4.5 -6 3.5 -3.5 14 -7.5 -6 2.5 -5.5 

South West 4 -10.5 -1 5.5 -4 -0.5 -10.5 -1 4.5 -7 

Sheffield 
City (total 
LA) 

33.5 -53.5 -6.5 12 -20 20 -60 -16 3.5 -30 

 

 Table 4.1 shows that when only securely available supply is considered there is a significant 

reduction in the spare capacity in Sheffield (capacity tables are available in the needs 

assessment chapter tables 3.13 – 3.17).  

 When removing unsecured provision from the supply of football pitches, the current spare 

capacity for Adult and Mini 7v7 football is significantly reduced, whilst the spare capacity for 

Youth 9v9 is converted into a deficit. The existing deficit for all other pitch typologies is also 

significantly worsen. 

 This is replicated in the future analysis, where Adult and Mini 7v7 pitches are also the only 

pitch typologies with some level of spare capacity. 

 The sub-areas with the highest deficit are Central and East (with deficits identified across 

pitch typologies) and South West, with only 4.5 match equivalents of spare capacity across 

all pitches. 

CRICKET 

 The following table shows the position should all unsecured supply be removed from the 

cricket capacity calculations. Again, local authority sites where the pitch users may not have 

secured access to the site are retained as part of the capacity as these pitches are not 

considered to be at risk of loss from the pitch stock. 

Table 4.2: Current position with only secured cricket supply 

Sub Area Current Picture - All Available Sites Current Picture - Secured Sites Only 

Central - - 

East  -151 -151 

North East  -22 -22 

Northern -54 -129 

South -138 -138 

South East  -125 -125 

Page 86



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 31 of 75 

South West -85 -235 

Sheffield City (total 
LA) 

-575 -800 

 

Table 4.2b: Future position with only secured cricket supply 

Sub Area Future Picture - All Available Sites Future Picture - Secured Sites Only 

Central - - 

East  -253 -253 

North East  -40 -40 

Northern -118 -193 

South -210 -210 

South East  -181 -181 

South West -273 -423 

Sheffield City (total 
LA) 

-1075 -1300 

 

 Table 4.2 above shows that if all unsecured grass wicket capacity were to be removed from 

supply, the existing deficit for grass cricket provision in Sheffield is severely worsen by a total 

of 225 match equivalents.  

 There are only three sites in Sheffield that have unsecured cricket provision – Castle Dyke 

Playing Field, HSBC Sports Club and Civil Service Sports Ground. These are located in the 

Northern and South West sub-areas, and therefore the removal of these sites causes an 

increase in the deficit identified in these sub-areas, as well as the study area as a whole. 

 There is no Cricket provision in the Central sub-area, and all provision in the remaining sub-

areas was identified as secured for long-term use, therefore tables 4.2 and 4.2b show now 

changes across these areas. 

 The future analysis demonstrates that, when removing secured provision, the already high 

deficit of 1075 MES projected for 2038 is increased to 1300 MES.  

 It must be highlighted, however, that the full analysis undertaken in the Cricket section of the 

needs assessment demonstrates that when utilising the existing artificial provision to 

accommodate junior demand, there is sufficient capacity across Sheffield to meet current 

levels of demand.  

HOCKEY 

 The impact of removing all unsecured supply is shown in table 4.3 below. It shows a 

significant fall in capacity that would mean hockey could not function in its current way in 

Sheffield. 

 

Table 4.3: Current position with only secured hockey 

Area 
Balance (All Available Sites) Balance (Secured Sites Only) 

Week Sat Sun Week Sat Sun 

Sheffield 
City 

119 37 42.5 65 13 18.5 

 

Page 87



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 32 of 75 

 

 

 

 

Table 4.3b: Future position with only secured hockey 

Area 
Balance (All Available Sites) Balance (Secured Sites Only) 

Week Sat Sun Week Sat Sun 

Sheffield 
City 

111 34 40 57 10 16 

 

 There are three hockey sites in Sheffield that were identified as unsecured for long term use: 

Ecclesfield School, Goodwin Sports Centre and Norton Playing Fields. Due to the high 

amount of current spare capacity, the removal of these sites from the analysis shows that 

there is a significant reduction of capacity, however this is still sufficient to meet current and 

future demand.  

 As demonstrated in the Needs Assessment, however, both Ecclesfield School and Norton 

Playing Fields are currently used by local clubs and are key sites for hockey in the area. It is 

therefore recommended that long-term community use agreements are put in place to 

protect this provision and guarantee that sufficient hockey capacity is available in Sheffield 

during the lifespan of this strategy.  

  

Page 88



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 33 of 75 

RUGBY UNION 

 The following table shows the position should all unsecured supply be removed from the 

rugby capacity calculations. Again, local authority sites where the pitch users may not have 

secured access to the site are retained as part of the capacity as these pitches are not 

considered to be at risk of loss from the pitch stock.  

Table 4.4: Future position with only secured rugby union supply 

Sub Area 
Current Balance (All available 

sites) 
Current Balance (Secured Sites 

Only) 

Central 1.5 -0.5 

East  3.75 -6 

North East  2 -2 

Northern -0.5 -0.5 

South 1.5 1.5 

South East  2 -10.5 

South West 17.75 -10.25 

Sheffield City (total 
LA) 

22 -47.75 

 

Table 4.4b: Future position with only secured rugby union supply 

Sub Area 
Current Balance (All available 

sites) 
Current Balance (Secured Sites 

Only) 

Central 0.5 -1.5 

East  2.75 -7 

North East  1 -3 

Northern -2.5 -2.5 

South 0.5 0.5 

South East  0 -12.5 

South West 13.75 -14.25 

Sheffield City (total 
LA) 

14 -55.75 

 
 

 Table 4.4 above demonstrates that there is currently some spare capacity for rugby provision 

in the area, however when removing unsecured provision from the analysis this is converted 

into a severe deficit, both in the current and future position. The loss of unsecured pitches 

from the supply would lead to a deficit of 47.75 MES for rugby in Sheffield, which is 

increased to 55.75 in the future position.   

 The sub area that would experience the greatest reduction in capacity is the South West sub 

area, with the existing spare capacity converted into a deficit of 10.25 match equivalents. 

This is due to the Abbeydale Sports Club and Castle Dyke Playing Field sites being identified 

as unsecured for long-term use.  

 The analysis in table 4.4 identifies a need for an increase in the number of secured Rugby 

Union sites in the study area. It is therefore recommended to work with club sites and put in 

place long-term community use agreements, which in conjunction with improved 

maintenance and drainage across all sites would allow for an increase in rugby capacity in 

Sheffield.  

Page 89



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 34 of 75 

 Scenario 2: Moving from grass to artificial 

 This section will model the impact of adding new facilities to the pitch stock in Sheffield. 

FOOTBALL 

 During the last decade, 3G AGPs have played an increasing role within the national game.  

They are regarded by the Football Association (FA) and Football Foundation (FF) as the 

optimum facility for training by clubs. In recent seasons, they have also become more 

popular for competitive matches.  With this in mind, before developing the recommendations 

and action plan for this PPS, a key scenario has been looked at to help with understanding 

what demand there may be for full size floodlit 3G AGPs in Sheffield, if increased amounts of 

play were to take place on them. 

 In line with national priorities, to get more young people playing football on 3G AGP’s this 

scenario considers the likely total demand if all youth 9v9 and mini demand that is currently 

being played during the period of peak demand is moved from grass pitches to 3G AGP. 

 While it is understood that in practice it is unlikely that 100% of demand will transfer for these 

age groups, it provides a valuable assessment of the potential impact on pitch capacity, if the 

FA and FF are successful in changing player and coach behaviour and moving clubs from 

natural grass to 3G AGP provision. 

 Table 4.5 takes information from the assessment stage of this PPS to present the number of 

youth 9v9 and mini teams playing on natural grass pitches during the relevant peak periods. 

This then calculates an estimated number of matches at peak time and associated 3G AGP 

requirement. 

Table 4.5: Number of 3G AGP’s that would be required to meet demand if all mini and youth 9v9 
match play was moved to AGP 

Format 

Number 
of Teams 

Number of matches 
at peak-time 

3G Units 
per Match 

Total Units 
required formats 

3G Pitches 
Required 

(x) (y)= x/2 (z) (A)= (y)*(z) B= (A)/64 

5v5 99 49.5 4 198 3.1 

7v7 114 57 8 456 7.1 

9v9 137 68.5 10 685 10.7 

 
21 

 Table 4.5 illustrates that a total of 21 pitches (rounded up from 20.9) would be required to 

meet the need at peak times for mini and youth 9v9 match demand, based on parameters 

provided by the FA and FF.   

 As identified in the Football section of this report, Stage B data identifies 20 existing full sized 

3G AGP facilities within Sheffield that are available for community use (and 1 that is not 

available). It can therefore be concluded that if all youth 9v9 and Mini demand that is 

currently being played during the peak period is moved from grass to 3G AGP, there would 

be a requirement for at least one additional full-sized 3G facility in Sheffield. 

 Scenario 3: Increase in female participation 

 This section will model the impact of achieving the targets of increase of female participation 

on all sports across Sheffield, in line with priorities identified by National Governing Bodies.   

 There has been an increase in female participation since the data was collected.  This will be 

taken forward as part of Stage E. 

Page 90



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 35 of 75 

 Scenario 4: completion of priority developments as identified in the Local Football Facility Plan 

 This following scenario will model the impact that the completion of priority projects identified in the LFFP would have in the capacity of football 

pitches across Sheffield. 

 Table 4.11 below lists all sites where a proposed development has been identified, comparing current capacity and balance with the expected 

scenario once the project is completed. For all grass pitch improvements, it has been assumed that the playing surface will be refurbished to a Good 

standard. 

Table 4.11 – Scenario: completion of priority projects identified in the LFFP  

Site 
Current 

provision 
Pitch 

Capacity 
Balance Proposed development 

Expected 
Capacity 

Expected 
Balance 

Handsworth JFC - - - 
New 11v11 Floodlit AGP 
 

In conjunction with the 
development of the 

proposed 3G pitch in 
West Sheffield, the 
completion of this 

project would contribute 
to addressing the 

current deficit of 1 full-
sized 3G AGPs 

identified as part of the 
needs assessment (and 

the projected future 
deficit of 4) 

Mercia School 
2x Adult  

1x Mini 7v7 
1xMini 5v5 

14 14 Natural grass pitch improvements 18 18 

Olympic Legacy Park - - - Improved stadia infrastructure (spectator accommodation)  
No change in carrying 

capacity 

Waverley Lane – 
Middlewood Rovers JFC 

- - - New Changing Pavilion 
No change in carrying 

capacity 

Steel City Recreation 
Ground 

3x Adult 
1x Youth 9v9 

8 4 
Natural grass pitch improvements,  
Refurbish changing pavilion 

13 9 

P
age 91



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 36 of 75 

Site 
Current 

provision 
Pitch 

Capacity 
Balance Proposed development 

Expected 
Capacity 

Expected 
Balance 

South West Sheffield (site 
TBC) 

- - - 
New 11v11 3G AGP 
(important area for the city for affiliated football) 

In conjunction with the 
development of the 

proposed 3G pitch at 
Handsworth JFC, the 

completion of this 
project would contribute 

to addressing the 
current deficit of 1 full-

sized 3G AGPs 
identified as part of the 
needs assessment (and 

the projected future 
deficit of 4) 

Concord Sports Centre - - - Refurbish existing 11v11 3G AGP 
No change in carrying 

capacity 

Sheffield Works Dept 
Sports and Social Club 

2x Adult 
1x Mini 5v5 

6 -6 
Refurbish changing pavilion, 
Natural grass pitch improvements 

12 0 

Heliport 
2x Adult 

1x Youth 9v9 
1x Mini 7v7 

10 3.5 Natural grass pitch improvements 16 9.5 

Parson Cross Park 
2x Adult 

2x Youth 9v9 
2x Mini 7v7 

16 12 
Refurbish changing pavilion, 
Natural grass pitch improvements 

20 16 

Ecclesfield Park  

1x Adult 
1x Youth 11v11 

1x Youth 9v9 
1x Mini 7v7 
1x Mini 5v5 

14 6 
Pavilion burned down, therefore replace pavilion, 
Natural grass pitch improvements 

23 15 

Mather Road Recreation 
Ground 

2x Adult 4 1.5 
Provide new Changing Facility, 
Natural grass pitch improvements 

6 3.5 

Reignhead Farm 

1x Adult 
1x Youth 9v9 
1x Mini 7v7 
1x Mini 5v5 

12 8.5 
Natural grass pitch improvements. 
Refurbish or provide new changing facility 

19 15.5 

P
age 92



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 37 of 75 

Site 
Current 

provision 
Pitch 

Capacity 
Balance Proposed development 

Expected 
Capacity 

Expected 
Balance 

East Park 
1x Adult 

1x Youth 9v9 
4 2.5 

Provide new changing facility, 
Natural grass pitch improvements 

7 5.5 

Bents Green Playing 
Fields 

1x Adult 
1x Youth 11v11 

1x Youth 9v9 
3x Mini 7v7 

19 12.5 
Refurbish changing pavilion, 
Natural grass pitch improvements 

29 22.5 

Flockton Park - - - New changing pavilion 
No change in carrying 

capacity 

High Storrs School 
1x Adult 

1x Youth 11v11 
6 1.5 Natural grass pitch improvements 7 2.5 

 

 Table 4.9 demonstrates that, once all pitch improvements are undertaken, all sites will see an increase in their carrying capacity and their current 

level of spare capacity. The only exception to this is the adult pitch at Sheffield Works Dept Sports and Social Club, where the increase in carrying 

capacity is sufficient to address the current deficit, however the site would still be operating at capacity. 

 In addition to this, the development of 2 full sized 3G pitches in the area will address the current deficit of 3G provision identified as part of the study, 

with an additional two pitches required to meet the future requirement of additional 3G pitches across the area. 

P
age 93



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 38 of 75 

 
 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Section 5: Strategic recommendations and action plan 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 94



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 39 of 75 

 Strategic recommendations and action plan 

 To facilitate the development of sport and physical activity across Sheffield, it is advised that 

the Steering Group, set up as part of the Playing Pitch Strategy project, continues to work 

together to deliver the recommendations defined as part of this strategy. 

 This section of the report provides a set of strategic recommendations, to guide future 

governance and investment into pitch sport provision across the study area. 

 Strategic recommendations 

 This section brings together the complete evidence base and analysis that has been 

developed as part of the PPS and provides a clear strategy for the future delivery of sports 

provision in Sheffield. 

 At a strategic level, the following key recommendations have been identified for each of the 

sport typologies, as well as for general sports provision.  

GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS 

• Recommendation G1: It is recommended that Sheffield City Council local planning 

policy continues to protect the provision of playing field sites under its jurisdiction, in 

order to reduce the risk of loss and subsequent impact on sport and physical activity 

provision. This includes any lapsed sites, currently disused sites or any school 

playing fields that were not marked out as formal pitches at the time the research 

for this study was undertaken (2019) and are therefore omitted from this report5. 

This study does not support the disposing of any dormant or currently disused 

playing field sites (unless otherwise stated) without a full investigation into the 

possibility of the site being provided as additional supply for sporting activity. 

Where a site is to be lost, the future development plan for the site should meet one 

of the five policy exceptions identified in Sport England's March 2018 issue of the 

Playing Fields Policy and Guidance, in that it should either be replaced or there 

should be strategic evidence to demonstrate that it is no longer needed. In addition, 

it is key that local authority planning policy supports the development of new, high 

quality sports provision required to meet the needs generated by major housing 

development and population growth. This policy and associated strategic planning 

are particularly key when existing provision cannot meet the growing need 

generated by a large number of new residents living in a single area. it is 

recommended that the tools and guidance identified in this strategy are used to 

identify the typology and quantity of provision, as well as the overall strategic 

direction of sport facility development in the study area. 

• Recommendation G2: Work with local sports clubs to utilise the existing volunteer 

network across Sheffield and providing more autonomy for clubs, allowing those 

 
 
5 Disclaimer: If any playing field sites, sport facilities, and/or pitches are not contained within this Playing Pitch 
Strategy, this is due to an oversight, and does not in any way mean that they can be redeveloped.  Planning 
applications to develop any omitted sites will still need to be considered against Paragraph 97 of the NPPF. 

 

Page 95



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 40 of 75 

organisations that have adequate governance and financial stability to develop 

facilities and participation. 

• Recommendation G3: Address the issue of poor ancillary and changing pavilion 

quality through the refurbishment and replacement of existing ancillary facilities, 

prioritising those on multi-pitch sites that are currently well used. Utilise the action 

plan to identify specific sites for enhancement. 

• Recommendation G4: Enhance the drainage and maintenance of both natural turf 

and artificial pitches at priority sites, to increase the pitch capacity to accommodate 

demand of current user clubs, especially on council-maintained pitches. Utilise the 

action plan to identify specific sites for enhancement. 

• Recommendation G5: Work with educational establishments that provide playing 

pitches for use by community teams, through artificial provision, to secure formal 

community use of pitches and ancillary facilities through a Community Use 

Agreement. Where these community use agreements currently exist, work with 

education establishments and users to ensure that requirements for community use 

are being enforced. 

• Recommendation G6: Work with clubs based at Local Authority owned sites, to 

establish long-term security use agreements, ensuring that clubs and participants 

have security of use and are able to grow and develop through grant funding wider 

investment. 

• Recommendation G7: Address site specific needs as identified in the action plan 

below. 

FOOTBALL 

• Recommendation F1: Protect all grass pitches for future football use and develop 

further capacity through improved maintenance and the development of 3G AGP 

provision, to ensure there is spare capacity for football over the lifetime of the 

strategy  

• Recommendation F2: Ensure sites that have community use available also have 

security of use to protect the future provision of football, allowing clubs based on 

council sites to apply for grants and investments from various governing bodies. 

• Recommendation F3: Provide sites where there is significant use of adult pitches 

to meet youth pitch demand with mobile goal posts to ensure the appropriate sized 

goals and pitches are being used for these age-groups. 

• Recommendation F4: Sheffield currently has a deficit of one community available 

AGP provision within the study area, increasing to four when considering future 

demand. Identify sites to develop full sized 3G AGP provision, to meet the growing 

demand for this pitch type and meet the needs of local clubs and residents. 

• Recommendation F5: In conjunction with the FA’s Pitch Improvement programme, 

increase the level of maintenance at sites identified as being close to the poor 

rating, in order to mitigate the risk of pitches falling into disuse and lowering the 

carrying capacity of pitch provision in the study area. Investment into artificial 

drainage is a key consideration also. 

• Recommendation F6: Focus on the provision of further youth and mini soccer 

provision, to meet future demand, and the development of ancillary facilities located 

Page 96



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 41 of 75 

at local authority sites in terms of changing room provision to accommodate this. 

Given FA’s priority to increase participation in female participation, work with clubs 

to upgrade facilities to ensure they are appropriate for hosting matches for both 

genders at the same time. This should be in conjunction with the Football 

Foundation. 

• Recommendation F7: Ash House Upper ambition to bring back into bring back into 

use for football. 

• Recommendation F8: Boundary Academy (Jordanthorpe Parkway), high demand 

site, ambition to bring back into bring back into use for football. 

• Recommendation F9: Civil Service Sports Ground, engage with landowner to 

ensure continued use for football. 

• Recommendation F9: Handsworth WMC Sports Ground. High demand site 

engage with landowner to bring site back into use for football. 

• Recommendation F10: Malin Bridge Sports & Social Club, engage with landowner 

to ensure continued use for football. 

• Recommendation F11: Outokumpu Sports & Social Club, engage with landowner 

to bring site back into use for football (or other playing field sports where there is 

demand). 

• Recommendation F12: Petre Street Playing Field. Provide long-term security of 

tenure to club and improve quality of pitch and ancillary facilities for football. 

• Recommendation F13: Parsonage Farm.  Resolve drainage issues and bring back 

into use for football. 

• Recommendation F14: Shardlows Sports Ground.  Well used, popular site. 

Support Ecclesfield Red Rose FC (or other club) to improve quality of pitches and 

ancillary facilities.  

• Recommendation F15:  Skye Edge Playing Fields.  Protect for future use for local 

community football provision. Provide long-term security of tenure for a club on site 

and support pitch quality improvements. 

 

CRICKET  

• Recommendation C1: Protect all sites designated as cricket playing fields in this 

PPS in line with Sport England’s Playing Fields Policy. Cricket should not only be 

protected from loss but also from developments that would prejudice their use, 

particularly ball strike, unless it can be properly mitigated (this has become an 

increasing issue with developments around cricket grounds and, if not given 

appropriate weight, it could prejudice cricket activity on the sites). 

• Recommendation C2: Utilise the funding opportunities and strategic direction 

provided by the England Cricket Board’s Inspiring Generations strategy, to provide 

fit for purpose facilities and programmes across Sheffield. Work with the ECB to 

continue to develop community programmes such as All Stars Cricket, Women’s 

Softball Festivals, Get the Game On, Chance to Shine and Dynamo Cricket and 

increase participation in the programme across Sheffield. 

• Recommendation C3: Invest in ancillary facilities to increase the quality of 

changing and catering provision (including designated changing for Women & 

Page 97



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 42 of 75 

Girls), incorporate the use of better security systems in order to decrease the 

amount of anti-social behaviour also. Utilise the action plan to identify the specific 

sites where this should be a priority. 

• Recommendation C4: Work with clubs that are currently using sites that are over-

capacity, such as Hallam CC, Sheffield Transport Sports Club and Sheffield Works 

Department Sports & Social Club, to provide additional provision, through non-turf 

(artificial) wickets, in order to accommodate junior team demand. Given the severe 

deficit identified across grass pitches in Sheffield, encourage clubs to place junior 

demand on non-turf wickets.   

• Recommendation C5: Ash House Upper ambition to bring back into bring back 

into use for cricket. 

• Recommendation C6: Civil Service Sports Ground, engage with landowner to 

ensure continued use for cricket. 

• Recommendation C7: Malin Bridge Sports & Social Club, engage with landowner 

to ensure continued use for cricket. 

• Recommendation C8: Parsonage Farm.  Resolve drainage issues and assess 

whether the site has potential for cricket use. 

RUGBY UNION 

• Recommendation R1: Protect all sites designated as rugby playing fields in this 

PPS, in line with Sport England’s Playing Fields Policy. 

• Recommendation R2: Monitor the growth of women’s and girls’ rugby to ensure 

there is sufficient capacity to allow clubs to develop these sections. Work with clubs 

to upgrade facilities to ensure they are appropriate for hosting matches for both 

genders at the same time. Refer to the action plan for specific sites where 

improvements should be focused.    

• Recommendation R3: Improve the pitch drainage and maintenance regime across 

all key rugby sites, to increase the capacity of grass rugby pitches, especially those 

at Coal Pit Lane, Mosborough Miners Welfare, and Norton Playing Field – currently 

operating over capacity. 

• Recommendation R4: Install permanent or demountable floodlighting to increase 

training capacity. 

• Recommendation R5: Establish a fund to Improve pitch maintenance programmes 

across Sheffield. 

• Recommendation R6: Deliver improvements to capacity where it is needed. 

• Recommendation R7: Ash House Upper ambition to bring back into bring back 

into use for rugby. 

•  

HOCKEY 

• Recommendation H1: Protect all sites designated as hockey playing fields in this 

PPS, in line with Sport England’s Playing Fields Policy 

• Recommendation H2: Work with Ecclesfield School to resurface/resurface the 

existing AGP and with Abbeydale Sports Club to undertake refurbishment of the 

existing AGP and explore the possibility of adding an additional AGP to the site. 

Page 98



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 43 of 75 

• Recommendation H3: Ensure long-term community use agreements are in place, 

particularly to further develop hockey within the area.  

• Recommendation H5: Safeguard sand based AGP provision for future use and not 

allow the conversion from sand based to 3G AGP’s to occur unless offset with new 

hockey provision. With particular attention to the Ecclesfield School site, where site 

owners have revealed their intention to convert the surface to a 3G. 

• Recommendation H6: To work with England Hockey to promote their informal 

Hockey offer: Back to Hockey, Hockey Heroes and Indoor Hockey. 

• Recommendation H7: Secure new sites and pitches for hockey to meet needs and 

projected demand. 

 

RUGBY LEAGUE 

• Recommendation RL1: Continue to work with the other national governing body 

partners to identify sites where it may be possible to add a rugby league presence 

and thereby increase capacity, reduce overplay and ensure future demand can be 

met. 

• Recommendation RL2: Monitor the growth of women’s and girls’ rugby to ensure 

there is sufficient capacity to allow clubs to develop these sections. 

• Recommendation RL3: ensure that RL teams can benefit from the installation of 

3G pitches for football, and that any demand is met by RFL compliant 3G pitches. 

• Recommendation RL4: support Sheffield Hawks ARLFC with their current plans to 

secure a multi-pitch home ground in order to allow further club growth. 

 
 
 

 Action plan 

 Through a detailed supply and demand analysis of the sports included in the scope of the 

strategy, as well as stakeholder consultations across the study area, an action plan has been 

created, which will guide the steering group in their delivery of sports provision and facility 

decisions over the next 10 years. The action plan is broken down by site with clear owners, 

timescales and expected resources. This is shown Table 5.1. 

 The table identifies potential sources of external funding. It should be noted that funding for 

the actions below could come from one, or a combination, of funding sources shown below. 

This is not an exhaustive list and could be extended to other sources, depending on 

availability. 

• CIL monies 

• Section 106 funding 

• Community Grant Schemes 

 The Action Plan does not identify all those clubs that may be partners or provide resources 

in relation to its delivery.  It is assumed that where clubs have a long-standing interest in a 

specific site that they will be a partner in delivering the actions and contribute financially or 

in-kind where appropriate. 

Page 99



   
   
  Doc Status: Final 

Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 
  
 

 
Page 44 of 75 

 The Action Plan does not identify Sheffield City Council as a key resource either in terms of 

officer time or finance, except for those sites owned and/or managed by the Council.  

However, the Council has an interest in all those projects delivered within the local authority 

area and may contribute towards them either financially or in-kind, as appropriate and 

subject to available resources. It should be noted that not all sites have actions allocated to 

them, as it is unrealistic to expect funding partners to contribute to improvements at all 

facilities across a local authority.  

ACTION PLAN TERMINOLOGY 

• Issue/ opportunity: The issue or opportunity that can be addressed 

• Key Actions: Numbering indicates order of preference 

• Partners: Top listed partner is identified as lead partner 

• Resources: Key resource implications (time and money) 

• Timescale: Short: 0–2 yrs. Medium: 2-5 yrs. Long 5-10 yrs. 

• Priority: Low, Medium and High, depending on overall impact for sports participation 

• Acronyms: SCC (Sheffield City Council), FA (Football Association), FF (Football 

Foundation), ECB (England & Wales Cricket Board), Lawn Tennis Association 

(LTA), EH (England Hockey), RFU (Rugby Football Union), CC (cricket club), HC 

(hockey club), FC (football club). 

 All costs are estimated (at the time of drafting this report), based on 4global desktop 

research and consultation with industry experts. These are not based on firm pricing or 

quotes from reputable contractors, unless stated otherwise. 

 All maintenance costs represent the full cost for maintaining the pitches. They do not, 

therefore, reflect any maintenance that is currently being undertaken at the site and the cost 

incurred for these services. In reality, the cost for additional maintenance would be reflected 

by an increase of the current maintenance cost, rather than the full price stated as part of 

this action plan 

 There is not unlimited funding to invest in sports facilities, for any of the identified partners. 

As a result, actions have been prioritised on sites that are currently either not fit-for-purpose, 

showing a deficit of provision, or those that represent a viable investment opportunity that will 

significantly increase the quality, quantity or accessibility of sports provision in Sheffield.  

 To provide the Council and Steering Group with a clear identification of ‘strategic’ investment 

priorities across the study area, high profile strategic investment projects have been 

identified overleaf in bold. These projects are likely to be limited in number due to their size 

but will deliver a significant level of benefit for grass-roots sport and physical activity. These 

projects are likely to cost approximately £250,000 or more and will include a number of 

different stakeholders and funding partners. 

 For ease of reference, the table is organised so that the actions pertinent to each sub area 

are easily identifiable. 

 

 

Page 100



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 45 of 75 

Table 5.1: Sheffield City PPS Action Plan  

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

Abbeydale 
Sports Club 

South West 

Cricket - 
Provide 

This is a key cricket site in 
Sheffield that accommodates 
demand from one of the largest 
clubs in the area, Sheffield 
Collegiate CC, as well as Kashmir 
CC and TOA CC. The site is 
currently over capacity for grass 
wickets and the installation of a 
non-turf pitch to accommodate 
junior demand is required to 
address this issue. 
Planned developments for the site 
include the refurbishment of 
existing changing rooms and the 
installation of new cricket nets 

Support the club and provide 
information on potential funding 
opportunities for the installation 
of a non-turf pitch, new cricket 
nets and changing room 
refurbishments. 

Abbeydale 
Sports Club 

ECB 
SCC 

ECB and SCC officer 
time and funding 

Medium-Long Medium 

Rugby – 
Enhance  

The interior of the clubhouse on 
site has recently been refurbished 
to make it more suitable for 
private functions, and the club 
have expressed their aspirations 
to redevelop the main changing 
facilities, which are old and in 
need of an upgrade. 

Provide the club with support 
and information on funding 
options available for the 
refurbishment of changing 
facilities on site. 

RFU 
Sheffield 

RFC 
SCC 

RFU and SCC officer 
time and funding 

Long Medium 

Rugby - 
Provide 

The site is home to Sheffield RFC, 
the largest club in the area with 20 
teams, however it is currently at 
capacity and some level of 
demand is currently displaced to 
Meadowhead School. The club 
have revealed in consultation that 
additional provision is required on 
site, however this would require 
significant landscaping and there 
is also a lack of space. They 
would also like access to another 
site, but they struggle to identify a 
suitable ground in the area 

Support the club with securing 
additional land or an alternative 
site for the development of 
additional provision in order to 
allow further growth. Further 
feasibility work will be required 
to determine the scale and cost 
of the work required to achieve 
this. 

RFU  
Sheffield 

RFC 
SE 

SCC  

RFU and SCC officer 
time, explore potential 

for RFU and Sport 
England funding  

Medium High 

P
age 101



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 46 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

Hockey – 
Enhance  

The pitch is of high quality (it is 
one of pitches used in the 2012 
Games) and has been refurbished 
in the past 5 years, however it is 
starting to show signs of wear and 
tear. The shock pad will need to 
be replaced in the near future and 
the floodlights require attention in 
order to meet National League 
standards regarding lux level and 
uniformity. Both of these would 
require significant investment. 

Invest in pitch improvements as 
required to meet National 
League standards 

EH 
SCC 

EH and SCC officer 
time and funding 

Short High 

Hockey – 
Provide 

The site would like to look at 
additional pitches but would take 
significant landscaping. 
Sheffield HC, the largest club in 
the area, revealed in consultation 
that they have aspirations to 
continue growing, however in 
order to achieve this, additional 
pitch provision will be required at 
the site or elsewhere in the area 

Undertake feasibility work to 
determine the viability of the 
development of additional AGP 
provision on site. 
 
If the above is not possible, 
support the club securing a 
location for the displacement of 
any excess of demand to 
alternative sites. 

EH 
SCC 
SE 

Sheffield HC  

SCC and EH officer 
time  

Short High 

Ash House 
Playing Fields 

South West 
Football - 
Enhance 

The site is managed by Porter FC, 
who lease from the authority. The 
lease is 'in flux' at the moment 
however the club are looking to 
establish a 25 year lease on site. 

Support the club in securing a 
long-term lease at the site  

SCC 
Porter FC 

SCC officer time Short Medium 

Athelstan 
Primary 
School 

South East 

Football - 
Enhance 

The site suffers from vandalism, 
particularly evident in the ancillary 
facility  

Increase the site’s securing by 
installing high fencing 

SCC 
FF 

New 
Bohemians 

FC 

SCC, FF funding Short Medium 

Football - 
Provide 

The main development priority for 
the school is the installation of a 
rubber crumb surfaced, floodlit 
MUGA to be utilised by both the 
school and the wider community. 
It was stated in consultation that 
the school do not want to manage 

Support the school and provide 
information on potential funding 
opportunities for the installation 
of a MUGA on site 

School 
SCC 
Sport 

England  

Officer time Short Medium 

P
age 102



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 47 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

this facility due to the cost of 
security out of school hours. 

Bents Green 
Playing Fields 

South West 

Football - 
Enhance 

The site is used by Nether Green, 
who have 12 teams playing from 
the site. The club have signed a 
partnership agreement with SCC 
and will apply to Grass Pitch 
Maintenance Fund to improve the 
quality of the site 

Support the club and provide 
them information on funding 
opportunities for pitch and 
ancillary improvements. 

SCC 
FF 

Officer time Short Low 

Cricket - 
Provide 

The site previously had 10 grass 
wickets. The two non-turf wickets 
on site are used for Last Man 
Standing Cricket.  

Explore the possibility of re-
establishing the grass wickets 
on site and attract demand to 
the site, given the deficit of grass 
provision identified as part of the 
analysis. 

ECB 
SCC 

SCC and ECB funding  Short Medium 

Bolehills 
Recreation 
Ground 

Central 
Rugby – 
Enhance  

The site is used by one adult team 
from Sheffield Hallamshire RUFC, 
no major issues were identified as 
part of the assessment, however 
the pitch suffers from dog fouling 
problems due to the site being of 
public access. 

Improve signage and waste bin 
provision to prevent/reduce 
littering and dog fouling 
problems. 

SCC 
RFU 

Sheffield 
Hallamshire 

RUFC 

SCC and RFU funding Short Low 

Bradfield 
School 

Northern 
Football - 
Enhance 

There are issues regarding the 
quality of provision on both the 
AGP and grass pitches. For this 
reason, the school is hesitant to 
promote community use for fear of 
damage to the grass, deeming 
artificial provision not sufficient to 
allow for rentals either 

Work with the school to put in 
place a more robust 
maintenance regime in order to 
improve pitch quality and 
potential allow use by the wider 
community 

FF 
School 
SCC 

FF, SCC officer time 
and funding / School 

funds 
Short Low 

Bradfield 
Village 
Fellowship 
Cricket Club 

Northern 
Cricket - 
Enhance 

The grass provision on site is of 
good quality, however the non-turf 
wicket has been rated as Poor 
and therefore has no carrying 
capacity 

Invest in the refurbishment of the 
non-turf wicket in order to 
increase site capacity and 
address the current issue of 
overplay 

ECB 
SCC 

ECB funding Short Low 

Bradway 
Recreation 
Ground 

South 
Football - 
Provide 

There has been no formal 
demand identified on the adult 
pitch present. This has been 
typical of recent years. 

Given the current level of Adult 
spare capacity identified in 
Sheffield as part of the analysis, 
consider the possibility of re-
configuring the site as a Youth 

SCC 
FF 

SCC, FF officer time 
and funding 

Short Low 

P
age 103



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 48 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

11v11 pitch, in order to address 
the current deficit identified for 
this pitch typology. 

Bracken Moor 
Sports Club 

Northern 
Cricket - 
Enhance 

The cricket pitch on site has grass 
and non-turf provision and it has 
been identified as of good quality, 
however the ancillary facility and 
changing rooms are in need of 
refurbishment. 

Support the club and provide 
information on potential funding 
opportunities for the 
refurbishment of changing 
provision on site. 

ECB 
Club 
SCC 
SE  

 

Explore potential for 
ECB and SE funding  

Medium Medium 

Caribbean 
Sports 

Northern 

Football - 
Enhance 

Consultation with Caribbean FC, 
users of the site, revealed that 
there are some issues with the 
maintenance on site, which 
requires improvement 

Put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime to improve 
pitch quality on site 

FF 
Club 
SCC 

FF officer time Short Low 

Cricket - 
Enhance 

There is an NTP on the square to 
reduce the burden on the grass 
wickets, however it is in poor 
condition and it requires 
refurbishment/replacement to help 
address the current issue of 
overplay.  
Consultation with site users 
revealed that the installation of 
practice nets would help to meet 
training requirements. 

1.Invest in the refurbishment of 
the existing NTP in order to 
address the current overplay of 
the grass pitch. 
 
2. Work with the club and 
provide information on funding 
opportunities for the installation 
of practice nets on site 

ECB  
Club 
SCC 

Explore the potential 
for ECB and SCC 

funding 

1. Short 
 

2. Short 

1. Medium 
 

2. Low 

Castle Dyke 
Playing Field 

South West 

Football - 
Protect 

The site is used by Hallam 
Rangers, Redmires Rangers and 
Byron House, and the clubs have 
a one year rolling lease with the 
site. 

Work with the clubs to put in 
place a long-term use 
agreement  

SCC 
FF 

Clubs 

SCC and FF officer 
time 

Short Medium 

Football - 
Enhance 

Site assessment revealed that a 
key priority for the site is the 
replacement of the perimeter 
fencing in order to prevent further 
issues of rotting.  

Invest in the replacement of the 
existing perimeter fencing 

FF 
SCC 

Explore the potential 
for FF and SCC 

funding 
Short Medium 

Civil Service 
Sports 
Ground 

Northern 
Cricket – 
Protect / 
Enhance  

The site is home to two adult 
teams from Darnall CC and Civil 
Service CC; however, it was 
identified as unsecured for long-
term use. 

1. Work with the clubs and site 
owners to put in place a long-
term community use agreement. 
 
2. Provide information on 

Site owners 
(private) 

SCC 
ECB 

SCC and ECB officer 
time. Explore the 

potential for ECB and 
SCC funding for 

1. Short 
 

2. Medium 

1. High 
 

2. Medium 

P
age 104



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 49 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

Club consultation revealed that 
one of their priorities is to install 
an NTP on the square to reduce 
demand on the grass wickets.  
The pavilion on site is old and was 
identified as in need of upgrading. 

potential funding opportunities of 
the installation of artificial cricket 
provision and upgrading of the 
ancillary facilities. 

artificial wicket and 
ancillary works  

Colley Park Northern 
Football - 
Enhance 

1.The site suffers from anti-social 
behaviour due to the location 
close by a housing estate. 
2. There is a need to replace the 
existing goal posts, along with an 
increased maintenance and 
improved maintenance 

1. Increase security of the site 
and install signage/fencing to 
prevent vandalism 
2. Replace existing goal posts 
and put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime 

SCC 
FF 

Explore potential for 
SCC and FF funding 

1. Short 
 

2. Short 

1. Low 
 

2. Medium 

Crosspool 
District Youth 
Sports Club 

South West 
Football - 
Enhance 

The ancillary provision on site was 
identified as poor and in need of 
refurbishment 

Invest in the refurbishment of the 
existing ancillary facilities on site 

FF 
SCC 

Explore potential for 
SCC and FF funding 

Medium Low 

Davy's 
Sporting Club 

East 

Football - 
Protect 

The site is heavily used for 
football by a number of local 
clubs; however, it is owned by a 
private landlord and there is no 
lease agreement in place 

Work with site owners and users 
to put in place a lease 
agreement in order to secure 
long-term access 

Site owners 
(private) 

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF officer 
time 

Short High 

Football - 
Enhance 

The main priority on site is to 
carry out ancillary improvements 
to prevent issues such as leaking 
roofs. 

Provide information on funding 
opportunities for the 
refurbishment of the existing 
ancillary facilities 

Site owners 
SCC  
FF 

ECB 

Explore potential for 
SCC, FF and ECB 
funding for ancillary 

upgrades 

Medium Medium 

Cricket –
Enhance 

The cricket pitch is of good quality 
and satisfies the needs of site 
users, however the pavilion – 
which was built in the 1960s – 
requires refurbishment 
(particularly repair works on the 
leaking roof). 

Support the club and provide 
information on funding 
opportunities for the 
refurbishment of the ancillary 
facilities 

Dore Moor 
Ground 

South West 
Rugby - 
Enhance 

The three main pitches are 
maintained to a high standard; 
however, the site is located on a 
hillside and the pitches can suffer 
from waterlogging in poor weather 
conditions. It was revealed in 
consultation that the club 
(Sheffield Tigers RFC) have 

Undertake further assessment to 
determine the scale and cost of 
drainage works required and 
provide the club with support 
and information on potential 
funding available for this project, 
as well as the 

Sheffield 
Tigers RFC 

RFU 
SCC 
SE  

RFU officer time, 
explore potential for 

RFC, SE funding 
Medium High 

P
age 105



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 50 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

aspirations to level and drain an 
area for a pitch to be used 
specifically by their junior section 
(as the junior pitch on site is of 
poor quality), however they 
require funding for this. 
The clubhouse on site is over 20 
years old and in need of 
refurbishment, the club stated in 
consultation that they would like to 
expand the kitchen facilities in 
order to generate greater income 
on match days 

refurbishment/extension of the 
ancillary facilities. 

Dungworth 
Green 

Northern 
Football - 
Enhance 

No formal demand has been 
identified through consultation; the 
site has recently had a number of 
teams leave due to the poor 
drainage of the pitches. 

Invest in drainage works in order 
to improve pitch quality and 
attract community use back to 
the site 

Parish 
Council 

FF 

Council and FF 
funding 

Medium Low 

East Park South East 
Football – 
Protect/ 
Enhance 

The main issue on site is 
regarding the condition of the 
ancillary facility, which needs 
renovation, and the car park 
provision also needs improvement 
and increased capacity.   

Explore potential funding 
opportunities for the 
refurbishment of the ancillary 
facilities and car park extension. 

SCC 
SE 
FF  

 

1. SCC, SE and FF 
officer time 

 
2. Explore potential for 

SCC, FF and SE 
funding  

1. Short 
 

2. Medium 

1. High 
 

2. Medium 

Ecclesfield 
Secondary 
School 

Northern 
Hockey - 
Protect 

The site is home to Chapeltown 
HC, how have a total of 13 teams 
playing from the site. It is the only 
pitch suitable for hockey in the 
north of Sheffield after the 
conversion of other AGPs to a 3G 
surface, including the recent 
change at Hinde House.  
The site owners have recently 
announced a desire to convert the 
pitch to a 3G surface which would 
impact the hockey club using the 
site and would mean that the club 
would have no nearby facilities 
which is likely to have a significant 
impact on their ability to remain a 

Protect the site as hockey 
provision, and if the pitch were 
to be converted to 3G, this 
should be mitigated with the 
provision of a hockey suitable 
AGP in the area. Chapeltown 
HC should also be supported 
with a potential relocation. 

Ecclesfield 
School 

Interserve 
SCC 
EH 
SE   

Officer time Short High 

P
age 106



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 51 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

viable club. This change is subject 
to approval and is currently on 
hold. 

Hockey - 
Enhance 

The AGP on site is over 15 years 
old and will need to be replacing/ 
refurbishment in the near future. 

Replace with existing surface 
(for a hockey suitable surface) 
within the next 3 years. 

Ecclesfield 
School 

EH 
SCC 

School funds, explore 
potential for EH and 

SCC funding  
Medium Medium 

Forge Valley 
Community 
School 

Northern 
Football - 
Enhance 

Consultation with the school 
revealed that the current artificial 
provision is not suitable and 
therefore the site is losing users.  

Work with the school and 
provide information on funding 
opportunities for the 
improvement of the artificial 
provision on site in order to 
better meet current demand. 

Forge Valley 
School 
SCC 
FF 

School funds, explore 
potential for SCC and 

FF funding 
Medium Medium 

Fox Lane 
Playing Fields 

South East  
Cricket –
Enhance 

The grass wickets on site were 
rated as poor and due to this, the 
analysis shows that the site is 
heavily overplayed for grass 
wickets. 
Due to being of public access, the 
site suffers from littering and 
some damage to the playing 
surfaces, as well as some 
vandalism incidents. 
Hollisend Methodist CC, users of 
the site, have expressed their 
aspirations to expand its playing 
and pavilion facilities to meet 
demand and the requirements of 
the Premier League. 

1. Invest in the full refurbishment 
of grass provision on site and 
put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime to improve 
pitch quality. 
 
2. Improve site security, signage 
and waste bin provision. 
 
3. Work with the club and 
provide support and funding 
opportunities to undertake the 
developments required to 
comply with league standards 

SCC 
ECB 
SE  

SCC funding, explore 
potential for SE and 

ECB funding  

1. Medium 
 

2. Short 
 

3. Medium 

1. Medium 
 

2. Low 
 

3. Medium 

Frecheville 
Community 
Sports & 
Social Club 

South East 
Cricket –
Enhance 

The club would like to replace the 
artificial strip on site, which has 
become worn. It was stated in 
consultation that this 
refurbishment of the NTP is 
crucial to allow the club to 
continue growing. 

Provide information on potential 
funding opportunities for the 
refurbishment of the existing 
non-turf pitch on site. 

Sports Club 
ECB 
SCC 

Club funds and ECB 
funding  

Short Medium 

Graves Park South Football 
The site is able to cater for 17 
pitches, but this has reduced in 
line with demand. There is a need 

Work in conjunction with the FF, 
ECB and SE to protect the site 
as playing fields. If the site was 

SCC 
FF 

Officer time Short High 

P
age 107



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 52 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

to protect the pavilion for sports 
use. 

to be lost, equivalent football 
and cricket provision should be 
sought elsewhere in the area.  

ECB 
SE  

Cricket 

All the pitches are on a slope and 
uneven but with adequate 
drainage. There is an ancillary 
facility on site with numerous 
changing rooms, however 
consultation has revealed that this 
is potentially changing to flats and 
being redeveloped. 
Club consultation also revealed 
that Norton Woodseats have 
plans to move to Matthews Lane 
by 2020. 

Graves Park 
– Cobnar 
Road 

South 
Cricket - 
Enhance 

The site is home to one adult 
team from Sheffield Super Kings 
CC. 
The grass provision on site was 
rated as Poor and due being 
considered unsafe a carrying 
capacity of 0 matches per season 
has been allocated to this pitch 

Put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime in order to 
increase pitch capacity and 
address the current issue of 
overplay. 

SCC 
ECB 

Officer time, explore 
potential for SCC and 

ECB funding for 
additional 

maintenance 
equipment  

Short Medium 

Hallam CC – 
Sandygate 
Road 

South West 

Cricket - 
Enhance 

The site is used by Hallam Cricket 
Club, the largest club in the area, 
and the main challenge at this site 
is the close proximity of housing, 
pavements and roads and, 
consequently, the high risk of ball 
strikes.  
The club have undertaken a 
Labosport assessment which has 
determined that erecting 25m high 
netting on the site’s perimeter 
would not be sufficient to 
adequately deal with this risk 

Work with the club and the ECB 
to undertake further assessment 
and determine the most suitable 
solution to the issue of ball strike 
risk.  

SCC 
ECB  

Officer time, explore 
potential for ECB 

funding for 
fencing/alternative 

solution  

Short Low 

Cricket - 
Provide 

The club have gained planning 
permission for a new pavilion at 
thee site to replace their current, 
small building and provide more 
space for changing rooms and 

Support the club with their 
development plans and provide 
information on potential funding 
opportunities. 

SCC 
SE 

ECB  

Explore potential for 
additional funding from 

SCC, SE and ECB.   
Medium-Long Medium 

P
age 108



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 53 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

socialising. Fundraising has been 
done by the club and efforts are 
still on-going 

Hallam CC – 
Crimicar Lane 

South West 
Cricket – 
Enhance  

The club would like to add nets at 
the site to help spread their 
current demand over their two 
sites. It was stated in consultation 
that the installation of an NTP on 
the existing square is currently a 
priority for the club. 
Some drainage issues were also 
identified at the site, which the 
club would like to address.  
Hallam CC would like to extend 
the lease at this site and is 
undertaking a feasibility study with 
regards to further development 

1. Provide the club with 
information on potential funding 
opportunities for the installation 
of practice nets and non-turf 
wickets on site 
 
2. Undertake further feasibility 
work to determine the scale and 
cost of the work required for 
improved drainage and 
development of additional 
provision on site. 

SCC 
ECB 

Hallam CC 
SE   

 

SCC and ECB officer 
time. Explore potential 
for SCC, ECB and SE 

funding  

1. Short 
 

2. Medium 

1. Medium 
 

2. Medium 

Handsworth 
Junior 
Sporting Club 

East 
Football - 
Enhance 

In line with findings from the 
LFFP, the site was identified as a 
potential location for development 
of a full-sized 3G AGP. 

Support the club and provide 
information on funding available 
for the development of 3G 
provision on site, which would 
contribute to addressing the 
current deficit identified in the 
analysis – This has now been 
developed. 

SCC 
FF 
SE  

Explore potential for 
SCC, FF and SE 

funding  
Medium High 

Handsworth 
Recreation 
Ground 

East 
Football - 
Enhance 

The site lacks suitable parking 
provision and during peak times 
this is an issue due to being 
reliant upon on road parking. 

Explore the possibility of 
developing parking facilities on 
site 

SCC 
FF 

SCC funding Short Low 

Heliport Site 
Recreation 
Ground 
(PWS) 

North East 
Football - 
Enhance 

The ancillary facility meets all 
demand however does not have 
shower provision present. There 
is also evidence of graffiti to this 
facility along with windows/door 
frames being abused and heavily 
damaged. Due to the moderate 
slope across the site, there are 
few issues with drainage. 

1. Provide information on 
potential funding opportunities 
for the development of shower 
provision 
 
2. Increase site security and 
improve signage to prevent anti-
social behaviour 
 
3. Increase maintenance on site 
with a view to improve drainage 

SCC 
FF 

Explore potential for 
SCC and FF funding 

1. Medium 
 

2. Short 
 

3. Short 

1. Low 
 

2. Medium 
 

3. Medium 

P
age 109



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 54 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

High Storrs 
School 

South West  

Consultation with the FA revealed 
that there were plans to develop a 
new full sized 3G pitch however 
this has not materialised. 
 

No action needed 

High Storrs 
School 
SCC 
FF 
SE  

School funds, explore 
potential for FF and 

SE funding  
Medium-Long High 

Hillsborough 
Sports Arena 
(HASA) 

Central 
Football - 
Enhance 

The site is home to Hillsborough 
Pumas for their 21 sides, as well 
as AFC Hallamshire for one U15 
side. Many of the facilities on site 
are ageing (e.g. AGP) and they 
would like to renovate all 
provision, if funds were available. 
For example, many of the 
floodlights on the AGP need to be 
replaced. 

Provide support and information 
on potential funding 
opportunities for renovation 
works to the facilities on site, 
particularly the AGP 

SCC 
FF 

Explore potential for 
SCC and FF funding 

Medium-Long Medium 

HSBC Sports 
Club 

South West 
Football - 
Enhance 

The site meets significant demand 
from Olympic Crookes FC, 
Crosspool Juniors FC, Hallam FC, 
HSBC Ban, Brunsmeer AJW and 
Porter FC. The facilities on site 
are well maintained, including 
good quality of ancillary services. 
Many of these clubs having rolling 
yearly agreements, however, the 
owner has the right to deny 
access to those that mistreat/ 
vandalise. In terms of facility 
improvements, the club would like 
to add a gym to the site to better 
meet demand. 

Provide information on potential 
funding available for the 
installation of a gym on site 

SCC 
HSBC 

Sports Club 

Private funds, explore 
potential for SCC 

funding 
Medium Low 

Jubilee 
Sports & 
Social Club 
(Sheffield 
Rangers) 

Central 
Football - 
Enhance 

The site is home to Sheffield 
Rangers FC, and football is the 
only sport accommodated on site. 
There are two formal grass 
pitches present on site, however, 
there is further space for overlay 
present. The site is currently over 
capacity, there is demand for 
Youth 11v11 and Mini Soccer on 

A potential reconfiguration of the 
site, with re-laying of existing 
pitches and potential 
development of additional 
provision should be explored in 
order to better address current 
levels of demand. 

SCC 
Sheffield 
Rangers 

FF 

SCC and FF officer 
time. Explore potential 

for FF funding for 
development works 

Medium Medium 

P
age 110



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 55 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

site, however no provision of 
these pitch typologies. 

Light Wood 
Playing Fields 

South East 
Football - 
Enhance 

The main issues with the site are 
regarding parking provision, due 
to the high number of site users 
during peak times there is a 
reliance upon on road parking, 
however this has caused issues 
with local residents. 

Explore the potential for the 
provision of parking facilities on 
site 

SCC 
SCC officer time and 

funding 
Medium Low 

Loxley Road 
(Crosspool 
Junior FC) 
 

Northern 
Football - 
Enhance 

The site suffers heavily from anti-
social behaviour, with evidence of 
fly tipping, dog fouling and 
informal motorbike riding across 
the pitches. 
The 11v11 pitch is significantly 
better in condition than the 
remaining two, the worse pitch is 
the 9v9 pitch on the level below. 
This pitch suffers from springs 
underneath the pitch along poor 
drainage and standing water, this 
pitch is also very small in size and 
the club are looking to extend this. 
The main priority for the club is to 
renovate the current 'caretakers 
house', where the club would like 
to install a kitchen and suitable 
changing/toilet provision within. 
The club are expecting significant 
funding to be needed here in 
order to install this to a suitable 
standard, and to be able to meet 
provision for a number of ages 
and genders. The club are also 
keen to install an education room 
on site, in order to act as a 
meeting room for the club and 
also an area where they can carry 
out internal CPD and workshops 
for members of the club. 

1. Increase site security and 
signage to prevent vandalism 
 
2. Work with the club to put in 
place a more robust 
maintenance regime and 
improve pitch quality 
 
3. Provide the club with support 
and information on potential 
funding opportunities for 
ancillary facility developments 

SCC  
FF 

Crosspool 
FC 
SE  

SCC and FF funding, 
explore potential for 

SE funding for 
ancillary 

developments  

1. Short 
 

2. Short 
 

3. Medium- 
Long 

1. Medium 
 

2. Medium 
 

3. Medium 

P
age 111



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 56 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

Football - 
Provide 

There is space next to the current 
9v9 provision for a further adult 
pitch, the club are keen to 
establish this however it will 
require significant investment due 
to its current condition and 
surface type. 

Provide support and information 
on potential funding 
opportunities for the installation 
of an additional pitch on site. 

SCC 
FF 

SSE  

Explore potential for 
SCC, FF and SE 

funding  
Medium Medium 

Loxley Sports 
Ground 

Northern 
Cricket – 
Enhance  

The site is used by two adult 
teams from Telecom Sports CC. 
There is a disused NTP and the 
grass provision was also identified 
as Poor.  

Put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime in order to 
increase pitch capacity and 
address the current issue of 
overplay at the site. 

SCC  
ECB  

SCC and ECB officer 
time and funding  

Short Medium 

Mather Road 
Recreation 
Ground 

East 
Football - 
Enhance 

There are two adult pitches on 
site, however only demand for 
Youth and Mini football was 
recorded at the site (from Darnall 
Football Academy and Darnall 
Diamonds). 

Explore the possibility for a 
potential reconfiguration of the 
pitches on site in order to better 
address current levels and 
nature of demand 

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF officer 
time 

Short Medium 

Matthews 
Lane 

South 
Cricket – 
Provide 

The site has no grass provision 
and no formal demand has been 
recorded at part of this study, 
however there are plans for 
Norton Woodseats CC to move to 
the site from 2020. 
Sport England funded a 9-strip 
square, and this is ready for play.  
A new pavilion has recently 
started construction on this site. 

Continue supporting the club 
with their development plans at 
the site. 

SCC 
ECB 

Woodseats 
CC  

SCC and ECB officer 
time 

Short High 

Meadowhead 
School 

South 
Hockey – 
Enhance  

The site is used as a backup 
ground by Sheffield HC, who play 
on average two fixtures per week 
at the site. 
The pitch on site was scored as 
Standard as part of the 
assessment and no major issues 
were identified, however the club 
reported that the line markings are 
raised, which causes issues to the 
ball jumping, posing a danger to 
players.   

Invest in the refurbishment of the 
current surface in order to 
address the issue of raised line 
markings. 

School 
EH 

SCC 

School funds, EH 
funding  

Short Medium 

P
age 112



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 57 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

Middlewood 
Rovers JFC 

East 

Football - 
Enhance 

The club have big aspirations for 
the site, and due to the housing 
developments in the area, they 
are expecting to expand rapidly 
and foresee needing an increase 
in carrying capacity at the site. 
The club are looking to install 
artificial drainage to the adult 
11v11 pitch, along with moving 
the current ancillary facility to 
incorporate a further mini 5v5 
pitch.  

Support the club with their 
development plans and provide 
information on potential funding 
available for this. 

Site owners 
Middlewood 

JFC 
SCC 
FF 

Private funds, explore 
potential for SCC and 

FF funding 
Medium-Long Medium 

Football - 
Provide 

The club have expressed an 
interest in expanding provision to 
the farmers field behind, which 
would incorporate a further two 
adult 11v11 pitches, or utilising 
the Handsworth Sport and Social 
club site which is currently 
disused and would have suitable 
ancillary facilities also. The club 
are also looking to expand car 
parking provision to the other side 
of the site to better meet demand. 
FA consultation revealed that the 
club have plans to develop a new 
clubhouse/pavilion on site, for 
which they will be applying for 
Football Foundation funding in the 
January 2020 window. 

Undertake feasibility work to 
determine the scale and cost of 
work required to develop 
additional provision in adjacent 
land as desired by the club, as 
well as the extension of existing 
parking facilities. 

Site owners 
SCC 
FF 

Officer time Short Medium 

Millhouses 
Park 

South West 
Cricket – 
Enhance 

The site is home to Millhouses 
Works CC, who have four adult 
and three junior teams playing 
from here. Currently there is no 
off-pitch training facility in the park 
and the club has cited that needs 
adding. 
Additionally, the club would like to 
improve quality of the outfield, as 
the undulations and drainage 

1. Support the club and provide 
information on potential funding 
opportunities for the installation 
of practice facilities on site. 
 
2. Undertake further assessment 
to determine the scale and cost 
of work required to improve 
drainage and evenness of 
pitches. 

SCC 
ECB 

Millhouses 
Works CC  

SCC and ECB officer 
time and funding  

1. Medium 
 

2. Short 

1. Low 
 

2. Medium 

P
age 113



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 58 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

issues are affecting both training 
and matches. They are currently 
seeking funding for this. 

Cricket - 
Provide 

The club have recently completed 
construction of a new cricket 
pavilion on the site. 

Support the club with the 
development of a new pavilion 
and provide information on 
funding opportunities if required. 

SCC 
ECB 
SE 

Millhouses 
Works CC 

Explore potential for 
SCC, ECB and SE 

funding   
Medium-Long Medium 

Niagara 
Conference 
and Leisure 
Centre 

Central 

Rugby 
League – 

Protect/Pro
vide 

Sheffield Hawks ARLFC currently 
are based at the site, where they 
share with other sports. It was 
stated in consultation that the 
club’s ability to grow larger is 
hampered by lack of available 
space. Additionally, they have a 
rolling yearly agreement and 
review other options after each 
season, and a key development 
goal is to acquire their own site 
with multiple pitches, so they can 
more easily accommodate 
demand. 

Support the club with their re-
location plans and assist them 
securing a suitable location to 
serve as home ground. 
Alternatively, explore the 
possibility of developing 
additional provision at the site. 

RFL 
SCC 

Officer time Short High 

Norton Oakes 
Cricket Club 

South 
Cricket – 
Enhance 

The pavilion on site has been 
identified as old and in need of 
refurbishment, and the club have 
also highlighted a need for 
practice nets or and NTP on site 
to facilitate training demands and 
allow the club to grow further 

Invest in the refurbishment of the 
existing ancillary facility, and the 
installation of practice facilities. 

Norton 
Oakes CC 

ECB 
SCC 

Explore potential for 
ECB and SCC funding  

Medium Medium 

Norfolk Park East 
Football - 
Provide 

Large community park that is 
home to Pro Socker Puma JFC 
for their six sides and has high 
community presence due to the 
number of different activities and 
social gatherings that occur on 
site.  
There are no changing facilities 
located on the site however, and 
this is a development priority for 
the club. 

Provide the club with support 
and information on potential 
funding opportunities for the 
development of changing 
facilities on site. 

SCC 
FF 
SE  

SCC funding, explore 
potential for FF and 

SE funding 
Medium Medium 

P
age 114



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 59 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

Norton 
Playing Fields 

South 

Football - 
Protect 

The site is owned by Sheffield 
University and have very recently 
installed 2 new 3G pitches. Whilst 
all facilities are available for 
external use there is no 
agreement in place that would 
prevent the university restricting 
access 

Work with the University to put in 
place a long-term community 
use agreement to the site, which 
is heavily used by local football 
clubs. 

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF officer 
time 

Short High 

Football 
/Rugby - 
Provide 

Short term developments focus on 
car parking and access. Currently 
there is a small car park between 
the pavilion and 3G pitches. They 
will be building a new access 
point by Newfield School. 
There is also an area of disused 
land behind the 3G pitches with 
plans to develop into another 
grass pitch. 

Provide support and information 
on potential funding 
opportunities for planned 
development works to parking 
and access, as well the 
development of additional grass 
provision to address the current 
issue of overplay. 

SCC 
FF 

RFU 
Sheffield 
University 

Explore potential for 
SCC, FF and RFU 

funding 
Medium Medium 

Cricket – 
Enhance  

The cricket pitch on site was 
identified as standard, however it 
is currently overplayed by 6 match 
equivalents per season. 

Put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime in order to 
increase pitch quality and 
carrying capacity 

Sheffield 
University 

ECB 
SCC  

ECB officer time and 
funding 

Short Medium 

Rugby - 
Protect 

The site is heavily used by 12 
adult teams from several rugby 
clubs; however, it has been 
identified as unsecured for long-
term use 

Work with site owners and users 
to put in place a formal 
community use agreement 

Sheffield 
University 

SCC 
RFU 

Officer time Short High 

Oxley Park Northern 
Football - 
Enhance 

There is 11v11 adult and youth 
pitch provision but poor drainage. 
Junior Foxes FC are using the site 
and planning for a 3G pitch is 
currently underway. 

Improve drainage and deliver 3G 
pitch on the site. Put in place a 
more robust maintenance 
regime in order to attract 
demand back to the site. 

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF funding 
Towns Fund 

Short Low 

Parson Cross 
Park 

North East 
Rugby -
Enhance 

The site is a football hub, which 
has been developed with money 
from Sports England and the 
Football Foundation.  
Following a request from Sheffield 
Oaks RFC, two football pitches 
were replaced as they were 
disused and are now used by the 

Put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime to improve 
pitch quality and provide the club 
information on potential funding 
for the installation of floodlights. 
 
Refurbishment of changing 
pavilion and pitch fencing 

SCC 
RFU 

SCC and RFU officer 
time and funding 

Short Medium 

P
age 115



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 60 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

rugby club. The pitches are rated 
as poor and do not have floodlight 
provision. 

Petre Street North East 
Football - 
Enahance 

Aden Steelers are looking to lease 
the site from the council 

Support the club securing 
access to the site and provide 
information on potential funding 
opportunities to upgrade 
ancillary facilities to suitable 
standards for club use. 

SCC 
Aden 

Steelers 
FF 

SCC officer time and 
funding 

Short Medium 

Porter F.C South West 
Football - 
Enhance 

There are issues on site in terms 
of drainage on the 11v11 adult 
pitch. This problem is exacerbated 
during times of heavy rainfall 
where there is a possibility of the 
river bursting its banks on site 

Work with the club to increase 
maintenance on site, with a view 
to improve drainage. 

SCC 
FF 

SCC an FF officer 
time and funding 

Short Medium 

Redmires 
Playing Fields 

South West 
Football - 
Enhance 

The site is home to Hallam 
Rangers JFC with no changing 
facilities available on site. The 
club is interested in continuing the 
lease with the council and 
upgrade the site to accommodate 
more teams and also changing 
facilities. 

Undertake further feasibility work 
to determine the scale and cost 
of the work required to develop 
ancillary facilities on site. 
Provide information on potential 
funding opportunities for this. 

SCC 
FF 
SE  

Hallam 
Rangers 

JFC 

SCC officer time and 
funding. Explore 

potential for FF and 
SE funding for 
ancillary facility 
development 

Medium-Long Medium 

Reignhead 
Farm 

South East 
Football - 
Enhance 

This site is used by the MDS 
Beighton Falcons with various 
teams using the site as their home 
ground. The storage and ancillary 
sheds are used by the club for 
equipment and changing but there 
are no showers. These require 
refurbishment or replacement. 
Most of the pitches on site are 
standard but there are some 
drainage issues, these are a 
development priority. 
The site suffers from significant 
dog fouling issues. 

Invest in the installation of 
shower provision. 
Work with the club to increase 
maintenance on site, with a view 
to improve drainage of the 
pitches. 

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF funding Medium Medium 

Shardlow’s Northern 
Football - 
Protect 

The site is owned by Jaguar, and 
Ecclesfield Red Rose have this on 
a rolling lease until 2021. The club 

Important site for sport, protect 
the site for football or other pitch 
sports. 

SCC 
Ecclesfield 
Red Rose 

SCC officer time Short High 

P
age 116



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 61 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

are concerned regarding potential 
housing developments on site 
however there has been no formal 
agreement made. 

FC 
FF 
SE  

Football - 
Enhance 

Towards the north of the site there 
is a public thoroughfare, that is 
used heavily by dog walkers and 
consequently the site falls victim 
to fouling.  
The main issue regarding grass 
pitch provision is the pooling and 
waterlogging present, particularly 
on the 9v9 pitch. The club are 
keen to add artificial drainage on 
site to combat this as they believe 
that maintenance is no longer 
present 

1. Improve signage and was bin 
provision on site to prevent dog 
fouling and littering issues. 
 
2. Undertake further assessment 
to determine the sale and cost of 
work required to install artificial 
pitch drainage. Provide 
information on funding 
opportunities for this project. 

SCC 
FF 

Explore potential for 
SCC and FF funding 

1. Short 
 

2. Medium 

1. Low 
 

2. Medium 

Sheffield 
Hallam 
University 
Sports Park 

East 
Rugby - 
Provide 

Rugby provision is of good quality 
and used by Sheffield Vulcans 
RFC, however, it must be 
highlighted that the site has no 
spare capacity for adult rugby 
during peak times of demand, 
which is worsen due to the AGP 
present on site no longer being 
WR22 compliant. 

Work with the university and the 
RFU to undertake a re-test and 
approve the AGP as WR22 
compliant in order to increase 
rugby match and training 
capacity in the study area. 

Sheffield 
Hallam 

University 
RFU 

RFU officer time Short High 

Sheffield Park 
Academy 

East 
Football - 
Enhance 

The site is heavily used by several 
local clubs; however, 
maintenance of the pitches was 
identified as poor and in need of 
improvements. 
There is shower provision 
present, however some of it is out 
of order. 

1. Put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime in order to 
improve pitch quality. 
 
2. Invest in the refurbishment of 
shower provision. 

Sheffield 
Park 

Academy 
SCC 
FF 

School funds, explore 
potential for SCC and 

FF funding for 
refurbishment of 
shower provision 

Medium Low 

Sheffield 
Transport 
Sports Club 

South 
Football - 
Enhance 

The changing rooms on site are of 
poor condition, these are a key 
development priority for the club 

Provide support and funding 
opportunities for the 
refurbishment of changing 
provision on site 

Site owners 
(private) 

SCC 
FF 

Explore potential for 
SCC and FF funding 

Medium Medium 

P
age 117



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 62 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

Cricket – 
Enhance 

At the end of the summer 2018 
season, a utilities company dug 
up part of the outfield and this has 
been left with large undulations 
and damage, making it not fit for 
purpose. The site owners have 
requested that the company either 
repair the damage or pay costs of 
repair  
The clubhouse on site is in poor 
condition and the club would like 
to upgrade it. 

1. Support the club with the 
repair work required on the 
outfield. 
 
2. Work in conjunction with the 
football section and the FF to 
refurbish the existing ancillary 
facilities. 

Site owners 
ECB 
SCC  

ECB and SCC officer 
time.  

1. Medium 
 

2. Medium 

1. Medium 
 

2. Medium 

Sheffield 
Wednesday 
Academy 

Central 
Football - 
Provide 

Whilst it is a training ground for a 
professional club there is some 
community use through their 
outreach programme. The main 
development on site is expanding 
provision in order to cater for both 
the professional sides, and the 
outreach programmes present. 

Support the site with their plans 
to expand provision to be made 
available to the wider 
community. 

Sheffield 
Wednesday 

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF officer 
time 

Medium Medium 

Sheffield 
Works 
Department 
Sports and 
Social Club 

East 

Football - 
Provide 

This site is heavily used by 
several local teams and 
contentious in terms of ownership 
- partly owned by the council and 
the sports club – with the lease 
currently being renegotiated. The 
council would want the ownership 
to be relinquished to them.  
They would want to extend the 
current AGP and turn it into a 3G 
surface, allowing teams to play 
there in Winter. 

Undertake feasibility of 
improving the AGP for football 
whilst protecting the site for 
cricket use 

SCC 
FF 

Explore potential for 
SCC and FF funding 
for 3G development 

Medium High 

Cricket – 
Enhance  

The site hosts a significant 
amount of cricket demand, with 
adult teams from Abbeydale CC, 
IMI Sheffield Alliance CC, 
Sharrow XI CC and Sheffield 
Centralians CC playing from the 
site. 

1. Support the club with the 
replacement/full refurbishment of 
cricket pitch provision on site in 
order to increase capacity   
 
2. Provide support and 
information on funding 

SCC 
ECB  

SCC and ECB officer 
time and funding  

1. Short 
 

2. Short 

1. Medium 
 

2. Low 

P
age 118



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 63 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

Pitch provision on site, both grass 
and non-turf, has been deemed 
poor and 
refurbishment/replacement works 
are required to increase the site 
carrying capacity.  
The club has identified a new NTP 
on the square as a priority for 
investment, specifically to provide 
for junior teams, however the club 
identified that the site owners do 
not have the funds to do this. 

opportunities for the installation 
of a non-turf pitch on site 

Silverdale 
School 

South West 
Football - 
Provide 

The AGP present on site is not full 
sized and has weed and moss 
growing around the edges. The 
AGP is 10 years old and is 
needing refurbishment. A change 
to a 3G or 4G AGP is something 
that would be desirable by 
management on site. 

Undertake further feasibility work 
to determine the viability of 
extending the AGP to a full-sized 
and converting the surface to 
3G. This would help address the 
current deficit of 3G provision 
identified as part of the analysis. 

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF officer 
time 

Short High 

St Aidans 
Playing Fields 

East 
Football - 
Enhance 

There is one formal pitch on site 
here, which is adult 11v11, this is 
home to Ball Inn FC. There are 
issues of standing water on the 
surrounds of the pitches and this 
is present on the pitch, however to 
a lesser extent. 

Put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime, with a view 
to improve pitch drainage. 

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF officer 
time and funding 

Short Low 

St George’s 
Park (SGP) 
Sheffield 
Graves 

South 
Football - 
Enhance 

The site is well utilized by the 
community and is of excellent 
condition throughout, however 
there is only one adult pitch on 
site and a significant amount of 
junior/mini demand was recorded 
as part of the study. 

Explore the possibility of re-
configuring the existing pitch into 
one or more junior/mini pitches 
in order to better address the 
nature of current demand 

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF officer 
time and funding 

Short Medium 

Stocksbridge 
High 

Northern 
Football - 
Enhance 

The high school has one senior 
pitch located on site and also use 
the local Steel City FC junior 
pitches in the locality. The pitch 
on site is of poor quality and 

Put in place a more robust 
maintenance regime to improve 
pitch quality.  

SCC 
FF 

SCC and FF officer 
time and funding 

Short Low 

P
age 119



   
   

  Doc Status: Final 
Doc Ref: Sheffield City Council PPS Needs Assessment 

  
 

 
Page 64 of 75 

Site Sub Area 
Action 
ID/Ref 

Issue / opportunity Key Action(s) Partners Resources/ Costs Timescale Priority 

needs improvement for the school 
to use it fully. 

Tapton 
Academy 

South West 
Football - 
Enhance 

The back of the grass pitches is 
not secured by a boundary fence 
and therefore there are some 
issues with litter and dog fouling. 

Improve signage, waste bin 
provision and explore the 
potential for installing fencing to 
prevent unauthorized access. 

Tapton 
Academy 

SCC 
FF 

School funds, explore 
potential for SCC and 

FF funding 
Short Low 

Totley Bents 
Recreation 
Ground 

South West 
Cricket – 
Enhance  

The site is home to 2 adult teams 
from Totley Bent CC. 
There is one square on site with 
grass wickets that were identified 
as of poor quality. 

Work with the club to put in 
place a more robust 
maintenance regime in order 
increase pitch capacity and 
address the current issue of 
overplay. 

SCC 
ECB 

Totley Bent 
CC  

SCC and ECB officer 
time and funding  

Short Medium 

Whitley Hall 
Playing Fields 

Northern 
Cricket – 
Enhance  

The site is situated in a narrow 
residential area, consequently it is 
assumed that there are issues 
with the balls going into the road 
and surrounding houses. There is 
also limited parking provision on 
site, and this again is situated 
close to the boundary. 

Explore the possibility of 
installing high fencing or nets 
and undertake feasibility work to 
determine the viability of a 
potential car park extension. 

SCC 
ECB  

SCC and ECB officer 
time and funding  

Short Low 

 

P
age 120



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 65 of 75 

  

 

Section 6: Delivering the Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 121



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 66 of 75 

 Delivering the Playing Pitch Strategy 

 To facilitate the development of sport and physical activity across Sheffield, it is advised 

that the Steering Group, set up as part of the Playing Pitch Strategy project, continues to 

work together to deliver the recommendations defined as part of this strategy. 

 The success of a PPS will be determined by how it is used. It is recommended that the 

delivery of the strategy is led by the Council, with close support by the steering group that 

has been developed as part of this project. It is suggested that a Stage E meeting is held 

for this purpose. Further guidance is provided in Sport England’s PPS Guidance in the 

form of the Stage E commentary and associated checklist. Further detail on how a PPS 

can be used is included in Technical Appendix G – Applying the Playing Pitch Strategy. 

 Keeping the PPS relevant and up-to-date 

 To ensure that the Playing Pitch Strategy stays relevant and continues to support 

stakeholders in the delivery of sport and physical activity facility investment and 

development, an annual review should be undertaken. This review, which if undertaken 

regularly will have a reduced scope than the full PPS, will allow the steering group to 

review progress against the PPS recommendations and action plan. The review will also 

identify any emerging issues and apply any lessons learnt through recent development or 

investment projects.  

 Through the development of the PPS, data has been stored and analysed on the 4 global 

Playing Pitch Strategy Platform, which has up to date supply and demand data for pitch 

sports across the district. This data is available to Sheffield Council and it is 

recommended that this is used as the starting point for future strategy refresh projects. 

Figure 6.1: Sheffield Council Playing Pitch Platform 

  

Page 122



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 67 of 75 

 In the short term, it is advised that the Council sets up an implementation group (which 

should be a continuation of steering group set up as part of the PPS), to co-ordinate 

preparation of a short-term action plan, as well as undertaking further sub-regional needs 

assessment for major cross-boundary development projects. The PPS has identified, on a 

site by site and sub-area level, the needs for pitch and ancillary provision across 

Sheffield. Where the current level of supply does not meet the current or future needs of 

residents for specific sports, pitch typologies and ancillaries have been identified as 

requiring further capacity to meet demand.  

 In order to provide this additional capacity, guidance has been provided as to whether the 

steering group and partner organisations should look to; 

• Enhance existing pitches to increase their capacity and ensure adequate 

maintenance to maintain the higher use, and/or 

• Secure greater community access to sites and undertake necessary works to 

allow for such use to occur, and/or 

• Provide new playing pitches on new sites (natural or artificial grass pitches). 

 Where the third option has been recommended, further guidance is available from Sport 

England and National Governing Bodies to advise on the best course of action for local 

authorities and delivery organisations.  

 Securing additional or improved pitch provision through development 

 In addition to the specific site by site recommendations identified throughout the needs 

assessment, it is also key that the strategy provides a clear approach to securing playing 

pitch provision in the case of new development, or utilising Section 106 (S106) or 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contributions to improve the quantity or accessibility 

of existing provision.  

 It is important to note that for any contribution secured through S106, a clear and tailored 

approach is required, to demonstrate how the contribution will be used to benefit 

residents. Specifically, the Playing Pitch Strategy’s evidence base and action plan should 

be used to justify the need arising from the specific development and how these are to be 

met.  

 While S106 investment should typically be used for improvement projects nearby new 

development, or for developing new provision on new sites, CIL contributions are typically 

more appropriate for key strategic investment projects.  

 The graphic overleaf and associated commentary identifies the stages that should be 

followed, when utilising the Playing Pitch Strategy to secure additional or improved pitch 

provision through development. 

  

Page 123



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 68 of 75 

Figure 6.2: Securing additional or improved pitch provision through development 

 

 Although the population of a single development may not in itself generate the demand 

for a full pitch, it will still generate additional demand which should be quantified and be 

met.  

 Using the Community Infrastructure Levy to invest in pitch sport provision 

 If a Local Authority uses CIL to invest in community projects, there are a range of 

resources available to support the development of these investment cases, alongside the 

evidence from this Playing Pitch Strategy.  

 Sport England continue to keep the advice note for CIL and Planning Obligations 

updated, with the latest version found on the organisation’s website. The following key 

points have been updated and are particularly relevant to the outcomes of this PPS. 

TOP TIPS FOR USING CIL  

• Develop and maintain a robust and up to date evidence base for sporting 

provision. 

• Use the evidence base to: 

o Estimate the nature and level of needs that may be generated from new 

development(s) for sporting provision; 

o establish clear deliverable actions (with associated costs) that have the 

potential to help meet the needs that will be generated from new 

development in the area. 
Page 124



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 69 of 75 

▪ Based on the nature of the actions, the level of new development in an area, and the 

realistic ability to secure investment into sport through CIL or planning obligations, 

decide how best to use CIL and planning obligations alongside one another to 

deliver sporting infrastructure and to support development. 

▪ Where CIL is in place ensure any sporting provision to be placed on the 

Infrastructure List  is: 

o Project specific so it does not unnecessarily restrict the use of planning 

obligations; 

o focused on high level priority projects of a strategic nature that CIL has 

potential to deliver rather than a long list of projects that CIL will never 

be able to fund. This will allow the potential for other projects to be 

funded by planning obligations; 

o backed by strong high level officer and political support within the LA so 

that there is some confidence that CIL funds will be directed to the 

sporting provision. 

▪ Where CIL is not in place, or where the wording of a Infrastructure List allows for the 

use of planning obligations, ensure that: 

o any obligations sought are based on a tailored approach to each 

development, using the robust evidence base to help with clearly 

justifying the needs arising and how they are to be met; 

 Further information is available as part of Sport England’s CIL and Planning Obligations 

Advice Note, however it is key to note that in relation to the 1st top tip identified above, 

the development and delivery of this PPS is the first stage in utilising CIL to leverage 

grass roots sport investment. 

 Securing additional or improved pitch provision through development 

 In addition to the new or improved pitch provision that is identified in line with the process 

demonstrated above, the cost for maintenance of new facilities should also be sought for 

both on-site and off-site provision. For example, where 3G facilities are installed, the 

carpet will require replacement (approximately every 10 years depending on level of 

usage and maintenance) and costs towards a sinking fund should also be sought.  

 Where a pitch or pitches are required on-site, this may include requiring delivery through 

a planning policy and a masterplan approach for the whole area. This can ensure that 

enough suitable land is planned from the outset and provided at no cost. This is 

particularly important where there is a need for a large land-take associated with pitches.  

 Planning policy should seek to ensure that where sites are developed in phases or 

through multiple applications, and where the pitch provision is required on-site, that this 

provision is coordinated and delivered by the landowners/developers. In some 

circumstances, a single site for pitches serving all the development or all its phases can 

be required.  

 The timing and delivery of the pitches and related changing and parking facilities should 

be considered in relation to development phasing to achieve a balance between ensuring 

provision is in place in time to meet the needs of the residents, avoiding pressure being 

placed on existing facilities, and the financial viability of the development.  

 Where there are separate developments in close proximity that taken together generate a 

need for a whole pitch, contributions need to be made towards new provision or 

improving, existing pitches. For new pitches, the planning policy therefore also needs to 

identify where that pitch and related changing and parking facilities are to be located, how 

sufficient land is to be secured, and (where known) the individual developments that need 
Page 125



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 70 of 75 

to contribute to it. This also applies to where there is a need for a larger strategic site 

serving a large catchment. This may require the developers to provide the land on-site or 

for the local planning authority to identify the land through the Local Plan process. 

 Securing appropriate land provision from new development 

 Suitable land needs to be provided by developments, in line with the guidelines below; 

▪ Where the investment need is for a new pitch and related changing and parking 

facilities to meet the demand directly generated by the population of the new 

development(s), then the developer is expected to meet all these costs. These 

include provision, maintenance and land costs 

▪ Where the demand is for the majority (50% or more) of a pitch and related changing 

and parking facilities, that is to be provided on site, suitable land will be provided by 

the developer at no cost, as well as the population-related proportion of the cost of 

the pitch 

▪ Where the demand is for less than 50% of a pitch and related changing and parking 

facilities, that is to be provided on-site, then suitable land needs to be planned into 

the development, however only a proportionate amount of this land will be provided 

for free and the remainder will need to be funded from other sources (e.g. from 

pooled contributions from other developments, from grants or other sources) 

▪ Where the land cannot be provided for on-site because of proven master-planning 

constraints, financial viability or other relevant reasons, then the local authority may 

negotiate an appropriate alternative contribution, where this is S106 compliant.  

 Identifying the appropriate provision for contribution 

 As identified in the policy context for this document, the Council will secure developer 

contributions where appropriate towards future sports infrastructure to support future 

development in accordance with Local Plan policies and the Infrastructure Delivery Plan.  

Developer contributions will primarily be sought through S106 agreements, but other 

funding sources may also be secured where possible. The Council will continue to work 

with partners and infrastructure providers in order to secure improvements to sport 

infrastructure to meet the future needs of the district. 

 In the case of S106 contributions, the following should be noted; 

▪ Section 106 contributions must be directly related to the development in question; 

however, the impact of any development can affect the wider community. This 

means that S106 contributions can be used to deliver improvements to facilities that 

are located some distance away from the development, such as a local town centre 

or major sports facility hub site 

▪ Development that is funded through S106 contribution should be focussed on 

specific projects, identified through the strategic need’s assessments (such as this 

Playing Pitch Strategy) that have been issued by the Council. 

 Conciliating contributions 

 To calculate the scale of a developer’s financial contribution for the provision of pitches 

and related facilities, the following should be used: 

▪ Sport England’s Playing Pitch New Development Calculator should be used to 

assess pitch and related facilities arising from specific developments. This can be 

supported and evidenced by Sport England’s latest facility costs for pitches and 

related facilities, as well as detailed feasibility work and support from qualified cost Page 126



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 71 of 75 

consultants. The latest version of this calculator can be found here: 

https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-help/facilities-and-

planning/planning-for-sport/playing-pitch-calculator 

▪ The cost of maintenance and sinking funds, where justified, should be calculated 

using Sport England or NGB advice and supporting documents, however local 

knowledge and previous costs from similar maintenance contracts should be 

considered. Maintenance and sinking costs can also be provided by Sport England’s 

‘Lifecycle Costs’ (2017) however where specific and robust knowledge is available it 

is recommended that this is used 

▪ Where a land cost is justified this cost will be based on the local market cost for the 

relevant sport/leisure land use. There may also be a need to add the cost of other 

local and site-specific costs (e.g. abnormal ground conditions, site access needs 

etc.) 

▪ All costs should date related and inflation needs to be considered (e.g. if a facility is 

to be delivered in 3 years’ time the planning condition must apply an appropriate 

inflation index). 

 If the PPNCD is to be used, the Council should ensure that the most recent template is 

used, as financial data changes regularly. Further support is available from Sport England 

as required. 

Page 127

https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-help/facilities-and-planning/planning-for-sport/playing-pitch-calculator
https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-help/facilities-and-planning/planning-for-sport/playing-pitch-calculator


 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 72 of 75 

 Glossary of Terms  

 In order to fully understand the PPS, 4global have created a glossary detailing key terms 

and phrases mentioned throughout. The glossary is detailed below, along with 

appropriate definitions; 

ACRONYMS 

• 3G AGP: Third Generation Artificial Grass Pitch 

• 4g: 4global Consulting 

• AGP: Artificial Grass Pitch(es) 

• APS: Active People Survey(s) 

• CC: Cricket Club 

• CIL: Community Infrastructure Levy 

• CSP: County Sports Partnership 

• ECB: England and Wales Cricket Board 

• EH: England Hockey 

• FA: Football Association 

• FC: Football Club 

• FE: Further Education 

• GIS: Geographical Information Systems 

• HC: Hockey Club 

• HE: Higher Education 

• IOG: Institute of Groundsmanship 

• JFC: Junior Football Club 

• LDF: Local Development Framework 

• LMS: Last Man Stands 

• LSOA: Lower Layer Super Output Area 

• MES: Match equivalent sessions 

• NPPF: National Planning Policy Framework 

• PPS: Playing Pitch Strategy 

• PQS: Performance Quality Standard 

• RFU: Rugby Football Union 

• RUFC: Rugby Union Football Club 

• S106: Section 106 Agreement 

• U: Under. 

PHRASES 

 National Governing Body of Sport (NGB) - typically these are independent, self-

appointed organisations that govern their sports through the common consent of their 

sport. Sport England has a recognition process for NGBs that aims to identify a single 

lead NGB structure which governs a sport at UK, GB or home country level. 

 Unsecured Community Use - these are pitches that are currently used or available for 

community-use, however there is no secure management/usage agreement in place. 

 Secured Community Use - all pitches in LA, town and parish council ownership would 

typically be considered secure. It must be noted that secured access relates to 

Page 128



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 73 of 75 

community users of pitches in general terms having secured access to sites, not 

individual teams/clubs. 

 Team Generation Rate – Provides an indication of how many people it may take to 

generate a team. A TGR can be calculated by dividing the current population within an 

age group for a sport by the number of teams in the area within that age group. This is 

then used to calculate the number of teams that will be required in the future, to allow for 

future population growth or reduction. 

 Displaced demand generally relates to play by teams or other users of playing pitches 

from within the Study Area (i.e. from residents of the Study Area) which takes place 

outside of the area. This may be due to issues with the provision of pitches and ancillary 

facilities in the Study Area, just reflective of how the sports are played (e.g. at a central 

venue for the wider area) or due to the most convenient site for the respective users just 

falling outside of the local authority/Study Area. 

 Unmet demand is demand that is known to exist but unable to be accommodated on 

current supply of pitches. This could be in the form of a team with access to a pitch for 

matches but nowhere to train or vice versa. This could also be due to the poor quality and 

therefore limited capacity of pitches in the area and/or a lack of provision and ancillary 

facilities which meet a certain standard of play/league requirement. League secretaries 

may be aware of some unmet demand as they may have declined applications from 

teams wishing to enter their competitions due to a lack of pitch provision which in turn is 

hindering the growth of the league. 

 Latent demand is demand that evidence suggests may be generated from the current 

population should they have access to more or better provision. This could include 

feedback from a sports club who may feel that they could set up and run an additional 

team if they had access to better provision. 

 Future demand is an informed estimate made of the likely future demand for pitches in 

the Study Area. This is generally based on the most appropriate current and future 

population projections for the relevant age and gender groupings for each sport. Key 

trends, local objectives and targets and consultation also inform this figure. 

 Casual use or other use could take place on natural grass pitches or AGPs and include: 

• Regular play from non-sports club sources (e.g. companies, schools, fitness 

classes) 

• Infrequent informal/friendly matches 

• Informal training sessions 

• More casual forms of a particular sport organised by sports clubs or other parties 

• Significant public use and informal play, particularly where pitches are located in 

parks/recreation grounds. 

 

 Carrying capacity is the amount of play a site can regularly accommodate (in the 

relevant comparable unit) for community use without adversely affecting its quality and 

use. This is typically outlined by the NGB. 

 Overplay is when a pitch is used over the amount that the carrying capacity will allow, 

(i.e. more than the site can accommodate). Pitches have a limit of how much play they 

can accommodate over a certain period of time before their quality, and in turn their use, 

is adversely affected. 

 Spare capacity is the amount of additional play that a pitch could potentially 

accommodate in additional to current activity. There may be reasons why this potential to 

accommodate additional play should not automatically be regarded as actual spare 

Page 129



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 74 of 75 

capacity, for example, a site may be managed to regularly operate slightly below its 

carrying capacity, to ensure that it can cater for a number of friendly matches and training 

activity. This needs to be investigated before the capacity is deemed actual spare 

capacity. 
Match equivalent sessions is an appropriate comparable unit for pitch usage. For football, rugby union and 
rugby league, pitches should relate to a typical week within the season and one match = one match equivalent 
session if it occurs every week or 0.5 match equivalent sessions if it occurs every other week (i.e. reflecting 
home and away fixtures). For cricket pitches it is appropriate to look at the number of match equivalent sessions 
over the course of a season and one match = one match equivalent session.  

Page 130



 
  Doc Status: Draft 

Doc Ref: Sheffield District PPS Needs Assessment 
 
 
 

 
Page 75 of 75 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

End 

4global | tel:0208 1234 693  
email: enquiries@4global.com 
www.4global.com 
 
4global | tel:0208 1234 693  
email: enquiries@4global.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131

mailto:enquiries@4global.com
mailto:enquiries@4global.com


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132



Policy Committee Report                                                        April 2022 

 

 
 

Report to Policy Committee 
 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:  Ryan Keyworth, 
Director of Finance and Commercial Services 
 
Tel:  +44 114 474 1438 

 
Report of: Ryan Keyworth 
Report to: Communities, Parks & Leisure Committee 
Date of Decision: 19th September 2022 
Subject: Month 4 Monitoring 
Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes  No X  
Has appropriate consultation taken place? Yes  No X  
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes  No X  
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No X  
 
Purpose of Report: 
This report brings the Committee up to date with the Council’s financial position as 
at Month 4 2022/23.  

 
Recommendations: 
The Committee is recommended to: 
 
1. Note the Council’s challenging financial position as at the end of July 2022 (month 4). 

 
Background Papers: 
2022/23 Revenue Budget 

 
  

Page 133

Agenda Item 10

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s50376/3%20-%20Revenue%20Budget%20Report%202022-23.pdf


Page 2 of 8 

 
Lead Officer to complete: - 
 

Finance:  Ryan Keyworth, Director of Finance and 
Commercial Services  
Legal:  David Hollis, Assistant Director, Legal and 
Governance  

Equalities & Consultation:  James Henderson, 
Director of Policy, Performance and 
Communications  

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Climate:  n/a 
 

 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

Ryan Keyworth 

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Cllr Bryan Lodge 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2. In addition, any additional 
forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1.  

 Lead Officer Name: 
Ryan Keyworth 

Job Title:  
Director of Finance and Commercial Services 

 Date:  1st September 2022 

 
  

Page 134



Page 3 of 8 

1. PROPOSAL  
1.1 This report brings the 22/23 M4 monitoring information for each 

committee. Executive directors and Directors will be required to develop 
plans to mitigate the in-year forecast overspends.  

  
1.2 Council Portfolio Month 4 2022/23 
1.2.1 The Council is forecasting a £21.7m overspend against the 2022/23 

budget as at month 4. 
Full Year £m Outturn Budget Variance 
Corporate (462.0) (461.2) (0.8) 
City Futures 47.1 46.6 0.5 
Operational Services 115.0 114.9 0.1 
People 313.2 293.7 19.5 
Policy, Performance Comms 3.2 2.9 0.3 
Resources 5.2 3.1 2.1 
Total 21.7 0 21.7 

  
1.2.2 This overspend is due to a combination of agreed Budget Implementation 

Plans (“BIPs”) not being fully implemented and ongoing cost / demand 
pressures that are partially offset by one-off savings. 

Full Year £m One-off BIPs Trend Total 
Variance 

Corporate 0.0 0.0 (0.8) (0.8) 
City Futures 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 
Operational Services (5.0) 2.4 2.7 0.1 
People 0.1 15.3 4.0 19.4 
Policy, Performance Comms (0.1) 0.3 0.1 0.3 
Resources (0.3) 1.7 0.7 2.1 
Total (5.3) 19.7 7.2 21.7 

 
 
1.3 Committee Financial Position 
1.3.1 Overall Position - £21.7m overspend at Month 4 
There is a £12.4m 
overspend in the 
Adult Health and 
Social Care 
Committee and a 
£7.5m overspend in 
the Education, 
Children and 
Families Committee 

Full Year Forecast £m  
Month  Outturn  Budget  Variance  

Adult Health & Social Care 163.1 150.8 12.4 
Education, Children & Families 136.1 128.6 7.5 
Strategy & Resources (440.1) (442.3) 2.1 
Economic Development & Skills 11.0 10.9 0.1 
Housing 8.8 8.8 (0.0) 
Waste & Street Scene 56.2 56.2 (0.0) 
Transport, Regeneration & Climate 41.8 41.9 (0.1) 
Communities Parks and Leisure  44.9 45.2 (0.3) 
Total 21.7 (0.0) 21.7 
    

Page 135



Page 4 of 8 

The 22/23 pay award 
proposal affected 
the outturn in the 
General Fund by 
£3.3m  
 

The proposed pay award of £1,925 flat rate per employee has 
been factored into forecasts in M4. Within the outturn at M3, an 
increase of £4.2m had already been accounted at service level, 
£5.6m had been provisioned corporately meaning an additional 
pressure of £3.3m has now been forecast in the M4 outturn, 
broken down into committees as follows: 

£000s 
 
Committee  

Increase 
(inc on 
costs)  

Pay 
Pressures 
covered  

Corporate 
Funding  

Remainin
g 

Pressure  
Education, Children & Families 3,882 1,181 1,655 1,046 
Strategy And Resources 2,817 1,209 1,201 407 
Adult Health And Social Care 2,658 815 1,133 709 
Communities, Parks, And 
Leisure 1,570 483 670 418 

Waste And Street Scene 820 255 350 215 
Transport, Regen & Climate 546 227 233 86 
Economic Development & Skills 410 27 175 208 
Housing 396 - 169 227 
Grand Total 13,100 4,197 5,586 3,317 

 
The overall position 
worsened by £1.4m 
from M3 to M4, 
improvements 
elsewhere have 
offset the full impact 
of the pay award. 
 
 

 
The £3.3m pressure for pay was offset in M4 by improvements 
totalling over £2m across the organisation:  

• Transport, regen & climate committee budget position 
improved by £1.2m due to a release of a one-off provision 
to mitigate the loss of income from the delayed go live 
date for the clean air zone 

• Education, children’s & families improved by £700k due a 
combination of better-quality forecasting in services and 
slippage in recruitment 

• Strategy & resources improved overall by £270k mainly 
due to higher investment returns in the market 

 
Most of the full year 
forecast overspend 
is attributable to 
shortfalls in Budget 
Implementation 
Plans (BIPs) 
delivery 

Variance Analysis £m  
Month 4 One-off  BIPs Trend Total 

Variance 
Adult Health & Social 
Care (0.3) 8.5 4.1 12.4 

Education, Children & 
Families 0.7 6.8 0.0 7.5 

Strategy & Resources (0.3) 1.9 0.6 2.1 
Economic Development 
& Skills (0.0) 0.0 0.1 0.1 

Housing 0.0 0.0 (0.0) (0.0) 
Waste & Street Scene (3.0) 0.2 2.8 (0.0) 
Transport, Regeneration 
& Climate (2.1) 2.1 (0.1) (0.1) 

Communities Parks and 
Leisure  (0.3) 0.2 (0.1) (0.3) 

Total (5.3) 19.7 7.3 21.7 
 
 

£5.3m of one-off 
savings are 
mitigating part of 

Contributions from provisions for energy and waste inflation 
mitigate the in-year impact of rising baseline costs. These are 
one-off contributions that will not help our position in 23/24 as the 
trend continues. 

Page 136



Page 5 of 8 

the ongoing 
overspend 
Balancing the 22/23 
budget was only 
possible with £53m 
of BIPs, £33m are 
reported as 
deliverable in year 

£m 
Portfolio  

Total Savings 
22/23 

Deliverable  
in year 

FY  
Variance 

People 37.7 22.4 15.3 
Operational Services 7.1 4.7 2.4 
PPC 1.2 0.9 0.3 
Resources 6.7 5.1 1.6 
Total 52.7 33.1 19.7 

Focus must be on 
delivering BIPs in 
22/23 and 
preventing the 
budget gap from 
widening 

Of the £33.1m BIPs forecast as being deliverable, £10.1m are 
rated red, which indicates considerable risk of increased 
overspending. 
Of the £19.6m savings that are forecast to be undelivered this 
year, some can be delivered next financial year. It is estimated 
that £10m of this year’s undelivered savings will still be 
unachievable in 23/24 and form part of the baseline pressures 
captured in the draft medium term financial analysis presented to 
the Strategy and Resources Committee on 5th July 2022. 

Adult Health and 
Social Care are 
forecast to 
overspend by 
£12.4m 

The high cost of packages of care put in place during covid has 
increased our baseline costs into 22/23. Work is underway as 
part of an investment plan with additional resource to tackle the 
underlying issues although recruitment issues are impacting our 
ability to deliver. 

Education, Children 
and Families are 
forecast to 
overspend by £7.5m 

Forecast under-delivery of budget implementation plans in the 
service are the main cause of overspends; plans to reduce 
staffing and increase income from Health are looking unlikely 
and the residential children’s home strategy looks unlikely to 
deliver financial benefits. The service needs to provide 
mitigations to bring overspends back in line with budgets. 

 
The following section provides further detail for the Communities, Parks & Leisure 
Committee.  
  

Page 137



Page 6 of 8 

1.4.1 Communities, Parks & Leisure Committee - underspend of 
£0.3m at Month 4 

The Communities 
Parks & Leisure 
Committee is 
forecast to 
underspend by 
£0.3m  

Full Year Forecast £m @ 
Month 4 Outturn  Budget  Variance  
Community Services 
(Community Safety; Family 
Centres; Youth Services; 
Community Services Business 
Support) 

10.7 11.1 (0.4) 

Parks, Leisure & Libraries 
(Bereavement; Coroner and 
Medico Legal; Libraries and 
Archives; Parks and 
Countryside; Partnerships and 
Special Projects; Physical 
Activity and Sports; Public 
Health) 

33.6 33.4 0.1 

Integrated Commissioning 
(Supporting Vulnerable People) 0.6 0.6 (0.0) 

Total 44.9 44.6 (0.3) 

There is forecast to 
be a shortfall of BIP 
delivery of £0.2m 
relating to libraries 

Variance Analysis £m @ 
Month 4 One-off  BIPs Trend 
Community Services 
(Community Safety; Family 
Centres; Youth Services; 
Community Services Business 
Support) 

(0.3) 0.0 (0.1) 

Parks, Leisure & Libraries  0.0 0.2 (0.0) 
Integrated Commissioning 
(Supporting Vulnerable People) 0.0 0.0 (0.0) 

Total (0.3) 0.2 (0.1) 
£0.2m of the 
underspend relates 
to the Page Hall 
project which is 
being requested to 
be carried forward 
 

Most of the underspend is one-off (£240k) funding relating to 
year 2 of the Page Hall project which is being requested to carry 
forward to 23/24, and recruitment slippage from Community 
Support Workers (£0.1m).  

The impact of the 
proposed pay offer 
creates an 
additional £0.4m 
pressure to the 
committee 

The proposed pay award of £1,925 flat rate per employee has 
been factored to forecasts in M4. The proposal leaves an 
additional pressure of £0.4m for the Committee. 
 
It should be noted that the pay offer cost is an initial indicative 
estimate which will require further work to fully understand the 
actual impact on each service.  
 

£1.3m is forecast to 
be spent to support 
the community 
response team 

The forecast assumes £1.3m temporary funding will be drawn 
down to pay for staffing costs in community response for 
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable, Community Safety and Locality 
Teams.  
This is one off funding and caution must be taken to ensure 
expenditure does not continue as a trend into 23/24 or an 
unfunded budget pressure will be created. Contracts to support 
the service are forecast to end by the end of the financial year. 

Page 138



Page 7 of 8 

 
  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE? 
2.1 The recommendations in this report are that each Policy Committee 

undertakes any work required to both balance their 2022/23 budget and 
prepare for the 2023/24 budget. 

  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
3.1 There has been no consultation on this report, however, it is anticipated 

that the budget process itself will involve significant consultation as the 
Policy Committees develop their budget proposals 

  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
4.1 Equality Implications 
4.1.1 There are no direct equality implications arising from this report. It is 

expected that individual Committees will use equality impact analyses as 
a basis for the development of their budget proposals in due course. 

  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
4.2.1 There are no direct financial implications from this report. 
  
4.3 Legal Implications 
4.3.1 Under section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Chief Finance 

Officer of an authority is required to report on the following matters: 
• the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of 
determining its budget requirement for the forthcoming year; and  
• the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. 

  
4.3.2 There is also a requirement for the authority to have regard to the report 

of the Chief Finance Officer when making decisions on its budget 
requirement and level of financial reserves. 

  
4.3.3 By the law, the Council must set and deliver a balanced budget, which is 

a financial plan based on sound assumptions which shows how income 
will equal spend over the short- and medium-term. This can take into 
account deliverable cost savings and/or local income growth strategies 
as well as useable reserves. However, a budget will not be balanced 
where it reduces reserves to unacceptably low levels and regard must be 
had to any report of the Chief Finance Officer on the required level of 
reserves under section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, which sets 
obligations of adequacy on controlled reserves. 

  
4.4 Climate Implications 
4.4.1 There are no direct equality implications arising from this report. It is 

expected that individual Committees will consider climate implications as 
they develop their budget proposals in due course. 

  
4.4 Other Implications 
4.4.1 No direct implication 
  
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Page 139



Page 8 of 8 

5.1 The Council is required to both set a balance budget and to ensure that 
in-year income and expenditure are balanced. No other alternatives were 
considered. 

 

Page 140


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Work Programme
	8 Update on the Public Facing Sport and Leisure Strategy
	9 Playing Pitch Strategy
	Sheffield PPS - Strategy and Action Plan 2022 Final

	10 Budget Monitoring - Month 4

